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CORPORATE INFORMATION AND KEY DATES
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Registered Office
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

Head Office and Principal Place of Business
28th Floor, Emperor Group Centre

288 Hennessy Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Registrar (in Bermuda)

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House

2 Church Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

Registrar (in Hong Kong)
Tricor Secretaries Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen s Road East

Hong Kong

Prnu%EaIBankers

Bank of China Limited, Macau Branch

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Chong Hing Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Key Dates
Annual Results Announcement 22 June 2021
Final Dividend HK$0.015 per share

- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 27 August 2021
(before 4:30 p.m.)
30 and 31 August 2021

(both days inclusive)

— Book Close Dates

- Record Date 31 August 2021
- Payment Date 14 September 2021
Annual General Meeting 19 August 2021
- Latest Time to Lodge Transfers 13 August 2021

(before 4:30 p.m.)

/Forate Commumcatlons

ThlS nnual Report (in both English and Chinese versions) is
available to any shareholder of the Company either in printed
form or on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (https://www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company. In order to protect the environment, the Company
highly recommends the shareholders to receive electronic
copy of this annual report. Shareholders may have the right
to change their choice of receipt of our future Corporation
Communications at any time by reasonable notice in writing
to the Company or the Company’ s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited, by post or by email at is-
enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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RESULTS SUMMARY

The board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of Emperor
Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) presents the
audited consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021 (the “Year”).

Revenue

A

Gaming revenue

MR AA

— From mass market hall

- RAFY

- From VIP room

- A A A

Hotel revenue

5 A

BRI IE AR AR ([ARAHR]) 2 EF
G ((HEFG R [HEF]) R AN A HH
iGN F) (A T AL ) # £20214F3H 31 H
WHAERE (TAAERE | ) 2 SRR A 8-

301,855 1,143,230

209,075 926,845

138,008 623,226

55,556 267,961

92,780 216,385

Gross (loss) profit
T (8 M

(103,443) 614,150

(Loss) profit attributable to owners of the Company

A IR N BEAL (R 1R) i A

(177,576) 263,915

Basic (loss) earnings per share

BEBIEA (1R &7

GLCOREY M HK$0.21% 7T

Final dividend per share

AR B

SLCDH s HK$0.030% 76

Total dividends per share
(53141 9= Rk

GLEORELEST  HKS$0.060% 70
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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RESULTS

During the Year, travel restrictions were enforced worldwide due
to the Covid-19 pandemic, leading to a drastic decrease in the
number of visitor arrivals in Macau, which severely impacted
the Group’s business operations. Nevertheless, benefiting
from the resumption of the Individual Visit Scheme for all
residents in Mainland China to Macau since September 2020,
the number of visitors to Macau has significantly improved and
a suppressed gaming demand was unlocked, hence the Group’s
business performances improved markedly in the second half
of the Year (the “2H”). The Group’s total revenue during the
Year was HK$301.9 million (2020: HK$1,143.2 million), with the
revenue during the 2H being 125% more than that of the first
half of the Year, implying a strong recovery during the 2H.

Loss for the Year attributable to the owners of the Company
was HK$177.6 million (2020: Profit of HK$263.9 million). Basic
loss per share was HK$0.15 (2020: Basic earnings per share
of HK$0.21). The Board recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.030) per share. Together with
the interim dividend of HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.030) per share,
the total dividends for the Year are HK$0.030 (2020: HK$0.060)
per share.

MARKET REVIEW

The Covid-19 pandemic was a devastating blow for the world
economy. As a result of the international travel and entry
restrictions, visitor arrivals in Macau decreased by 86.3%
while Macau’s gross gaming revenue decreased by 78.1%
during the Year. Besides, several precautionary measures such
as reduced number of seats per table, slot machine spacing,
evidence of Covid-19 negative test results for gaming hall entry,
etc. remained in effect during the Year. All casino and hotel
operations in Macau have thus been immensely disrupted.

Whilst most countries are still suffering from the Covid-19,
it was substantially contained in China. The Individual Visit
Scheme from Mainland China to Macau was resumed since
September 2020, leading to a gradual improvement in Macau’s
visitation since the fourth quarter of 2020. Accordingly, Macau’ s
gross gaming revenue only decreased by 55.5% year-on-year
in the 2H, a notable improvement from a 94.2% year-on-year
decline in the first half of the Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group principally engages in provision of entertainment
and hospitality services in Macau.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group operated two hotels, Grand
Emperor Hotel (“GEH”) and Inn Hotel Macau (“IHM”), in
Macau. GEH, the Group’s flagship project, on the Macau
Peninsula, is an award-winning 26-storey gaming hotel with a
gross floor area of approximately 655,000 square feet and 311
guest rooms. It has six gaming floors, covering over 130,000
square feet, and offers slot machines as well as gaming tables in
the mass market hall and the VIP room. In addition, GEH offers
a wide range of amenities including fitness centre, sauna and
spa facilities, as well as five restaurants and bars boasting fine
cuisines from all around the world. With strong commitment
to providing guests with unparalleled entertainment and
hospitality experiences, the Group delivers consistently top-
quality services that translate into high levels of customer
satisfaction and loyalty.
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Located at the heart of Macau’s Taipa Island, THM is a
17-storey hotel with a gross floor area of approximately 209,000
square feet, and 287 guest rooms. THM creates a comfortable
experience, catering to the lifestyles of both leisure and
business travellers. Through extending coverage from the
Macau Peninsula to Taipa, IHM enables the Group to fully
capture the potential of Macau’ s hospitality market.

Gaming Revenue

The Group’s casino in GEH is operated under the gaming
licence held by Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”).
During the Year, the Group entered into an addendum (the
“Addendum”) with SJM for the continuation of the provision
of management and promotion services to SJM in the GEH
casino, as in the service agreement between an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and SJM dated 19
February 2010 (the “2010 Service Agreement”). Pursuant to
the Addendum, the term of the 2010 Service Agreement has
been extended to 26 June 2022, while the Group’s entitlement
to service fees and all other major terms under the 2010 Service
Agreement remain unchanged. Details of the Addendum
were disclosed in the joint announcement of the Company
and Emperor International Holdings Limited (“Emperor
International”) dated 13 May 2020.

Despite the number of visitor arrivals to Macau dropped by 86.3%
during the Year, the Group’s total gaming revenue decreased
by 77.4% only to HK$209.1 million (2020: HK$926.8 million),
accounting for 69.3% (2020: 81.1%) of the Group’ s total revenue.
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Mass Market Hall

The mass market gross win during the Year was HK$242.1
million (2020: HK$1,113.8 million). Revenue from the mass
market hall was HK$138.0 million (2020: HK$623.2 million),
contributing 66.0% (2020: 67.3%) of the Group’s total gaming
revenue. There were 67 (2020: 67) tables in the mass market hall.
Average win per table per day was approximately HK$10,000
(2020: HK$45,000).

VIP Room

The Group self-managed a VIP room with 10 (2020: 10) tables.
The rolling amount during the Year was HK$2.4 billion (2020:
HK$10.2 billion). Revenue from the VIP room was HK$55.6
million (2020: HK$267.9 million), contributing 26.6% (2020:
28.9%) of the Group’s total gaming revenue. Average win per
table per day was approximately HK$27,000 (2020: HK$129,000).

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #3445 % AR /AR
Annual Report 2020/2021 4
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Slot Machines

With a capacity of 180 (2020: 180) slot seats as at 31 March 2021,
the gross win from slot machines during the Year was HK$32.7
million (2020: HK$75.1 million). Revenue from the slot machines
was HK$15.5 million (2020: HK$35.7 million), accounting for
7.4% (2020: 3.8%) of the Group’s total gaming revenue. Average
win per seat per day was HK$497 (2020: HK$1,148).

Hotel Revenue

During the Year, the Group’s hotel revenue was derived from
the hospitality income of GEH and IHM, which amounted to
HK$92.8 million (2020: HK$216.4 million), accounting for 30.7%
(2020: 18.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. As of 31 March 2021,
GEH and THM provided 311 and 287 guest rooms respectively.
During the Year, the average room rates of GEH and IHM were
HK$479 (2020: HK$830) per night and HK$280 (2020: HK$504)
per night, with occupancy rates of 53% (2020: 88%) and 56%
(2020: 90%), respectively. Total room revenue was HK$29.5
million (2020: HK$93.8 million). Total food and beverage
revenue was HK$48.6 million (2020: HK$96.5 million), while the
rental income and other revenue totalled HK$14.7 million (2020:
HK$26.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
HRUEwam SLr Bi

Special Dividend and Acquisition Completed

Subsequent to the Year

On 25 May 2021, the Board resolved to declare the payment of a
special dividend of HK$0.050 per share, totalling approximately
HK$59.9 million, to the shareholders of the Company which shall
be made on 25 June 2021. Details of the special dividend were
disclosed in the Company’ s announcement dated 25 May 2021.

In addition, on 28 May 2021, the Group completed the
acquisition of three hotel and hotel-related properties in Hong
Kong - The Emperor Hotel, The Unit Serviced Apartments and
MORI MORI Serviced Apartments — from its parent company,
Emperor International, at a consideration of approximately
HK$2,048.8 million. Upon completion, the Group remains its
core focus on gaming hotel operations, with the sources of
income widened by expanding its hospitality business coverage
beyond Macau to also include Hong Kong. The Group can then
master an integrated marketing strategy for its entire hospitality
business, and provide a unique service to visitors travelling to
both cities by implementing joint promotional schemes. Details
of the acquisition were disclosed in the joint announcement of
Emperor International and the Company dated 16 March 2021
and the Company’ s circular dated 30 April 2021.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #3445 % AR /AR
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OUTLOOK

Since the Covid-19 pandemic has been substantially contained
in China so far, Macau is expected to reap the greatest benefits
when the suppressed outbound travel and gaming demand from
mainland China are released. In tandem with the expansion of
the middle-income group, more comprehensive transportation
linkages, plus further integration in the Greater Bay Area, this will
reinforce Macau’ s position as a global leisure and tourism hub, as
well as Hong Kong’ s position as a favourite shopping destination
and international finance centre. Besides, it will benefit the
entertainment sector in Macau and the hospitality sector in Hong
Kong, given that the travellers invariably include both cities in one
single itinerary, due to their close proximity while having distinct
characteristics yet complementary positioning.

It is expected that a travel bubble or health code will soon
be launched. With the Group strategically owning several
hotels and serviced apartments in Hong Kong and Macau, it
will be able to adopt a comprehensive marketing strategy for
its hospitality business as a whole, and deliver unparalleled
services to travellers visiting both these cities. As the
vaccination programmes are rolling out globally, it is expected
that travel restrictions will be gradually lifted. With the Group’s
strengthened footprint in Hong Kong and Macau, it is well
prepared for the tourism rebound and recovery of consumption
and entertainment sentiment, and is confident regarding the
long-term development of the Group.
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial
Resources

The Group continued to maintain a strong financial position
with aggregate of bank balances and cash, short-term bank
deposits and pledged bank deposits of HK$3,340.1 million (2020:
HK$3,544.3 million) as at 31 March 2021, which are mainly
denominated in Hong Kong dollar and Renminbi (2020: Hong
Kong dollar and United States dollar). The Group funded its
operations and capital expenditure by cash generated from its
operations and deposits reserved at the banks. During the Year,
the Group did not expose to significant foreign exchange rates
risk as most of the Group’s assets, liabilities and transactions
were transacted at and denominated in the functional currency
of its operations. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group’s foreign exchange exposure mainly arises from its
assets denominated in Renminbi. The Group closely monitors
its overall foreign exchange exposure and adopts appropriate
measures to mitigate its currency risk when necessary.
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The Group’s current assets and current liabilities as at 31
March 2021 were HK$3,458.1 million (2020: HK$3,762.3
million) and HK$357.3 million (2020: HK$443.7 million),
respectively. As at 31 March 2021, the advances from non-
controlling interests of a subsidiary of the Company amounted
to HK$39.0 million (2020: HK$39.0 million), which was
denominated in Hong Kong dollar, unsecured, interest-free
and repayable at the discretion of non-controlling interests
and availability of surplus fund of the subsidiary. The Group
was in a net cash position as at 31 March 2021 and hence its
gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total equity
plus net debt) was zero (2020: zero).

During the Year, the Company had repurchased 24,665,000
shares (the “Repurchased Shares”) of its own shares from the
market using internal resources, at an aggregate consideration
of HK$27.7 million (excluding the relevant transaction costs
and expenses), and an average price of HK$1.124 per share.
The Repurchased Shares had been cancelled during the Year,
and hence the total number of issued shares of the Company
right after its cancellation was reduced by about 2.0% to
1,209,575,983 (2020: 1,234,240,983) shares and its issued share
capital was HK$121,000 (2020: HK$123,000) as at 31 March
2021. Having considered the Group’s strong cash reserves, the
Directors believe the share repurchases would enhance value to
the Company’ s shareholders and benefit the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.
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Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2021, assets with carrying values of
approximately HK$2.0 billion (2020: HK$2.1 billion) were
pledged to two banks as security for banking facilities of a
total of HK$520.0 million (2020: HK$520.0 million). In addition,
the Group has a bank deposit of HK$63.0 million (2020: Nil)
pledged as security deposit for obtaining a bank guarantee
in the amount of approximately Macau Patacas (“MOP”) 64.5
million (equivalent to HK$62.6 million) in favour of SJM for the
Group’ s fulfilment of all its obligations as stipulated in the 2010
Service Agreement (as supplemented by the Addendum), and
another bank deposit of HK$0.4 million (2020: HK$0.3 million)
pledged as security deposit for the use of ferry ticket equipment
provided by a third party.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICY

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’ s number of employees was 770
(2020: 949). Total staff costs including Directors’ remuneration
and the other staff costs for the Year were HK$313.2 million
(2020: HK$449.8 million). Each employee’s remuneration was
determined in accordance with individual's responsibilities,
competence and skills, experience and performance, as well
as market pay levels. Staff benefits include medical and life
insurance, retirement benefits and other competitive fringe
benefits.

To provide incentives or rewards to the staff, the Company has
adopted a share option scheme, particulars of which will be set
out in the section headed “Share Options Scheme” on pages 140
and 141 of this annual report.
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Non-Executive Director (Chairperson)

LUK SIU MAN, SEMON, aged 65, the Chairperson of the
Company. She joined the Company in March 2000. Ms. Luk is
also the non-executive director and chairperson of Emperor
International (Stock Code: 163), which is an indirect holding
company of the Company. She worked in the banking industry
for almost 10 years. Ms. Luk graduated from The University of
Toronto with a Bachelor’ s Degree in Commerce.

Executive Director

WONG CHI FAI, aged 65, the Executive Director of the
Company. Mr. Wong joined the Company in 1991 and has been
responsible for the Group’ s strategic planning, business growth
and development and overseeing the financial management
of the Group. Mr. Wong is the Chairman of the Executive
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee
of the Company as well as a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Currently, he is also a director of Emperor
International, Emperor Watch & Jewellery Limited (Stock Code:
887) (“Emperor W&J”), Emperor Culture Group Limited (Stock
Code: 491) (“Emperor Culture”) and Ulferts International
Limited (Stock Code: 1711) (“Ulferts International”), all being
listed members under Emperor Group. Having over 30 years of
finance and management experience, Mr. Wong has diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from hotel and
hospitality, property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, manufacturing to
wholesaling and retailing of furniture, financial and securities
services, artiste management as well as media and publication.
Mr. Wong is a Certified Public Accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Executive Director

FAN MAN SEUNG, VANESSA (Former Name: Fan Man Seung),
aged 58, the Executive Director of the Company. Ms. Fan joined
the Company in 1991 and has been responsible for the Group’s
strategic planning, business growth and development as well
as overseeing different functions within the Group. She is also
the Chairperson of the Corporate Governance Committee,
a member of the Executive Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company as well as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Currently, Ms. Fan is also a
director of Emperor International, Emperor W&]J, Emperor
Culture and Ulferts International. Having over 32 years of
corporate management experience, she possesses diversified
experience in different businesses ranging from hotel and
hospitality, property investment and development, retailing
of watch and jewellery, cinema development and operation to
entertainment production and investment, wholesaling and
retailing of furniture, financial and securities services, artiste
management as well as media and publication. She is a lawyer
by profession in Hong Kong and a qualified accountant, and
holds a Master’ s Degree in Business Administration.
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Independent Non-executive Director

YU KING TIN, aged 54, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2013. He
is the Chairman of the Audit Committee as well as a member
of the Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee of the Company. Mr. Yu has worked in various
organizations including international certified public
accountants firms and listed companies in Hong Kong. He
is currently one of the senior management in the finance
department of a conglomerate in Hong Kong. Mr. Yu graduated
from the Peking University with a Bachelor’s Degree in Law and
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Master’ s Degree
in Corporate Finance. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, a
Certified Tax Advisor and a member of the Society of Registered
Financial Planner.

Independent Non-executive Director

KWAN SHIN LUEN, SUSANNA, aged 54, was appointed as
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company in August
2015. She is the Chairperson of the Nomination Committee
as well as a member of the Audit Committee and Corporate
Governance Committee of the Company. Ms. Kwan is also the
independent non-executive director of Hypebeast Limited,
the shares of which were listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange
previously (Stock Code: 8359) and the listing was transferred to
the Main Board in March 2019 (Stock Code: 150). Ms. Kwan has a
legal practice focusing on corporate/commercial and corporate
finance matters in Hong Kong for more than 20 years, including
mergers & acquisitions, regulatory compliance, public offerings,
private placement of securities and open offers, joint ventures
and securities related compliance. She practices and specializes
as a corporate finance and legal and compliance lawyer.
Ms. Kwan graduated from the London School of Economics
(London).

Independent Non-executive Director

LATI KA FUNG, MAY, aged 55, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company in August 2016. She is
the Chairperson of the Remuneration Committee as well as a
member of the Audit Committee and Nomination Committee
of the Company. Ms. Lai is a Certified Public Accountant and
has been engaged in the audit field for more than 20 years. She
is a Principal Partner of May K.F. Lai & Co. & H.H. Liu & Co.,
Certified Public Accountants. Ms. Lai is also an independent
non-executive director of Chinlink International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 997). She was previously an independent
non-executive director of Emperor W&]J until 24 May 2017.
Ms. Lai is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and obtained a Master’s Degree of Arts in
International Accounting from City University of Hong Kong.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #3445 % AR /AR
Annual Report 2020/2021 4

WL PUITHE S

AR BUESABRE > R20134E8  JE ZAT /oy A
NFBSL AT E R WA N FEEE R
T ERHGME B g kAR E B EMA -
AR S A AR TR S TR N > 4 I R
fil =5 355 BT A A 98 b T A A o B — RN
BEEEEMEREREEABEZ — Rk
A HESE Y AU UK BN 45 A7 i A B - B A 2 A
SETA A ik B TR B AIG 5 A A 3 B A 1 2R
i o R4S B E R A G & 8 S
GRS - B73 = R R RT3
A {1 S 5 0 3 i i & ¢

B E AT ESE

B 15 5% > BLAES40 - R20154F8 1 1 ZAT /3y A
N Z WL FIATE SR /AN FRAE
BEERkERZEGRAEEREZREEN
B o B %+ BlJR fyHypebeast Limited 2 %
SE AR BT S FLR By 2 1R B 2E T GEMLE
T (e A8 - 8359) » A2 7A20194E3 1 i 2 i
AP M B OB A9 2 150) © B 4o 4 4
AEFBREMCE THERCEMEFHZ
AR E BB E204F - B AR O e B F
AN S B A N WD /N LY
B AR 2E KRB I A B S B (BB
A 3 Rl s B SR o B Ak R A MR
FAETEELBE (fg ) o

B I AT

B R BLAESSHE - R20164F8 1 4 B AT Jy A
25 T S IE AT S o 0 s A 4 BN B
TERRFREAGRIRAZAGRA R
2 B W S G S R T A 20
Ao 193 B A3 O R DL B
T P B ey S T A KON o B
B IR  3 E e 2 O A LA ) (R By
fR88:997) X B R HATHE - i By R
S G TR T 2 BT JE BT L E 2017465 ]
24H R UL R F B AL GO B LEE
ol T K S 0 R SRR AR



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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The Directors present this annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year.

Principal Activities

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 38(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 67 of this annual report. The
dividends paid during the Year and proposed to be paid for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An interim dividend of HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.030) per share for
the Year, amounting to HK$18,225,000 (2020: HK$37,049,000),
was paid to the shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”)
during the Year.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.030) per share for the Year, to those
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
on 31 August 2021 (Tuesday), subject to the approval of the
Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to be
held on 19 August 2021 (Thursday) (“2021 AGM”).

Business Review and Performance

A fair review of the Group’s business, a discussion and analysis
of the Group’s performance during the Year and an analysis of
the likely future development of the Group’s business are set
out in the Management Discussion and Analysis from pages 5
to 14 of this annual report. Description of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group are set out in the Corporate
Governance Report from pages 33 to 59 of this annual report
and notes 31 and 32(b) to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Special Dividend
and Acquisition Completed Subsequent to the Year” of the
Management Discussion and Analysis, and note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements, there is no important event
affecting the Company that had occurred since the end of the
Year up to the date of this report.
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Business Review and Performance

(continued)

In addition, the Group’s environmental policy and performance,
discussion on key relationships with the Company’s key
stakeholders, as well as compliance with relevant laws and
regulations which have significant impact on the Company are
set out in the Environmental, Social and Governance Report
2020/2021 of the Company.

Five-year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five years is set out on page 163 of this annual
report.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2021, the Group revalued all of its investment
properties on an open market value basis. The decrease in
fair value amounting to HK$36,000,000 has been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Details of changes in the investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

A summary of investment properties of the Group as at 31
March 2021 is set out on page 164 of this annual report.

Property, Plant and Equipment
During the Year, the Group acquired property, plant and
equipment at a cost of HK$20,925,000.

Details of changes in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Share Capital
Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out on page 70 of this annual report.
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Distributable Reserves of the Company
The Company reserves available for distribution to the
Shareholders as at 31 March 2021 represent the retained profits
amounting to HK$1,009,755,000 (2020: HK$349,775,000).

Directors of the Company
The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this report
were:

Non-executive Director:
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon (Chairperson)

Executive Directors:
Mr. Wong Chi Fai
Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Yu King Tin

Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management as
at the date of this report are set out on pages 15 and 16 of this
annual report. Details of Directors’ remunerations are set out
in note 10(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with Bye-law 87(1) and 87(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws, Ms. Fan Man Seung, Vanessa (“Ms. Vanessa Fan”)
and Ms. Kwan Shin Luen, Susanna (“Ms. Susanna Kwan”) shall
retire by rotation at the 2021 AGM and, being eligible, shall offer
themselves for re-election thereat.

None of the Directors offering themselves for re-election at the
2021 AGM has an unexpired service contract with the Group
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

Management Contracts

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the Group’s business were entered into or existed during
the Year.
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Permitted Indemnity Provisions

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force the permitted indemnity provisions which are
provided for in the Company’s Bye-laws and in the directors
and officers liability insurance maintained for the Group in
respect of potential liability and costs associated with legal
proceedings that may be brought against the Directors and the
directors of the Group.

Emolument Policy

The emoluments of the Directors shall be decided by the Board
as recommended by the Remuneration Committee having
regard to a written remuneration policy (which ensures a
clear link to business strategy and a close alignment with the
Shareholders’ interest and current best practice). Remuneration
should be paid with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives, the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Executive and
Non-executive Directors, internal equity of employment
conditions across the Group and applicability of performance-
based remuneration. The Directors’ fees are paid in line with
market practice. No individual should determine his or her own
remuneration.

Employee’ s remuneration was determined in accordance with
individual’ s responsibilities, competence and skills, experience
and performance as well as market pay level. Remuneration
package includes, as the case may be, basic salary, Directors’
fees, housing allowances, contribution to pension schemes,
discretionary bonus relating to the financial performance of
the Group and individual performance, ad hoc rewards, share
options and other competitive fringe benefits such as medical
and life insurances. Details of the emoluments of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals of the Group are set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests

1n Securities

As at 31 March 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors adopted by the Company (“EEH
Securities Code”) were as follows:

(A) Long position interests in the Company
Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each of the Company (the
“Shares”)

Capacity/
Name of Director Nature of interests
HHREEA -2/ £ L
Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon  Interest of spouse
(“Ms. Semon Luk”) Fic {18 HEE 2

e/ ot (TRe&d: )

Note: These Shares were held by Emperor Entertainment Hotel
Holdings Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
Emperor International. Emperor International is a company
with its shares listed in Hong Kong and as at 31 March 2021,
approximately 74.71% of its issued shares was held by Emperor
International Group Holdings Limited (“Emperor International
Group Holdings”). The entire issued share of Emperor
International Group Holdings is wholly owned by Albert Yeung
Holdings Limited (“AY Holdings”) which is held by First Trust
Services GmbH (“First Trust”), being the trustee for a private
discretionary trust set up by Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert (“Dr.
Albert Yeung”) who is deemed to have interests in the said
Shares. By virtue of being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms.
Semon Luk also had deemed interests in the same Shares.

LSV EL I ON -4 el
i

A20213H31H » # F AN A EEATHA
B AN B S H AR B S ) (E 26 AR R K
Bp (T8 5 R BRG] SEXVE) 2 &
45 ~ R B B A3 AR R 8 v B A AR S W AR BB B
I I B W ) 6 35240 i A 2 6k we T Re Bk
ZHE R BOR B SR EAR N R R 2 (GE
FT 525258 S M R E S FI) (T 9 B 448 5 s 3
F 57 B ) ) 28 5 AT FVEr AN ) B A i 2 4
KRBT

(A) TR AR 23 W) Z 4F 53 BE 4t
7 4 5 R T 60.00017 70 2 2 301
(THetr 1)

% of issued
voting Shares

Number of issued
Shares interested

FrfihEas 2 1 AT
#4718 B H A B HE I B %
851,352,845 70.38%

(Note) (Htit)

B et : 525 Iy e 5 [ R 2 [ 4 A RS A
) L UG I P A BR A mRR o e
BBy — M B EH W b2 A
HA20214F3H31H £974.71% 2 B ¥ 17
JBE 00y v o 2 AR (R ) 5 I A PR A
(19 58 42 10 R e e B | ) AT o o S AR
B PR B 2 A LR AT R W A R
WL (Tl (Hudada Lk
& 103 HE ) WAL 2 RN S AR 6T 2 32 5t
AFirst Trust Services GmbH ([First
Trust ) FiH 2 455 B SR R A
A (T2 R ) B E A - S
R 7 A 1l 2 WA > 9 R R 2
5% S R R B 3 1) M 4
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e

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests #F &+

BITBANB 2 &5

in Securities (continued) s (#)

(B) Long position interests in associated (B) 7 FH Wi 2; 1 2 % 47 HE i
corporation
(i) Ordinary shares (i) HER

Ms. Semon Luk Emperor International Interest of spouse
P4+ e 5 P 5 4 £
Emperor W&J - Ditto -
3R E R E —[ -
Emperor Culture - Ditto -
g A —[f] £ -
Ulferts International - Ditto -
A X —[F E—
Ms. Vanessa Fan Emperor International Beneficial owner
Hh+t e 5 | E7% ZDN
Mr. Yu King Tin Emperor W&J Beneficial owner
RERLA 5 R IR | ErE 2PN
Note: Emperor International, Emperor W&]J, Emperor Culture Mt

and Ulferts International are companies with their shares
listed on the Stock Exchange. These shares were ultimately
owned by the respective private discretionary trusts
which are also founded by Dr. Albert Yeung. By virtue of
being the spouse of Dr. Albert Yeung, Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interests in the same shares.

2,747,610,489 74.71%
(Note) (/#tit)
4,290,850,000 63.29%
(Note) (/#7)
2,371,313,094 73.80%
(Note) (/#fit)
600,000,000 75.00%
(Note) (Htit)
10,500,000 0.29%
80,000 0.001%

e U AEE ¥ £33 A 1.5l

Al 7 26 B R AL TR R 2 2y B3 % B
S bR 2 T e %A AR ) i A
PN E N A
IR RHEAT o BB L L AL
i 118 > A T W AR, 2 A AR T BB A7 119
R4S o

(ii) Debentures (i1) & HE#

Mr. Wong Chi Fai Emperor International Interest in a controlled HK$2,000,000
A e 5 B corporation 2,000,000 7t
T 5 B 2 RE 4
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

Directors’ and Chief Executives' Interests
in Securities (continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, none of the
Directors nor chief executives of the Company had any interests
or short positions in any Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO).

Share Options

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013. Particulars of the Share
Option Scheme are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements. No share option was granted, exercised,
cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme since its
adoption.

Equity-linked Agreements

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed in note 27
to the consolidated financial statements, no equity linked
agreement was entered into by the Company during the Year or
subsisted at the end of the Year.

Arrangements to Purchase Shares or

Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as stated above, at
the end of the Year and at no time during the Year was the
Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors or chief executives of the Company or their spouse or
children under 18 years of age to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of Shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares

So far as is known to any Director or chief executives of the
Company, as at 31 March 2021, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or a chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed or taken to have an interest and
short position in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
(“DI Register”) or as otherwise notified to the Company were as
follows:

L ER TN BS T
% (1)

B b SCRT 45 % 3 41 > R 20214F3 A 31 H - HE 4
R AN F 2 EEATEO BN A L w8
AT AT AR B i B (R 28 Lt 7 S B B I 19 26 XV
F8) 22 AT AT A7 ~ A B B R A HE RS A
A AT i BRIR AT

Jisk 5z

AN TR 201348 H 15 H B B 4 1 5 HE w1 1
(TR BERE RT3 ] ) o B OAE ST 81 2 SE 1 O 45
A BB R R M 5127 o I I RE S bR 4
E SRR R 5% O B T B B o AT

B 5% b A i ik

BRI G B 5 R 3R B RE2 748 B 2 i PO st
B > AR 5 ) 7 S 7 A AR BE N RT S B AS 4
ARAF AT AT B 5% 408 T K

fi B Mt A B A 2 K HE

Bk b SO At 22 B P M ) b > T A A B R B
A A B R AT AR R (] > AR 4 ] > AT A 4 Pl
> B 2 ) SR AR B a2 AR A R S AT ]
TP B AN R AT B B B
S 2 TE AR BRI 18558 1 nl #5 WA AR 2 ] 5L
AT ] H At 5 I 1) i 73 B0 AR T TR i

FoAt N\ 7 i Ay B A B e iy 2
1

202143 H31H > AT ] & =5 s A 2\ /) 3
TN B B> B o 35 AR A /) EATBA
B4 0N B R 5 BRR B A 17 o
AT ok Bl AR 2 SRV R RO B e RS
J & W 9] 55 3360 2R A7 B 2 B we i (THE 2%
o) SE ST G AN w2 M IR
/I
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HPEEH

Other Persons’ Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares (continued)

FAth N 0 BB A B R B B A 2
Wesk (A44)

Long positions in the Shares Wy 2
% of issued
Number of  voting Shares
Name of Shareholder Capacity/Nature of interests Shares held 1 B #AT
[/ B 1Y ¥ /P8 Xy PRl 8l A BB %
Emperor International Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 70.38%
e 5 ] [ TS24 T 2 M i (Note) (Hfit)
AY Holdings Interest in a controlled corporation 851,352,845 70.38%
a3 hEE S FE A 32 P i i B 2 W 4 (Note) (fit)
First Trust Trustee of a private discretionary trust 851,352,845 70.38%
AW HEEEZZFEAN (Note) (Btit)
Dr. Albert Yeung Founder of a private discretionary trust 851,352,845 70.38%

Bt NN E - [N

Note: These Shares were the same Shares as those set out under Section (A)
of “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in Securities” above of
which Ms. Semon Luk had deemed interests.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors or
chief executives of the Company were not aware of any person
or corporation (other than the Directors and chief executives of
the Company) who had, or were deemed or taken to have, any
interests or short positions in any Shares or underlying Shares
as recorded in the DI Register.

Directors’ Interests in Competing

Business

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors nor their respective
close associates was interested in any business which was
considered to compete or is likely to compete, either directly
or indirectly, with the business of the Group as required to
be disclosed pursuant to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

Confirmation of Independence of
Independent Non-executive Directors

The Company had received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors of the Company (“INEDs”), an annual
confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered that all of the INEDs are
independent.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 184475 15 AR /A
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing Shareholders.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the

Company’ s Listed Securities

During the Year, the Company repurchased a total of 24,665,000
Shares at an aggregate consideration of HK$27,724,400 (before
expenses) on the Stock Exchange. All such Repurchased Shares
were subsequently cancelled during the Year. As at 31 March
2021, there was a total of 1,209,575,983 (2020: 1,234,240,983)
Shares in issue.

Details of the Repurchased Shares during the Year are as
follows:

18 o i H A

AR5 ) 2 ) 40 S S
7 R 1 0 5L P R A 5 2
W R -

i A I V= - 1 N/ ol ]
w77

WA AR BE S AR 2 AR Bk 23S B DA AR AR M
27,724,400% ot (K 5t B 32) W a5 3
24,665,0008 B3 o Fr A7 i 1] Jie 473 FLA% A AR 4F:
J¥ T RE S - iA20214E3 31 H » B B AT I 3 4
#/41,209,575,983 (20204F : 1,234,240,983)
Jix o

TS AS AT J3E i [ BBy 2 REAR AT

Aggregate

Number Highest Lowest consideration

of Shares price paid price paid  paid (before
repurchased per Share per Share expenses)

Month of Vi [el ¢ 3 e i [BRERST ) AT A
Shares repurchase Sk e ¢ 4y 2 H oy Z¥H B B e 1 B B fEK 1 (RatR %)
HK$ HK$ HKS$

o T #ou

July 2020 202047 5,205,000 1.08 1.04 5,518,350
August 2020 202048 4,220,000 1.20 1.08 4,876,800
September 2020 20204E9 A 7,290,000 1.21 1.16 8,641,850
October 2020 20204104 960,000 1.11 1.09 1,054,400
December 2020 20204£12H 2,360,000 1.14 1.10 2,655,650
January 2021 20214E1H 2,755,000 1.10 1.01 2,864,300
March 2021 20214E3 5 1,875,000 1.15 1.11 2,113,050
Total Ht 24,665,000 27,724,400

The repurchases were made with a view to enhancing the net
asset value and/or earnings per Share.

Save as disclosed above, during the Year, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of
the Company’ s listed securities.

HEAT I ] 5 A R v R TR (B R A o

B L SO B8R A B AR AR B A2y w] BUE
AT AT A Jo 2 ) ABE U (o]~ o B B[] A % )
AR T RE o5 -
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Directors’ Material Interests in
TI'aIlSElCthIlS, Arrangements or Contracts
and Connected Transactions

During the Year, the Group had the following transactions
with connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the

Company and certain Directors had material interests, directly
or indirectly, in such transactions:

(i) Continuing Connected Transaction - Master
Leasing Agreement (“2018 MLA”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

24 May 2018
(i) The Company
(ii) Emperor W&]J

The 2018 MLA sets out the framework of
the terms governing all existing and future
tenancy/licensing transaction(s) (“Tenancy
Transactions”) regarding leasing of certain
office properties (including retail shops) to
Emperor W&]J for the period from 24 May
2018 to 31 March 2021 with aggregate tenancy
annual caps being set for each of the financial
years ended 31 March 2019, 2020 and 2021
(“Aggregate Tenancy Annual Caps”).

Pursuant to the 2018 MLA, relevant members of
the Group and any member(s) of Emperor W&]J
(as the case may be) may from time to time
enter into any definitive leasing agreements
in relation to any Tenancy Transactions
(“Definitive Leasing Agreement(s)”). The
terms of each of Definitive Leasing Agreements
shall be on normal commercial terms or on
terms which are no less favorable available to
the Group than terms offered by independent
third parties.

The terms and rental shall be subject to arm’s
length negotiation and be determined based
on the condition of the properties and with
reference to the then prevailing market rents
on property(ies) comparable in location, area
and permitted use.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HE S

Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
and Connected Transactions (continued)
(i) Continuing Connected Transaction - Master
Leasing Agreement (“2018 MLA”) (continued)

Connected
relationship
and Directors’
interests:

Completion:

Announcements:

Aggregate
amount:

Remark:

The Company and Emperor W&J were
controlled by private discretionary trusts
which are both founded by Dr. Albert Yeung.
As such, under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, Emperor W&J was a deemed connected
person of the Company. Ms. Semon Luk had
deemed interest in the 2018 MLA by virtue of
being an associate of the eligible beneficiaries
of the private discretionary trust controlling
Emperor W&J.

2 August 2018, whereupon the Aggregate
Tenancy Annual Caps had replaced all the
then annual caps previously obtained by the
Company for the Tenancy Transactions.

24 May 2018 and 9 August 2018

During the Year, the aggregate amount of the
Tenancy Transactions with Emperor W&]J or its
relevant members was HK$2,918,000.

With the expiration of the 2018 MLA, the
Company entered into new master leasing
agreement with Emperor W&J on 3 December
2020 to regulate arrangements for the
Tenancy Transactions between the parties
for a successive term of 3 years from 1 April
2021. As all conditions precedent had been
fulfilled on 2 February 2021, the new aggregate
tenancy annual caps took effect from 1 April
2021. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 3 December 2020 for details.

BN T~ LR A B
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
and Connected Transactions (continued)
(ii) Continuing Connected Transaction - 2010
Service Agreement (as supplemented by the
Addendum) in Relation to the Operation of

GEH

Date:

Parties and
connected
relationship:

Terms:

19 February 2010 (for the 2010 Service
Agreement) and 4 May 2020 (for the Addendum)

@)

(i)

Tin Hou Limited (“Tin Hou”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company

SJM, a company incorporated in Macau,
which is principally engaged in gaming
business in Macau and is one of the six
concessionaires/subconcessionaries
licensed to carry on casino operations in
Macau. SJM has 19.99% equity interest
in Luck United Holdings Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and is a connected person
of the Company within the meaning of
the Listing Rules by virtue of being a
substantial shareholder of a subsidiary of
the Company.

From 1 October 2009 to termination upon
occurrence of certain events, including the
expiration of SJM’ s gambling license under the
Gaming Concession Contract on 31 March 2020
or any earlier termination thereof or winding
up or cessation of business of either party. As
supplemented by the Addendum, the term of
the 2010 Service Agreement is extended from 1
April 2020 to 26 June 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

HE S

Directors’ Material Interests in

Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts

and Connected Transactions (continued)

(ii) Continuing Connected Transaction - 2010
Service Agreement (as supplemented by the
Addendum) in Relation to the Operation of
GEH (continued)

Nature:

Announcement:

Net receipt:

The provision of services comprising
management services and Fromotion
services by Tin Hou to SJM in relation to the
operation of GEH whereas Tin Hou together
with the nominated junket promoter (a
fellow subsidiary of Tin Hou and wholly-
owned by the Company) shall be entitled
to a share of the gross win and gross
loss in respect of the monthly operatin
Eerformance of the gaming area of GEH an
ear all necessary operational expenses in
relation to the operation of the gaming area.

13 May 2020

During the Year, the Group’s net receipt
amount under the 2010 Service Agreement
amounted to HK$36,356,000.

(iii) Connected Transaction - Acquisition
of Entire Equity Interest in Poly Keen
International Limited (“Poly Keen”)

Date:

Parties:

Nature:

16 March 2021

(i) Emperor Hotel Group Limited
(“Vendor”), a direct wholly-owned
subsidiary of Emperor International

(i) Emperor Hotel Investment Limited
(“Purchaser”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company

The Purchaser entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with the Vendor, in
relation to the purchase and sale of the
entire equity interest of Poly Keen and the
shareholder’s loan due from Poly Keen
to the Vendor. The consideration for the

transaction was HK$2,048,832,000.
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Directors’ Material Interests in
Transactions, Arrangements or Contracts
and Connected Transactions (continued)
(iii) Connected Transaction - Acquisition
of Entire Equity Interest in Poly Keen
International Limited (“Poly Keen”)

(continued)
Director’ s Emperor International is a connected
interests person of the Company by virtue of being

the substantial shareholder of the Company.
Ms. Semon Luk was deemed to have interest
in the transaction by virtue of being an
associate of the eligible beneficiaries of the
private discretionary trust which ultimately
owns Emperor International as to 74.71%.

Announcement: 16 March 2021

Circular: 30 April 2021

Remark: The transaction was approved by the

independent shareholders at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 24
May 2021. The transaction was completed
on 28 May 2021.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements
Save as “Rental income from a related company” (under the
2018 MLA) in the amount of HK$2,918,000 for the Year as shown
in note 36(a) to the consolidated financial statements which
constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, all other transactions as
shown in this note are connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
disclosure requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the above non-exempt connected
transactions.

Auditor’ s Letter on Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
disclosed continuing connected transactions (“CCTs”) in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” (“Auditor’s
Letter”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

Auditor’ s Letter on Disclosed
Continuing Connected Transactions

(continued

The auditor had issued unqualified conclusions in respect of
the CCTs in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A
copy of the Auditor’s Letter had been provided by the Company
to the Stock Exchange.

Confirmation of Independent Non-
executive Directors on Disclosed

Continuing Connected Transactions
Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the INEDs had
reviewed the CCTs and the Auditor’s Letter and had confirmed
that these transactions have been entered into by the Group:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better (as the case may be);
and

(iii) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

Save as disclosed above, there was no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance which was significant in relation
to the Company’s business to which the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or his/her connected entity had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the Year, the aggregate amount of revenue attributable
to the Group’s five largest customers represented 74.7% (2020:
84.9%) of the Group’s total revenue. The largest customer
accounted for 69.3% (2020: 81.2%) of the Group’s total revenue
and is the operator of VIP room, mass market hall and slot
machine hall who paid fee for the services rendered by the
Group for the Year.

During the Year, the aggregate amount of purchases and
services received attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers represented less than 30% of total purchases and
services received by the Group for the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
HPEEH

Major Customers and Suppliers

(continued)

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders
(to the knowledge of the Directors, owning more than 5% of the
Company’s issued Shares), had any beneficial interest in the
share capital of any of the above major customers and suppliers
of the Group.

Corporate Governance
Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
pages 33 to 59 of this annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest
practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, there
was sufficient public float of at least 25% of the Company’s
issued Shares as required under the Listing Rules.

Auditor
A resolution will be submitted to the 2021 AGM to re-appoint
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Luk Siu Man, Semon
Chairperson

Hong Kong , 22 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

e SEalat i

The Board is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance for the Company so as to ensure
“Accountability, Responsibility and Transparency” towards the
Shareholders, stakeholders, investors as well as employees of
the Company.

The Directors have adopted various policies to ensure
compliance with the code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) under Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules. During the Year, the Company had fully complied
with all the code provisions of the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

The Board

Board Composition

As at 31 March 2021, the Board comprised six Directors, with
one Non-executive Director who is also the Chairperson of the
Company, two Executive Directors and three INEDs. The Board
considers that this composition ensures a strong independent
element with a balance of power and influence between
individuals on the Board, which can effectively exercise
independent judgement. The biographies of the Directors are
set out on pages 15 and 16 of this annual report under the
“Biographies of Directors and Senior Management” section.

Chairperson and Chief Executive

Ms. Semon Luk has been appointed as the Chairperson since
2000 and provides leadership for the Board. With the support of
the company secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”),
she ensures that all Directors receive, in a timely manner,
adequate information and are properly briefed on issues arising
at board meeting. She is responsible for ensuring that the Board
works effectively and performs its responsibilities. She holds
meetings without the presence of Executive Directors with the
INEDs at least once a year.

Both Mr. Wong Chi Fai and Ms. Vanessa Fan are responsible
for the Group’s strategic planning, business growth and
development.
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The Board (continued)

Independent Non-executive Directors

The INEDs are all professionals with well-recognised experience
and expertise in legal and compliance, accounting or auditing
fields who contribute impartial view and make independent
judgment on issues to be discussed at Board meetings. They
are appointed for an initial term of one year and shall continue
thereafter on a yearly basis subject to early termination with
written notice being served by either party. The terms of the
INEDs are also subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
provision under the Bye-Laws of the Company.

The Company had received a confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs. Based on the annual review conducted
by the Nomination Committee, the Board considered each of
them to be independent by reference to the factors as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The INEDs had been expressly
identified as such in all corporate communications of the
Company that disclose the names of Directors.

Roles and Responsibilities of the Board

The Company is headed by the Board which is responsible
for the leadership, control and promotion of success of the
Group in the interest of the Shareholders by directing and
supervising its affairs and by formulating strategic directions
and monitoring the financial and management performance of
the Group.

Delegation to the Management

The management is led by the Executive Committee of the
Company (which comprises all the Executive Directors of the
Board) and has been delegated powers and authorities to carry
out the day-to-day management and operation of the Group,
formulate business policies and make decision on key business
issues. The Executive Committee shall have all powers and
authority of the Board except the following matters as set out in
a “Formal Schedule of matters reserved for and delegated by the
Board”:

e determining the Group’s objectives and strategies;

e approving annual and interim results and financial
reporting;

e declaring or recommending payment of dividends or other
distributions;

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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The Board (continued)
Delegation to the Management (continued)

approving major changes that require notification by
announcement under the Listing Rules;

approving publication of the announcement for notifiable
transactions under the Listing Rules;

approving non-exempted connected transactions/non-
exempted continuing connected transactions (other than
those transactions took place form time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing Rules;

approving proposed transactions requiring Shareholders’
approval as stipulated under the Listing Rules;

approving major capital restructuring and issue of new
securities of the Company;

approving the establishment of Board committees;

approving policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, including but not limited
to risk management policy, remuneration policy and
corporate governance policy;

approving financial assistance to Directors;

ensuring the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of
the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions; and

approving such other matters or transactions as specified
by the Board or as thought fit by the Committee or as
required by all applicable laws, rules and regulations from
time to time.
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The Board (continued)
Induction, Support and Professional

Development of Directors

All Directors have been given relevant guideline materials
regarding the duties and responsibilities of being a Director, the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to the Directors, duty
of disclosure of equity/business interest of the Group and such
induction materials will also be provided to newly appointed
Directors shortly upon their appointment as Directors. All
Directors have been updated on the latest developments
regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirement to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. There is a procedure
agreed by the Board to enable Directors, upon reasonable
request, to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses in order to assist
them to perform their duties to the Company.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
Code provision A.6.5 on Directors’ training. During the Year,
each Director had participated in continuous professional
development by attending seminars/workshops/reading
materials on the following topics to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills and provided a record of training to the
Company:

Name of Directors
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Topics on training covered

HREEA Jt i 2 2 3 I 32

Ms. Semon Luk (1) corporate governance
Pe 4+ PEER

Mr. Wong Chi Fai (2) finance

SRS s

Ms. Vanessa Fan (3) industry specific
UL+t GEXEL

Mr. Yu King Tin (4) regulatory

RER A BE

Ms. Susanna Kwan

B Lt

Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May
BEB AL
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The Board (continued)

Relationship between the Board Members

EREEG (4)
= 3 R H R Z B R

None of the members of the Board has any relationship & & & i 8 2 [H] A0 AT ] BAAR (G35 B4 85
(including financial, business, family or other material/relevant ¥ - K& s = A & K B BER) -
relations) among each other.

Directors’ Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in A\ ] O3 # 95 v] A8 & 1 3 2 A5 ] 35 AL 3 v
respect of any legal action against the Directors.

£ =AY
1 th R 2 B AR e o

Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment wHZ MDA
The attendance of Directors at the meetings during the Year is  A4F J8 3 55 i1y J§ & ok 2 4% DL S 0 F
set out below:

No. of meeting attended/held

LACE V& Srich et
Corporate
Audit Remuneration Nomination — Governance Executive General
Name of Directors Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee meeting
[ £33 EEE O KHEHE  FMZHE  RAZHE AEERZHE  WGZHE I3 |
Non-executive Director and FHLERRTR
Chairperson
Ms. Semon Luk e 41 5/5 11
Executive Directors WrES
Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Note 1) WL () 55 1N 2121 1n
Ms. Vanessa Fan (Note 2) ht (W) 55 1N i 21/21 17
Independent Non-executive LD £
Directors
Mr. Yu King Tin (Note 3) RERIAE (H3t3) 505 33 11 11 11
Ms. Susanna Kwan (Note 4) W% L (Hit4) 55 3/3 17 17 in!
Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Note 3) REBELL (Hits) 55 3/3 11 171 17
Total number of meetings held Bhgdz a8 5 3 1 1 1 2 1
Notes: Mt it
1. Chairman of Executive Committee 1. WHZEEgER
2. Chairperson of Corporate Governance Committee 2. DXERZRGLN
3. Chairman of Audit Committee 3. WHREOAELWR
4. Chairperson of Nomination Committee 4. RHZEEGEH
5. Chairperson of Remuneration Committee 5. WmMZEEE LR
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The Board (continued)
Directors’ Attendance and Time Commitment

(continued)

During the Year, the Chairperson held a meeting with INEDs
without the presence of Executive Directors in compliance with
code provision A.2.7 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company and
is satisfied that each Director had been spending sufficient time
in performing his/her responsibilities during the Year.

Board Meetings and Proceedings

Regular Board meetings were held at approximately quarterly
intervals. The Directors have access to the advice and services
of the Company Secretary and key officers of the company
secretarial team for ensuring that the Board procedures as well
as all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

With the assistance of the Company Secretary, the meeting
agenda is set by the Chairperson of the Board in consultation
with other Board members. Board meeting notice was sent
to the Directors at least 14 days prior to each regular Board
meeting. For all other board meetings, reasonable notice
was given. Board papers and related materials which provide
appropriate, accurate, clear complete and reliable information
are generally sent to all Directors and relevant committee
members at least 3 days before each Board meeting and Board
Committee meeting (on other agreed period) to enable the
Directors to make informed decisions.

Minutes of Board meetings and Board committee meetings
are drafted by the secretary of the meetings and recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered and decisions reached,
with draft and final versions being circulated to the Directors
for their comment and records respectively, within reasonable
time after the meetings are held. Originals of such minutes,
being kept by the Company Secretary, are open for inspection at
any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

If a Director has conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material,
the matter will be dealt with by a physical Board meeting rather
than a written resolution. That Director will abstain from voting
on the relevant Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/
her associates has a material interest and he/she shall not be
counted in the quorum present at the Board meeting. INEDs,
who, and whose close associates, have no material interest in
the transaction are present at that Board meeting.

SIS ARRAT]
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The Board (continued)

Board Committees

To assist the Board in execution of its duties and facilitate
effective management, certain functions of the Board have
been delegated by the Board to the Executive Committee, Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee
and Corporate Governance Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee and the majority members
of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
are INEDs. Clear written terms of reference of all the Board
Committees are given to the respective members of these
Committees. Details of the Board Committees are set out below:

1.

Executive Committee (set up on 25 November 2014)

The Executive Committee consists of all Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Wong Chi Fai (Chairman of the
Committee) and Ms. Vanessa Fan.

The primary duties of the Executive Committee are
(a) formulating business policies and making decision
(including entering into transactions) on matters relating
to the management and day-to-day operations of the
Company; (b) making and reviewing corporate/financial/
treasury planning, investment and operation strategy of
the Group; (c) discussing and approving any financial,
borrowing, charging and guarantee commitment to
be made or on behalf of the Group; (d) approving any
transactions, including discloseable transactions, exempted
connected transactions and non-exempted connected
transactions took place from time to time under the
master agreement(s) previously approved by the Board/
Shareholders (as the case may be) under the Listing Rules;
and (e) having all power and authorities of the Board except
those matters specifically reserved for the full Board as set
out in the “Formal Schedule on matters reserved for and
delegated by the Board” adopted by the Board from time to
time.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

2.

Audit Committee (set up on 15 September 2004)

The Audit Committee consists of three INEDs, namely Mr.
Yu King Tin (Chairman of the Committee), Ms. Susanna
Kwan and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May.

The specific written terms of reference of the Audit
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Audit Committee is
primarily responsible for (a) making recommendations to
the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and removal
of the external auditor; (b) reviewing and monitoring
the external auditor’s independence and objectivity
and effectiveness of the audit process; (¢) approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of external auditor;
and (d) reviewing financial information and overseeing the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control systems. The Audit Committee held three meetings
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Audit Committee
during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed with the management/finance personnel
and/or the external auditor the effectiveness of audit
process and the accounting policies and practices
adopted by the Group, the accuracy and fairness of
the annual financial statements for the financial year
ended 31 March 2020 (“Previous Year”) and the interim
consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2020;

ii. reviewed with senior management and finance personnel
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group during the Previous Year;

iii. performed annual review of the non-exempt continuing
connected transactions of the Group for the Previous
Year;

iv. recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of
external auditor at the 2020 annual general meeting
(“2020 AGM”); and

v. approved the audit plan for the Year, reviewed the
independence of the external auditor and approved its
engagement.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

3.

Remuneration Committee (set up on 11 July 2005)

The Remuneration Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May (Chairperson of the
Committee) and Mr. Yu King Tin, both being INEDs, and
Mr. Wong Chi Fai, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The Remuneration Committee
is primarily responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on (a) the Company’s policy and structure of
all remuneration of Directors and senior management;
(b) the remuneration packages of non-executive directors;
and (c) the specific remuneration packages of individual
Executive Directors and senior management. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the Year are set
out in note 10(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the
Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Remuneration
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i.  reviewed the Directors’ fees and made recommendation
to the Board; and

ii. reviewed the current remuneration structure/package
of the Executive Directors and senior management and
made recommendation to the Board to approve their
specific packages.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)

The Nomination Committee consists of three members,
namely Ms. Susanna Kwan (Chairperson of the Committee)
and Ms. Lai Ka Fung, May, both being INEDs, and Ms.
Vanessa Fan, being an Executive Director.

The specific written terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee is available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company. The primary duties of the
Nomination Committee are (a) reviewing the structure,
size, composition and diversity of the Board; (b) reviewing
the Board Diversity Policy; (c) reviewing the policy for
the nomination of Directors (“Nomination Policy”) and
identifying potential candidates for directorship; (d)
assessing the independence of INEDs; (e) reviewing the
time commitment of each Director in performing his/her
responsibilities; and (f) making recommendations to the
Board on the appointment, re-appointment, re-election or
re-designation of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the Year.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

4.

Nomination Committee (set up on 28 March 2012)
(continued)

A summary of the work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year is set out as follows:

i. reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity
of the Board,

ii. reviewed the independence of INEDs;

ili. reviewed the confirmation from the Directors on time
commitment in performing their duties as Directors;
and

iv. made recommendation the Board on the re-election of
Directors at the 2020 AGM.

Board Diversity Policy

As adopted by the Board, the Board Diversity Policy aims
to achieve diversity on the Board in the broadest sense in
order to have a balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives to the business nature of the Company.
Selection of candidates on the Board is based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, professional
experience, skill, knowledge and length of service. The
Nomination Committee will also assess the merits and
contribution of any Director proposed for re-election or any
candidate nominated to be appointed as Director that will
bring to the Board against the objective criteria, with due
regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board that would
complement the Company’ s corporate strategy.

Nomination Policy

The Company had adopted a written Nomination Policy
of the Group which aims at assisting the Nomination
Committee in identifying and nominating suitable
candidates for directorship based on the Board Diversity
Policy and sets out the nomination criteria, the nomination
procedures for (i) nominating candidate as new Director
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board; (ii) making
recommendation to Shareholders regarding any Director
proposed for election or re-election at general meeting;
and (iii) nomination by Shareholders on election of new
Director.
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The Board (continued)
Board Committees (continued)

5.

Corporate Governance Committee (set up on 28 March
2012)

The Corporate Governance Committee consists of five
members, namely Ms. Vanessa Fan (Chairperson of the
Committee), being an Executive Director, Mr. Yu King Tin
and Ms. Susanna Kwan, both being INEDs, a representative
from company secretarial function and a representative
from finance and accounts function.

The specific written terms of reference of the Corporate
Governance Committee is available on the website of the
Company. The primary duties of the Corporate Governance
Committee are (a) reviewing the policies and practices on
corporate governance of the Company (“CG Policy”) and
making recommendations to the Board; (b) reviewing and
monitoring the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements of
the Company; (c) developing, reviewing and monitoring
the code of conduct applicable to Directors and relevant
employees of the Group on dealings with the Company’s
securities; (d) reviewing and monitoring the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management; and (e) reviewing the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this report.
The Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting
during the Year.

A summary of the work performed by the Corporate
Governance Committee during the Year is set out as
follows:

i. reviewed the CG Policy and made recommendation to
the Board;

ii. reviewed the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements;

iii. reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

iv. reviewed the said code of conduct applicable to
Directors and relevant employees of the Group; and

v. reviewed the Company’ s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in Corporate Governance Report.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary whose appointment was approved by
the Board, plays an important role in supporting the Board for
ensuring good information flow within the Board and that the
Board policy and procedures are followed. She is responsible
for advising the Board on general duties and obligations of
Directors and good corporate governance issues, and has
facilitated induction and professional development of the
Directors. She has day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s
affairs. During the Year, the Company Secretary had duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules.

Securities Transaction of Directors

The Company has adopted EEH Securities Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions on no less exacting
terms than the required standards for securities dealings as set
out in the Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules regarding Model
Code for Securities Transactions of Directors of Listed Issuers
(“Model Code”). Having made specific enquiry to Directors, all
of them confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code and EEH
Securities Code throughout the Year.

Accountability and Audit

Financial Reporting

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities to prepare
the annual consolidated financial statements of the Group and
other financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules.
The management has provided all members of the Board with
monthly updates on internal consolidated financial statements
which give a balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’ s performance, position and prospects as at the reporting
date.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the
Year, the Board adopted appropriate accounting policies and
applied them consistently, made judgment and estimates that
are prudent and reasonable and ensured the consolidated
financial statements are prepared on a “going concern” basis
(with supporting assumptions or qualifications as necessary)
and showed a true view of the state of affairs of the Group for
the Year. The management had provided sufficient explanation
and information to the Board on the consolidated financial
statements to enable it to make an informed assessment of
the financial and other information put before it for approval.
The auditor of the Company had made a statement about their
reporting responsibilities in the Independent Auditor’ s Report.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
A. Goals and Objectives

Internal control is fundamental to the successful operation
and day-to-day running of a business and it assists a
company in achieving its business objectives. Internal
control policies and procedures within the Group are
with the primary objective of providing general guidance
and recommendations on a basic framework of risk
management and internal control systems (“Systems”).

A review has been conducted on (i) the Group’s internal
control measures and procedures covering all material
controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls; and (ii) risk management functions in the
principal subsidiaries of the Company for the Year as
follows:

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group establishes
and maintains appropriate and effective Systems. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

. Internal Control

(1) Governance Control
The control structure of the Systems is set out as
follows:

The Board
e responsible for the Systems and reviewing their
effectiveness;

e oversee the Systems on an ongoing basis with the
assistance of the Audit Committee;

* ensure maintenance of appropriate and effective
Systems;

e define management structure with clear lines of
responsibility and limit of authority; and

* determine the nature and extent of significant risk
that the Group is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives and formulate the Group’s risk
management strategies.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(1) Governance Control (continued)
Audit Committee

review and discuss the Systems with the management
annually to ensure that the management has
performed its duty to have effective Systems. This
discussion includes the adequacy of resources, staff
qualification and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

review the nature and extent of significant risks,
and the Group’s ability to respond to changes in
its business and the external environment;

review and discuss annually with significant
control failings or weaknesses that are identified
by the auditors; and

consider major findings on internal control
matters (if any) raised by external auditors and
make recommendations to the Board.

The management (includes heads of business units,
departments and divisions)

design, implement and monitor the Systems
properly and ensure the Systems are executed
effectively;

monitor risks and take measures to mitigate risks
in their day-to-day operations;

give prompt response to, and follow up the findings
on internal control matters raised by internal or
external auditors; and

provide confirmation to the Board on the
effectiveness of the Systems.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(1) Governance Control (continued)
Internal Audit Department

carry out the analysis and independent appraisal
of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Systems
in respect of all material controls, including
financial, operational and compliance aspects;

alert the management on the audit review findings or
irregularities and advise them on the implementation
of necessary steps and actions to enhance the internal
controls of the Group; and

report results of internal audit reviews and agreed
action plans to the Audit Committee and the Board
on regular basis.

(2) Operational Control
During the Year, the management is responsible for
analysing the control environment, identified risks
pertaining thereto, and implemented various controls
therein as follows:

i

ii.

Approach taken: The management conducts
interviews with relevant staff members, reviews
relevant documentation of the Systems and
evaluates findings of any deficiencies in the
design of the Group’s internal control system,
then provides recommendations for improvement
and assesses the effectiveness of implementation
of such recommendations, where appropriate.
The scope and findings of review on the Systems
will be reported to and reviewed by the Audit
Committee annually.

Procedure manuals and operational guidelines:
They are in place to safeguard the assets against
unauthorised use or disposition and ensuring
maintenance of proper accounting records that are
in compliance with the applicable laws, rules and
regulations for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and/or external
publication.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A
Annual Report 2020/2021 £

J B L e PR R B A (A

B. WaB&EmR ()
(1) BiBE (4)
1 B B AP

HuSRAGMAEREE (2
5B B Ra R 2
TR B AT N HEAT I AT BB

SR

[ 7 L R 9 A AR o A R
ANKRREAT Fy el B it oo 20 R
Do A7 By LA o 7 4 [ o) 0 B
] fR R s B

S 1h) A A% 2 B S R T
e R AL M A AR % R
T ZATE R o

(2) HEEHE
AR A B PR AR A PR ER
358 B AR I 2 s o JL B > S B e
B 2 JE B

ii.

Pt 4% 505 3+ B B B B
AT T R > I A B % 5F R AR
R B SO L Al A A (o] A 0
PR H P 8 B2 AT AT A
A B A Tl B A e M R
it B AT BR 2w 2 A M (i
W) o ¥R AF AR 0T B AY
B LR REEWESEZR
ol KE A o

B - I B I A5 41 51 - 2 il
%55 T B A 51 PR E > D
G oA KE P HE (8 ) B8 B> I i
DRI ST 0 9 3 BB R
AE TR B E At RC Bk AR AT
5% P Rt T R BB
AT B o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e et

Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(2) Operational Control (continued)

iii.

iv.

vi.

Vii.

Management information system and technology:
To control over the business activities, it allows
close tracking of various inputs and outputs of the
Group’ s business such as inventory, products and
customer relationship and human resources. It
also tracks audit trails in the authorisation system,
under which permissions and responsibility of
authorisation are clearly identified and adequate
records can be maintained in the Systems.

Reports and variance analysis: Reports and
analysis of each segment are conducted on regular
basis.

Information flow: The transparent information
flow alerts the management promptly of any
deviations. Benchmarking with historical database
and comparisons with the same also acts as a
detecting device for spotting unusual activities.

Safeguarding of assets: Surprise physical
count of cash, chips and client deposits held in
casino and coupons for casino are performed
by Income Audit Team of GEH and reviewed by
Internal Audit Department. To safeguard the
assets, CCTV and security systems are installed
in each money and chips exchange counter and
casino exit which are monitored by Security and
Surveillance Department. Insurance coverage on
the hotel properties is periodically reviewed by
the management for sufficiency, and to ensure
compliance with the terms and conditions of the
insurance policies.

Service quality control: Regular review on
operational systems of hotel and gaming business
segments to ensure the service quality, and
questionnaires are provided in different outlets
to welcome customers’ feedbacks for our service
improvement.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
(3) Financial Control

(4)

i. proper controls are in place for the recording of
complete, accurate and timely accounting and
management information;

ii. annual budget of hotel and gaming operations is
prepared and approved by the management before
being adopted;

iii. monthly financial statements are provided to all
Directors and senior management which give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, financial position and
prospects in sufficient details;

iv. regular reports on revenue, marker receivables’
ageing and debtors’ ageing and internal financial
reports are prepared to the management which
give a balanced and understandable assessment
of the Group’ s financial performance;

v. annual audit by external auditor is carried out to
ensure that the consolidated financial statements
are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, the Group’s
accounting policies and the applicable laws and
regulations; and

vi. daily available fund report is reviewed to monitor
the cash flows of the Group.

Compliance Control
The following policies and procedures are in place to
safeguard the compliance control:

i.  Systems and Procedures on Disclosure of Inside
Information to ensure, with the assistance of an
internal work team (if required), that any material
information which comes to the knowledge of
any one or more officers should be promptly
identified, assessed and escalated, where
appropriate, for the attention of the Board. The
Board shall make timely decisions on disclosure,
if necessary, and take appropriate measures to
preserve confidentiality of inside information until
proper dissemination of the inside information;
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

B. Internal Control (continued)
4) Compbance Control (continued)

i.

iii.

iv.

Policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements which shall be
reviewed and monitored regularly by the Corporate
Governance Committee as delegated by the Board,;

CCT Compliance Committee is established to
monitor, control and regularly review connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company and ensure proper compliance with
all relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules
and disclosure requirements;

Whistle-blowing policy for the employees of the
Group to raise concerns, in confidence, about
possible improprieties in financial reporting,
internal control or other matters. Such arrangement
will be reviewed by the Audit Committee which
ensures that proper arrangement is in place for fair
and independent investigation of the matters; and

Anti-money Laundering and Counterterrorist
Financing Policy and Procedures is established
to set out the general framework for combating
crime against money laundering and financing
of terrorism. It provides guideline to prevent
the Group’s employees and clients/customers/
suppliers/vendors/contractors from being misused
for money laundering, terrorist financing or other
financial crime and has set out some indications
of potentially suspicious transactions/activities for
employee’ reference.

(5) Review of Internal Control

Effectiveness of internal controls is tested by Internal
Audit Department regularly. Internal audit reviews and
agreed action plans should be reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board on timely basis.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

C. Risk Management
(1) Risk Management Process

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
measures and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to identify,
analyse, evaluate, respond, monitor and communicate
risks associated with any activity, function or process
within its scope of responsibility and authority. Risks
are evaluated by the Board and management based on
(i) the severity of the impact of the risks on the Group’s
finance and operations; and (ii) the probability and
frequency that the risks will occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage
the risk as follows:

e Risk elimination - the management may identify
and implement certain changes or controls that in
effect eliminate the risk entirely.

e Risk mitigation - the management may implement
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the
likelihood, velocity or severity of the risk to an
acceptable level or contingency plan for possible
loss scenarios.

* Risk control and monitoring - it involves making
decisions regarding which risks are acceptable and
how to address those that are not; accidents and
other situations involving loss or near-loss will be
investigated and properly documented as part of
the effort to manage risks.

* Risk retention - the management may decide
that the risk rating is low enough that the risk is
acceptable level and no action is required and the
risk will continue to be monitored as part of the
risk management program to ensure the level of
risk does not increase to an unacceptable level.

B 5 B 9 L el L
S T S LI B P
et -

ﬁlﬂ@ﬁ%i)ﬁﬁ(‘ﬁf&&%ﬁ%ﬂl

AT A AT~ WA R B
{72 BELAT: o] 35 &)~ ﬂﬁka%jmf?ﬁ%ﬁ
JEL e o T 2 MO PR AR R (1) ) B
BARLE M g EE R B
Joi T R (i) Bt 8 2 o MR B
A B R B AT REAL ©

R L gt R A > AS 22 FRE 4% BAT O
A R -

o JEURE N BR — A B AT e E JE
Jit 7 T 5 B oG A - 52 A DR BR
JE gz -

o VAR AL BE K F — A B Al E i
JE\ B 4% gt ) > B AE R B 2
AT RE P ~ 2 B P A
] 4 32K F > B0 T A G 1R
558 74 7 T 5 7 5% o

ol B B R W IR
JE gz JE RT3 Dol o el R B
AT 32 2 R B A B E AR
o R B 2 — W B R
i AR R R R R 2 O
At LA AT 30 A2 300 % S A7
o

o AR VB K F — 8 B E A e e
L B e A a7 A2 ) I B Ja
ez J& ] 2 52 /K Y- T BR BUAT:
o] 465 it 5 A 70 R\ B 8 B S ) 2
— 43 e A 29 A R\ B LA e
PR JE B A g E T 2 AN A $ 52 K

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A

Annual Report 2020/2021 £



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e et

Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies
Certain significant risks have been identified through
the process of risk identification and assessment.
Such significant risks of the Group together with their
respective key strategies/control measures are set out

below:

a) Changes in social, economic and political

conditions:

Changes and volatility in general economic
conditions caused by China-USA political/trade
disputes, and stringent policies implemented by
PRC Central Government and Macau Government
impacting hospitality and travel related activities
in Macau etc. Any more adverse change in one of
the above situations would have significant impact
to the Group’ s business.

Stay alert to changes in economic and market
conditions in mainland China or global economy
and adjust business strategic plans to cope with
these changes.

Explore opportunities to expand business or
market and broaden the Group’ s customer base,
for instance, in May 2021, the Group completed
the acquisition of the businesses in The Emperor
Hotel, The Unit Serviced Apartments and MORI
MORI Serviced Apartments from a connected
party which allows the Group to expand its
business coverage beyond Macau and widen
the income source with an extension of market
presence in Hong Kong hospitality sector.

While keeping high-quality hospitality services,
endeavor to control the expenses and manpower
or reallocate resources in an efficient manner.

Attend more roadshows which are held by
Macao Government Tourism Office in Mainland
China and Asia in order to enhance the brand
awareness of the Group’s hotels.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)

J B L e PR R B A (A

C. mkgEH ()

(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (continued)
b

Occurrence of disaster events:

Any “Act of God”, natural disaster (e.g. severe
typhoons or inclement weather) or outbreak of
contagious diseases such as Covid-19, SARS, Ebola
or Avian Flu happening could have adversely effect
on the Group’ s business and reputation.

e Ensure all safety measures as required by Hong
Kong and Macau governments are fully
implemented.

* Keep update on development of disaster events
and follow the instructions and guidance
given by Hong Kong and Macau governments
and other professional bodies such as the
Stock Exchange, the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries so as to
mitigate the impact of the events to the Group.

* Develop an emergency plan, organise proper
insurance and give regular training to our
staff in first aid and knowledge of hygiene and
sanitation as well as evacuation procedures to
deal with occurrence of these events.

e Create a natural disaster recovery plan which
includes recovery instructions, procedures
and a quick reference guide for departments
to use in order to respond and recover from
the disasters.

¢) Renewal of Renewal of SIM’s operating license

and services agreement:

The Group’s gaming business is solely relied
on SJM’s Concession Contract which has been
extended by Direccdo de Inspecc¢édo e Coordenacdo
de Jogos (“DICJ”) to 26 June 2022 and the services
agreement with SJM. Termination of the SJM’s
Concession Contract or the services agreement
with SJM for whatever reasons or the renewal
thereof is not granted to or made by SJM or
unfavourable change in the terms of the services
agreement would have impact on the gaming
business of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (continued)
¢) Renewal of Renewal of SIM’s operating license

and services agreement: (continued)
e Has concluded with SJM to extend the services
agreement until 26 June 2022.

e Stay alert to the policy and government practice
and the industrial practices and make changes
to the existing business plans or strategies, as
and when appropriate.

* Keep close communications with SJM in this
respect and will kick off the negotiation with
SIM before the expiry of the services agreement,
as and when appropriate.

d) Keen competition in hotel and gaming industry:

Increased competition in hotel and gaming
industry in Macau due to opening of more luxury
hotels by competitors as well as increasing in
numbers of VIP rooms, gaming tables and slot
machines from existing casinos and among
other Asian countries. No assurance that the
growth of Macau’s tourism industry would
increase in line with or outpace the supply of
hotel accommodation, casino gaming tables and
slot machines and this could adversely affect the
Group’ s business.

* FEnlarge and expand the footprint of the Group
in sourcing hotel patrons.

e Devote to provide the best personalised service
to the guests in order to give them a memorable
experience; thereby differentiating GEH from
other hotels and enabling them to make GEH
be their first choice when they come back to
Macau.

* Cooperate with travel agencies and airline
companies to develop long-haul visitor
market.

e Launch promotions featuring GEH’ s excellent
location to attract guests to extend length of
overnight stay, integrating with local tourism
resources, especially World Cultural Heritage
scenic spots.

e Improve marketing strategy and enhance
promotions and publicities from time to
time in order to encourage existing gaming
patrons to come back to GEH and attract new
customers around the world.
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Risk Management and Internal Control

(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (continued)

e) Anti-money laundering (“AML”):
Non-compliance with applicable AML laws
would adversely affect the Group’s business and
reputation.

£

Develop and/or continuously review the AML
compliance policy and procedures to ensure
they remain up-to-date and meet all regulatory
requirements.

Comply with the reporting and compliance
procedures as request by DICJ or the
compliance department of SJM.

Regular internal audit review to ensure
adequacy of internal control procedures as

well as being carried out effectively.

Give sufficient regular training to the staff.

Credit risk on advances to gaming patrons on
unsecured basis:

Increasing competition for gaming patrons might
create pressure to extend credit on unsecured basis
to these gaming patrons which would increase
exposure to credit risk.

Assess the credit worthiness of customers to
ensure that credits are made to parties with
good credit history and a good history of
performance records.

Regularly monitor the activities of individual
credit account for the management to decide if
the credit facility shall be continued, changed
or cancelled.

Delegate a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approvals, and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-
up action is taken to recover overdue debts.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
(continued)

C. Risk Management (continued)
(2) Signiticant Risks and Strategies (continued)
1)  Credit risk on advances to gaming patrons on
unsecured basis: (continued)

e Perform impairment assessment under expected
credit losses (“ECL”) model upon application
of HKFRS 9 on trade balances individually.
The management assessed the ECL for trade
receivables as at 31 March 2021 after considering
the probability of default of those debtors based
on historical credit loss experience, and all
available forward looking information, including
but not limited to economic outlook of Macau
and subsequent settlement of these customers.

D. Management Confirmation

The Board acknowledged that it had received a confirmation
from the management on the effectiveness of the Systems
of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee and the
Board, upon reviewing the Systems, were not aware of any
significant issues that would have an adverse impact on
the effectiveness and adequacy of the Group’s operational,
financial and compliance areas of the Systems.

Dividend Policy

The Company had adopted a written dividend policy setting
out the principles for the Board to determine appropriate
amount of dividend to be distributed to the Shareholders. The
Company intends to provide Shareholders with regular interim
and final dividends (as the case may be) based on the earnings
attributable to its Shareholders after taking into consideration
of the factors stated in the policy, including inter alia, (i) cash
flow requirements for business operations; (ii) cash available,
financial liabilities and capital commitment; (iii) market
environment and challenges; and (iv) future development
and investment opportunities. The declaration of dividends
or recommendation on such payment shall be subject to all
applicable laws, rules and regulations including but not limited
to the Listing Rules, the applicable laws of Bermuda and the
memorandum and bye-laws of the Company.
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Communication with Shareholders

The Company had established a shareholders’ communication
policy and shall review it on a regular basis to ensure
its effectiveness. The Company communicates with the
Shareholders and/or potential investors mainly in the following
ways: (a) the holding of annual general meetings (“AGM”)
and special general meetings (“SGM”), if any, which may be
convened for specific purposes to provide opportunities for the
Shareholders to communicate directly with the Board; (b) the
publication of announcements, annual reports, interim reports
and/or circulars as required under the Listing Rules and press
releases providing updated information of the Group; (c) the
availability of latest information of the Group in the Company’ s
website at https://www.emp296.com; (d) the holding of press
conference(s) from time to time; and (e) meeting with investors
and analysts on a regular basis and participating in investor
road show and sector conference.

There is regular dialogue with institutional Shareholders and
general presentations are made when financial results are
announced. Shareholders and investors are welcome to visit
the Company’ s website to raise enquiries through our Investor
Relations Department whose contact details are available on the
Company’s website and the “Corporate Information and Key
Dates” section of this annual report.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
substantial separate issues, including re-election of retiring
Directors. The Company’s notice to Shareholders for the 2020
AGM was sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting and notices of other general meetings were
sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business days before the
meetings.

The Chairperson of the 2020 AGM and chairperson/members of
the Board Committee and the external auditor had also attended
the 2020 AGM to answer questions from the Shareholders. With
the assistance of the Company Secretary, the Chairperson of
the meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll
during the meeting.

Shareholders’ Rights

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the Shareholders
as required to be disclosed pursuant to the CG Code.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Right to Convene/Call a General Meetings
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and Bye-laws
of the Company, Shareholder(s) holding at the date of the
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth (10%) of the
paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting
at general meetings of the Company shall have the right to
submit a written requisition requiring a SGM to be called by
the Board. The written requisition (a) must state the object(s) of
the meeting, and (b) must be signed by the requisitionists and
deposited at the principal place of business of the Company
in Hong Kong for attention of the Company Secretary, and
may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists. Such requisitions will be verified
with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar and
upon its confirmation that the requisition is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene a
SGM by serving sufficient notice to all Shareholders. On the
contrary, if the requisition has been verified as not in order, the
requisitionists will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
the SGM will not be convened as requested.

If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of a valid requisition proceed duly to convene a SGM
for a day not more than two months after the date of deposit
of a proper requisition, the requisitionists or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a SGM, but any SGM so
convened shall not be held after the expiration of 3 months
from the said date of deposit of the requisition. In addition,
such meeting convened by the requisitionists shall be convened
in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which
meetings are to be convened by Board.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meeting
Pursuant to the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, either any
number of the registered Shareholders holding not less than
one-twentieth (5%) of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
(“Requisitionists”), or not less than 100 of such registered
Shareholders, can request the Company in writing to (a) give
to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next general
meeting notice of any resolution which may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and (b) circulate
to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any general meeting
any statement of not more than 1,000 words with respect to the
matter referred to in any proposed resolution or the business
to be dealt with at that meeting. The requisition signed by all
the Requisitionists must be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong with a sum reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company s relevant expenses and not
less than six weeks before the meeting in case of a requisition
requiring notice of a resolution or not less than one week before
the meeting in the case of any other requisition. Provided that
an AGM is called for a date six weeks or less after the requisition
has been deposited, such requisition though not deposited
within the time required shall be deemed to have been properly
deposited for the purposes thereof.
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Shareholders’ Rights (continued)

Proposing a Person for Election as a Director

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director are available for viewing on the Company’s
website.

Enquiries from Shareholders

Shareholders should direct their enquiries about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share
Registrar, Tricor Secretaries Limited. Other Shareholders’
enquiries can be directed to the Investor Relations Department
of the Company.

Constitutional Documents
There is no significant change in the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

Auditor’ s Independence and

Remuneration

The Audit Committee is mandated to review and monitor the
independence of the auditor to ensure objectivity and the
effectiveness of the audit process of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with applicable standards. Members
of the Audit Committee were of the view that the Company’ s
auditor, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) is
independent and has recommended the Board to re-appoint it
as the Company’s auditor at the 2021 AGM. During the Year,
Deloitte has rendered audit services and certain non-audit
services to the Group and the remuneration paid/payable to it
by the Company is set out as follows:

Services rendered e B2 436 IR 25
Audit services % B
Non-audit services IEAZ BT

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A
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Fees paid/payable
SNE ) IEE Y]
HK$’ 000

T

3,332
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Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EMPEROR ENTERTAINMENT
HOTEL LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 67 to 162, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
B S 3 A% R

Valuation of investment properties

BEWEZME

We identified the valuation of investment properties
as a key audit matter due to the significant
assumptions and judgments involved in the
valuation as set out in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

AAT W E PG W) 2 Ak (B A% — TE B B A A% R O SR
jﬁ-ﬂjiégﬁ%é‘ﬂﬂ%i&%%%ﬂt%%ﬁ’ﬁfﬁ?ﬁ&ﬁkﬁi%&&
Yl Er

As disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group’ s investment properties held
for rental under operating leases of commercial
properties in Macau amounted to HK$624,500,000
as at 31 March 2021. Fair value losses of investment
properties of HK$36,000,000 were recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31
March 2021.

W0 A A B B R R BN RE 148 4 8% > R 20214E3 A 31
Hoo B4 AR 5 v S S A A B TR M A 1
L i 2 $% & W 26 £5624,500,0009 7C - 8 & W 20 7t
18 (H > f516136,000,000%5 7C B i # £20214E3 131 H 1E
R 2 AR TR i S A 2 TR A i R A R

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties was estimated based on a valuation on
these properties conducted by an independent firm
of qualified professional property valuers using
property valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and assumptions of market
conditions. The relevant inputs and conditions
include comparable market transactions with
adjustments to reflect different locations or
conditions, and changes in market conditions
arising from the ongoing coronavirus disease
(“Covid-19”) pandemic.

AN AR RS R I SRR SRR . BRI IREY
SEON SUIEAE TS ARE — R S A SE ) SE AN (AT
DLW SERG (43 (v b B 3 R A AT 3B i A B
B UL 2 ARk ) S a% W S AT AN (AT A FE o AH BH
N B R AG A6, 455 R AT LR T35 32 5 DA S B R [R]
Mo 158 SR > LA KGR IR B 5 6 i 3 1 ) 2 15 45 A
L ECGANRUR X

S REPORT

B S I (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
ASAT 0 o iE B ) SR A % O

Our procedures in relation to evaluating the
appropriateness of the valuation of investment
properties included:

AT AT AL BB W S (E 2 1 2 R A

e Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the independent qualified
professional property valuers;
iﬁﬁ%jé\gi‘%%%%%ﬁﬁ%Zﬁ‘ﬁ?‘ [ANSES

e Understanding the valuation basis, methodology
used and underlying assumptions applied
by holding discussion with the independent
qualified professional property valuers; and
L 57 A% BE W) SE A (B AT W e > LA TR T
F AR ~ J5 ik OARBR IR I

* Assessing the reasonableness of the valuation

conducted by the independent qualified
professional property valuers by (i) checking
details of the significant unobservable inputs
including comparable market unit rate of other
similar properties; and (ii) comparing to relevant
market information for the assumptions of market
conditions which include comparable market
transactions with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions, and changes in market
conditions arising from the ongoing Covid-19
pandemic.
A (1) 20 7 A F R A T Bl A B (B4 A
L) 26 2 AT LS 35 B ) 5 K (i) EE T A T Pl 2 i
5 FA) R B T 5 R (4 R R L T 5 B LA
AN ] i [t S5 AG A1 Be T6 s B 95 17 4 AR A B 2 i LA
B)) o AT S G B AR FE Y SE A (BRI T AT 2 A
Z A
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
B 3 7 A% R

BH St A A% R (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
ASAT 0 o JiE B ) SR A % O

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to Inn

Hotel Macau

Sl L1 e 0 0 A R 2 0 S MR B % P B A DAL A

We have identified the impairment assessment
of property, plant and equipment and right-of-
use assets related to Inn Hotel Macau, which
represent the hotel property of Inn Hotel Macau
and the leasehold land where Inn Hotel Macau
is situated respectively (collectively the “Inn
Hotel Properties”) as a key audit matter due to
the significant level of management judgment
involved to determine the recoverable amount of
the Inn Hotel Properties in view of an impairment
indicator of the Inn Hotel Properties arising from
a change in market conditions arising from the
ongoing Covid-19 pandemic.

ASAT e 72 LFY R T i 2 R B ) 3 - W R R B
FRE S (RR23 Fll 25 R  tH S i 2 379 i 3 B L
SR AR B 7 i 2 T - (S AE TRl E W) )
AR AT % — T S A T T i R B R
B 47 AR B T R L B ) 5 | BRI T ) 3
AR AR BT R > e T T i ) 2 2 nT i < v
Mg 2 BRI o

As disclosed in notes 15 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements, as at 31 March 2021, the
Inn Hotel Properties comprise a hotel property
with a carrying amount of HK$252,659,000 and
a leasehold land with a carrying amount of
HK$258,982,000, respectively. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, no impairment loss
has to be recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties
as at 31 March 2021.

AN A G B S W R I RE 1S B L6 BT 4 7% > 1R 20214F3 1 31
H o Tt 1 9 3 43 Bl 6, 5 R 11 {B1252,659, 0005 7T 2
T 35 4 3 Fo B 11 {#258,982,000% e 2 AL T o
A EIE SRy R20214E3 H 31 H - At I ik ) 251
e e 5 (L Ml 41 o
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Our procedures in relation to the impairment
assessment of the Inn Hotel Properties included:

AT A Bl B 30 1 ) S B AT A AR LA

ST A PR AT

Understanding the impairment assessment
process of the Group with involvement of the
independent qualified professional valuers
engaged by the Company to estimate the
recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties;
N VAR P AT ¥ i Y R
THIP W3 2 AT el B R T HEAT B AR B (R T A
eI 5

Evaluating the competence, capabilities
and objectivity of the independent qualified
professional valuers;

FEAE R ST B M BN (AT 2 A~ BE ) BB

Assessing the reasonableness of the key
assumptions adopted by the management in
determining the fair value less costs of disposal of
the Inn Hotel Properties, including the estimated
operating income and capitalisation rate with
regards to the change in market conditions for
Covid-19, with involvement of our valuation
specialists; and
Al L A R R T O ) 3 2 O AR R 4 A
$ﬁ%%Z£E% B2 A B > B4 BRORT R A B 2 T
DUSE B A B 2 A FHACE A B AL W AT 2
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matters
B S 3 A% R

B S I (A

How our audit addressed the key audit matters
ASAT 0 o iE B ) SR A % O

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets related to Inn

Hotel Macau (continued)

SEL L1 e 0 0 A R 2 0 S AR i o P R S AL A (A

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial e
statements, an impairment assessment of the Inn
Hotel Properties is performed by comparing the
recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties
to its carrying value as at 31 March 2021. The
recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties
is estimated at the fair value less costs of disposal
using property valuation techniques with
significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
of market conditions including operating income
and capitalisation rate, based on the valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified
professional valuers and approved by the directors
of the Company.

AR A T TS i 3R B AT B R > I B ) 3 2
(L AT i 775 35 A LU R 375 1 49 S iR 20214F3 H 31 H 2
T 5[] < B EL R TR (R0 AT o B P O 4 3 2 R i)
BRETIMGE BN A E R AOE K L A B EEAN
(ELRIAT HEAT Al (8 - o R 3 ORAS 3L i A i e
ML 2 AR (RSB IR A S E AL ) 2 W) 24k E
BT > $220 FofE (B B AR At o

Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A

Evaluating the reasonableness of the estimated
operating income by comparing the estimated
operating income with the historical and actual
performance of the Inn Hotel Properties.
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Responsibilities of Directors and
Those Charged with Governance for
the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’ s financial reporting process.

Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

* TEvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Auditor’ s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’ s report is Kwok Lai Sheung.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
22 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
for o TR 2k B LAt e i A2

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &
Revenue A
Contracts with customers ‘EEH 5(a)
Leases & 5(b)
Total revenue A
Cost of sales 5B LA
Cost of hotel and gaming operations )5 S R 05 2 AR
Gross (loss) profit (BHH) EBAH
Other income HABYA
Other loss Ho A 48 7
Impairment allowance reversed 5 5 REMGH 3 1] 2
for trade receivables AR
Fair value changes of investment BEYEAREEZ
properties )
Selling and marketing expenses S8 BTl 3 e A
Administrative expenses fTE A
Finance costs HA B 1 8
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLHT (48 ) i A 9
Taxation credit it 7 (] 5% 11
(Loss) profit for the year I (EHE) A
Other comprehensive income Hofte 2Tl g (B 3)
(expense
Items that may be reclassified A% ] GE B A E
subsequently to profit or loss: A a HIIHH -
Fair value changes of debt 37 8 FL A A TR ik
instruments at fair value through AREEZEE TR
other comprehensive income ZARMEEEES)
Reclassification adjustments HR S 978 20 At 22 T W A
for amount transferred to profit whE S A E 2 8
or loss upon disposal of debt THE MR a2
instruments at fair value through T R S
other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive expense A JE FA 4 T BA 3
for the year
Total comprehensive (expense) AF A TE (BH SZ) 0 an AR AH
income for the year
(Loss) profit for the year JEAG AF B (Jes 18 Vi 1) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NSE ZSDN
Non-controlling interests FEPE IR 2
Total comprehensive (expense) JRE A 4F B2 A T (B 32) Wi
income for the year attributable to: Xk
Owners of the Company EN/NE 2PN
Non-controlling interests FEFE I A
(Loss) earnings per share M (E18) &A1
Basic FEA 13
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287,167
14,688

301,855
(16,791)
(388,507)

(103,443)
60,488
(5,064)

99

(36,000)
(58,987)
(160,185)
(1,235)

(304,327)
79,878

(224,449)

(3,270)
(2,416)

(226,865)

(177,576)
(46,873)

(224,449)

(180,175)
(46,690)

(226,865)

HK$(0.15)i 7T

1,120,106
23,124

1,143,230
(33,783)
495,297

614,150
96,667
(7,661)

385

(36,400)
(212,361)

(245,739)
2,334

206,707
75,738

282,445

(4,721)

4,009
712

281,733

263,915
18,530

282,445

263,345
18,388

281,733

HK$0.21# 5T
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o CON SOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
- ERA MBI

2021463/ 31 H

At 31 March 2021

Non-current assets FE T E) &
Investment properties PEY) 14 624,500 660,500
Property, plant and equipment ERE S 1Y &l 15 1,140,345 1,214,068
Right-of-use assets i 1M 16 459,271 479,393
Debt instruments at fair value 37 4t JFL A A THT A A
through other comprehensive AIEAREEZ
income s LA 17
Deposits paid for acquisition of il ) S B R
property, plant and equipment Z e ARl 12,712
Pledged bank deposit TSR AT A 3K 20 63,000
Goodwill A 18 110,960
2,410,788
Current assets ) A
Inventories e 11,738 15,070
Trade and other receivables E 5y F HoAh BE U 3K 19 169,271 156,495
Debt instruments at fair value 775 348 L Ath, A TR A 2
through other comprehensive AIEAREEZ
income BT A 17 - 46,415
Pledged bank deposit C A SRAT A7 3K 20 353 348
Short-term bank deposits SR T A7 3K 20 1,415,665 980,656
Bank balances and cash SRAT S B R B 20 1,861,052 2,563,308
3,458,079
Current liabilities B AR
Trade and other payables B 5y B FoAth EAT 3K 21 127,257 140,214
Amount due to a fellow subsidiary — ][] 2R B g 2 )
I 22 3,137 7,377
Amounts due to non-controlling — [BT a2 /] 2
interests of a subsidiary I £ TBOHE 4 3K IH 23 39,000 39,000
Taxation payable JREA Fd I 186,641 254,146
Lease liabilities T A 24 1,234 2,936
357,269
Net current assets i) A 3,100,810
Total assets less current liabilities AR WO ) BUAR 5,511,598
Non-current liabilities I Ui H) B
Lease liabilities TH & A fE 24 26,110
Deferred taxation A SiE B IH 25 88,233
114,343
Net assets AT 5,397,255 5,706,999
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION . E
Er MBIk DL ¥

[ J
At 31 March 2021 B20214£3/131 H -
 J
Capital and reserves
Share capital JBeA 26 121
Reserves fiti 4,433,573
Equity attributable to owners of A F AN AL 2
the Company 4,433,694 4,696,748 °
Non-controlling interests 2 I HE 4 29 963,561 1,010,251 o
[ J
Total equity 25 405 5,397,255 5,706,999 . ©
[
[ J
The consolidated financial statements on pages 67 to 162 were #567H £ H162E ik 2 E A MBMEC K o
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on  20214F6 122 H 48 3 H & it o XA HETIHE > 36 o ©
22 June 2021 and are signed on its behalf by: oA R ARG E o
[ J
.. °
[ J
( J
Wong Chi Fai Fan Man Seung, Vanessa
Director Director
#HH HE
[ J
( J
° [ J
- [
[
- [
[ J
[
- [ J
O. °
[ J
[ J
[ J
° [ J
- [
[
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A @ N °
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- - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
ORI

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &
[ J
[ ]
[ ]
°. A1 April 2019 094 0 B U 3169 W 6% 3T ATEI8 IR 5L
[
PP Profit for the year FERA - - - - - - - 263915 263915 18,530 28,445
Fair value changes of debt instruments — E# A2 lE &
oo at fair value through other MEEZEHIAZ
o0 comprehensive income MEERS - - - - (3,7 - - - 3m) (94) (47
o o Reclassification adjustments foramount i FiEE K fb 2 it &
transferred to profit or loss upon MBE KHLAR
oo disposal of debt instruments at HREREZENNM
o0 fair value through other Bl s
PP comprehensive income - - - - 3207 - - - 307 802 4,009
e Total comprehensive (expense) income  SFHE2TH (F0) ii 4%
P for the year - - - - (570) - - 263315 263,345 18,388 281733
g Ordinary shares repurchased and VG
cancelled fnote 26) (H325) 0 3 (868 (38639 (38.638)
2019 final divdend paid ERSERSRE G089 (6,29 67,15)
2020 interim dividend paid BIR020FH A (37,009) (37,009) (37,049)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A31LH 436,765 24,582 3834759 4696748 1,010,251
Loss for the year FEER - - (171576)  (177,576) 46,873)
Fair value changes of debt instruments @2 FlitE
at fair value through other MRREZEETAL
comprehensive income LMEEES
- Reclassification adjustments for amount i & @A AT itz
transferred to profit or loss upon MREEZEH AR
N disposal of debt instruments at HREBEZENM
o ® fair value through other AELH
o0 comprehensive income (3,283)
@ % Total comprehensive expense SRR AR
o0 for the year (177576)  (180,175)
@ @ Ordinary shares repurchased and T R AR
P cancelled (nofe 26) (H32) (27,821) (27,821)
- 2020 final dividend paid EIR020FAMKE 36,833) (36,833)
C 0 interim dividend peid BRI (8225 (18225
o o0
PYPS At 31 March 2021 JR0214E3A3IH 436,765 3,574,304 4,433,694
 J
° Note: The other reserve of the Group arose from acquisition of additional Mgt : 7 4 [ o Ath % 45 25 R 20194E3 H 31 H 1k 4F
interests in a non-wholly owned subsidiary from non-controlling I 42 JBOHE it i — T A O O 2 ) 2
interests during the year ended 31 March 2019. SR iR T A o
[ ]
]
[ I J
(I ]
e o
[ N J
PPN Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %2347 5 AR /AR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS ) E
G BB A X

[ J
For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ‘. o
 J
Cash flows from operating activities A& KL B 2 B A
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLHT (548 ) i A (304,327) 206,707
Adjustments for: i #
Interest income FLE A (54,560) (94,753)
Interest expenses FE S 994 1,031
Fair value changes of investment BEY A REEZ ) N
properties 36,000 36,400 . ©
Impairment allowance reversed 5 5 RG] 2 -
for trade receivables ERER T (99) (385) . ©
Unrealised exchange gain o 5 B B S A 4 - (1,134) . ©
Depreciation of property, Y2k - kS Kkt 2 I8 o
plant and equipment 94,372 98,543
Depreciation of right-of-use assets i M E 2 T 85 20,122 19,486
(Gain) loss on disposal of debt H 5 9 2t Al 2 T W A o
instruments at fair value through A REEZES o’
other comprehensive income THZ (k) 8 (3,270) 4,009 °
Covid-19-related rent concession o e 9 2 A B FH 4 R (545) -
Loss on disposal/write-off of Y M B I
property, plant and equipment 2 11 81
Operating cash flows before Rt EEEAR BB 2
movements in working capital R - ST i (211,302) 269,985
Decrease (increase) in inventories R Z WD (3n) 3,332 (829)
(Increase) decrease in trade and B 5 Je FoAh RE UK 2
other receivables (Ba ) Wb (9,379) 91,151
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 B FoAh REAS R 2 WD (11,345) (50,152) °
(Decrease) increase in amount due to R — [H1 7] 2 Bt J8§ 2 7 sk E 2 .
a fellow subsidiary ) #m (4,240) 3,447 .' -
Cash (used in) generated from g () g2 Bl o *
operations (232,934) 313,602 .
Macau Complementary Tax paid B S0 Y B 754 7E Bl (37) -
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded TR B AR - 20 . °
[ J
Net cash (used in) from operating KgimE () gz ® o
activities B4 VB (232,971) 313,620 .
{ ]
[ J
[ J
° [ J
° [ J
- [
[
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A N °
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- [ J
- [ J



{ I
[ N J
[ N

- - CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
O BABAIR R

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &

Cash flows from investing activities A& H %G B 2 B A
Withdrawal of short-term bank PRI I BRAT AE 3K
deposits 1,119,599 818,781
Proceeds from disposal of debt H B 75 3 JFC At 2 AT Ui 2
° instruments at fair value through FHE A B 2
° other comprehensive income THZ g0 81,704 390,583
o0 Interest received B FILE 52,786 97,046
o Proceeds from disposal of property, GIREYE SN S & d P
o plant and equipment RCEe 265 51
oo Placement of short-term bank FEN B HASRAT A7 3K
oo deposits (1,554,608) (1,498,775)
oo Placement of pledged bank deposits A E R RT3 (63,005) (1,598)
L Acquisition of property, plant and W ) 3 - B T A
oo equipment (11,105) (61,476)
e Deposits paid for acquisition of W ) 3 - B Kt 2
R - property, plant and equipment e (9,058) (13,898)
Withdrawal of a pledged bank PRI E AR BT 7K
deposit - 45,290
Acquisition of debt instruments at S 3 A EL A 4 T WA 4
fair value through other FHEAREME TR
comprehensive income - (11,718)
Net cash used in investing activities REEEH I HZ BT (383,422) (235,714)
Cash flows from financing activities A E R T ) 2 B
° Dividends paid IR E (55,058) (104,267)
° Payment on repurchase of shares M [ B0y 2 A5 3 (27,724) (38,513)
oo Transaction costs attributable to I ] 1% 3 2 AR 2 32 5 AR
o repurchase of shares 97) (125)
o Repayments of lease liabilities BB G & (1,990) (1,607)
o Interest paid SERRIPES (994) (1,031)
o Repayments to non-controlling R — M A R 2
o interests of a subsidiary FEFE Tl HE A K - (7,200)
[ N )
. . _Cash used in financing activities il I o T 2 B (85,863) (152,743)
.. Net decrease in cash and cash B K Bl 5B 2 Wb
o equivalents (702,256) (74,835)
Cash and cash equivalents at the EHIAY) 2 Bl R BLE S EY
beginning of the reporting period 2,563,308 2,638,143
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of ~ 2K Z B & KB E&SEY >
the reporting period, representing RIERAT 45 fr e B <
bank balances and cash 1,861,052 2,563,308
[ ]
[ ]
P
[ AN J
® o
[ I J
PR Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 184475 15 AR /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

— & R

1. General Information

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited (the “Company”)
is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The Company’ s immediate holding company is
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Holdings Limited, a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The
intermediate holding company of the Company is Emperor
International Holdings Limited (“Emperor International”),
a company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability,
the shares of which are also listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of
the Company is Albert Yeung Holdings Limited, a limited
liability company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
which is in turn held by First Trust Services GmbH, being
the trustee of The Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY
Trust”), the founder and settlor of which is Dr. Yeung Sau
Shing, Albert (“Dr. Albert Yeung”). The addresses of the
registered office and principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information and
Key Dates” section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 38.

e 2 G E AR A A (RN ) 5
— [HAE A R G ML 2 R A BR
o AR A A W A 22 5 BT A R T
(M2 BT J) AR T« AN Rl 2 B
JBe 2 ) o i 2 B S R PR IO PR 7] (TR
ML 2 ARAF) A NFEZ
Ja T I 2y ) O e 5 R (BB ) AT RR
ARG -30 | SED/ N 2F= iRl A
ZHBRAT) - 5% A B Z Ay IR B A2
Bt E AR BT o AN ] 2 B B HE IR A E S
1 3 B SEHE A BR 2> ®) (O % J IR &
S SRR 2 A RAF) - #% 2wl
Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust ([ AY
Trust |) 25 #E AFirst Trust Services
GmbHFFH » AY Trustz 832 A K& B &
By N (T ]) AR
A G K R S 2 ik e
AR Z A FER R EE ] —

BRA BRI LT ([#n]) ()
BARNFZINEEE M) 24

AN T Jy— T BB AR B 8 A o T
J& 2~ F 2 RS R K EE38
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

2. Application of New and 2. JE R 0 S S0 5T A g

Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards

(“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) has applied the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2020 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

The application of the Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year had no material
impact on the Group’s financial positions and performance
for the current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set
out in these consolidated financial statements.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
Annual Report 2020/2021 43
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

2. JE P B 8 B 5845 5T A vk B
B o B (17 98 0 %
e e ) (A7)

5 08 FL G AR 2 3k 2 o 4 I 58
5 5T 7 v B e o Y

A% S5 I 0 R T DA LB 0L 0% R
HEB 2 AT B T e T i T

2. Application of New and
Amendments to Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue

but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective:

HKEFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and T B o R R G A K
the related Amendments* 1798 AH BB ET
Amendments to Reference to the Conceptual TR O e MESRE R R 5
HKFRS 3 Framework® H3GE 2 EFT
Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark Tk B R MR R SRR AE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, Reform - Phase 2! o9t - HuE g At — 55 PR B
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 HEFI| 2530958
U S 4t e )
BT U BB
s e HI BB 455
v S 4t e )
W69 2 BT
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of T B i R BOEE KOS
and HKAS 28 Assets between an F109E R Fls gt AREEE
Investor and its Associate HERE2898 2 BRT MM
or Joint Venture® O g
HES
Amendment to HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Fs BB e BRI 20214F6 130 H
Concessions beyond FlesR 2 ERT 78 3% el 9 B
30 June 20212 B 2 FH 4
15 2
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities Fs gD i L
as Current or Non-current 12 ERT (2020) A B i
and related amendments B ol IE i H
to Hong Kong BB
Interpretation 5 (2020)* BB T A

Amendments to HKAS 1

Disclosure of Accounting

A E s ERELIE gRtEUR

and HKFRS Practice Policies? B A s TS R P
Statement 2 E HI A S 1 1)
25k 2 1EHT

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

2. Application of New and 2. W JH B0 0 B SR 45 ] & v
Amendments to Hong Kong 5 ok Y QN (3 o B 55

Financial Reporting Standards el gl l) (4E)
“ ” .
("HKFRSs") (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue 08 A 1L 1 oA A 2 2 3 4 e 58
but not yet effective (continued) 16 5T A ok S 5 o R LN (A
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting W EEER TRtlist
Estimates* HEZAEHT E F=
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets FE e Y—2E G A
and Liabilities arising 1298 2 AR B 7 A
from a Single Transaction* A [ ) A S B
JE*
Amendments to HKAS 16~ Property, Plant and s g wt e Al UE R S0 9
Equipment - Proceeds 169k 2 EwT A — e
before Intended Use? i
Jir 15 SRS
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of FsEEtER S A
Fulfilling a Contract? HITHRZAEHT —BITEH
Z AR
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to T B MR 20184F 2220204
HKFRSs 2018 - 2020° ZAERT r s I B
W QI 2 AR
o

R20214F1 A 1 H 2 42 il i 47 B2 10 1] 242 2%
R20214F4 A 1 H s 4% il i 47 32 10 1] 24 2%
20224111 F B 2 A% B ey 41 12 99 [H] A2 2%
TA20234F 1 1 H B 2 A% B iy 4 12 399 [H] A= 2%
AT AE A B 2 4% B 4 47 B 393 ] 2B 24

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

L2 B N
Qe W N e

determined
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application AR ) TR R T P A % S R 4 M AR
of all these new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no A6 T 7 U 5 i A R R AT LR A B R
material impact on the consolidated financial statements in A o5 ) 3R I A K S o

the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S ¥t

Financial Statements and

Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of preparation of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements, information is considered material if such
information is reasonably expected to influence decisions
made by primary users. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CO”).

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for investment
properties and debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) which are measured at
fair values at the end of each reporting period as explained
in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or value in use in
HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

K EEGRHBOR
Bk A B A B

e S TR TR B A A A
s 2 7 s S 5 i ot Y JU) T A SR o ol A
RRE T BS ROR T & > A EORE A BT M
TR TR A PR A% B R B
B2 B B R o LA > AR A BB R
I35 W 2 P o b BRI (T kvl B )
Lo 75 W8 2% m AR AT (T2 w1 1) fr 125
P

R A5 R 3R Y R S A S v e
B A 3 DL R i H At 4 T i i R R
2 SRR (1778 38 3 Al 4 i Wi 4 w4 2
M )) 2 % THER & BRI ARIE X R
EE RN (Blan F SO 2 6wt B i
fiRE) o

JEE s AR — Ml DA S 88  Be BRS  A T
REZ A REEMEERF -

NAAEET R T2 0 2 et & H
HEAT A P 22 5y v B — JHE E T AU
O A A S — JE AR S AT O A%

i % AR A% TG LB B A &R > B0
R LA A 35 il 41 HH B9 Al &t o B B
—IHEE B B R A
BT TGS HEELGEH RS EERK
BT E E R & 5 I E R A
2 R Y LA AR I 5 R P R
Fe/ oA 55 0 2 A0 (B 4 4 e YE T LA
fifE S M 7 o T o R B SR 29 DL
173 I S Bl 2 A5 3 ) SR T R 0 ARy Ry 2
B 2 A KA B~ AR R A U S i
FL6BEA MM B2 5 S B fofE (E
RUEEIE 2~ REER G (0 e
al e QS5 25% 47 8 ] A9 w4 B 7 (B
s g e B SR 365% [ & A WE | iy
o1 B (D) BR A
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#E202143H31 H 1L

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’ s ability to generate economic
benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

For financial instruments and investment properties which
are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that
unobservable inputs is to be used to measure fair value in
subsequent periods, the valuation technique is calibrated
so that at the initial recognition the results of the valuation
technique equals the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

* Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

e hasthe ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) are attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’ s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (or
group of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not longer than an operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there
is an indication that the unit may be impaired. For
goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating units or any
of the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-generating
unit within a group of cash-generating units), the amount
of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of the
relative values of the operation (or the cash-generating
unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating
unit (or the group of cash-generating units) retained.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation
is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

e the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price)

For contracts that contain more than one performance
obligations including bundle sales for hotel accommodation,
and food and beverage, the Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

B A VO 0 0 o
W % fr B (A7)

EREFEBOR (4

R HF 7 H AN

A% 4 % 55 B 40 A B (SR ) T
RSN » B 5 T4 AT 149 4 I 22
o 5 1 T2 0 HE L WS T 2 I
A -

V& ) BAT U5 B — ] B B o B S (EK
— AR A0 8 B 2 B BUIR S ) B R 5
KRB ) 2 B B i B 5

2 ) HE I — B Ry [H] A RS > i IR DL
Forh — IR M > e A H 2 RO B R 4 3
1T 2 S8 O L > 7 — By fH] A ffe g -

o AR B A I [R] R OR KRR
JH A 52 1] JE 4 B A8 2 ) 4 5

o REEEIE A EEUE L SR T —HE
FE o T % 2 A A 4 T B 460 s fh 7
J5 ] 5 B

o AR [ A S M E A AR SR A
M & 2 > T A 4 B ] 52 A R
il AT REA > DL BUZ 4 B 2 U
K H5 2 FIH

> %5 A B % B R e B
Z P HE 2 R E Ry TH] e RO

GG ZIREAEE (BIFAXLSE) Z
Exi)
HREGEZR-EHBEXNEEZZE4 (8
5109 1 A i B AR AR AR ) > A4
] 4 MR 35 B g B V51 52 B 800 P
EREH AT -

Annual Report 2020/2021 £



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Contracts with multiple performance obligations (including
allocation of transaction price) (continued)

The stand-alone selling price of the distinct good or service
underlying each performance obligation is determined
at contract inception. It represents the price at which the
Group would sell a promised good or service separately
to a customer. If a stand-alone selling price is not directly
observable, the Group estimates it using appropriate
techniques such that the transaction price ultimately
allocated to any performance obligation reflects the amount
of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for transferring the promised goods or services
to the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satistaction of a performance obligation
Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is
to recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements
of the value of the services transferred to the customer to
date relative to the remaining services promised under
the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance in
transferring control of services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good

or service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue recognition

The Group provides services to a gaming concessionaire in
Macau under service arrangements for gaming operation
in mass market hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. The
performance obligation represents provision of gaming-
related marketing and public relation services to the
gaming concessionaire. Revenue from such services are
recognised as a performance obligation satisfied over
time as the Group is entitled to receive its service income
according to the relevant operating performance from the
gaming concessionaire which simultaneously receives
and consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The Group also provides hotel rooms to customers. The
performance obligation represents provision of hotel
accommodation services for the customers. Revenue from
hotel rooms is recognised as a performance obligation
satisfied over time as the Group is entitled to receive its
income according to the relevant operating performance
from the customers and the customers simultaneously
receive and consume the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs.

The transaction price of food and beverage sales is the
net amount collected from the customers for such goods.
The transaction price for such transactions is recorded as
revenue when the goods are transferred to the customer.
There is no other separate performance obligation
identified except for delivery of goods. The revenue on food
and beverage sales is recognised as revenue when the food
and beverage are delivered and titles have been passed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

The Group has other contracts that include multiple
goods and services, such as packages that bundle food
and beverage and other services with hotel stays. For such
arrangements, the Group allocates revenue to each good or
service based on its relative stand-alone selling price. The
Group primarily determines the stand-alone selling price
of hotel rooms and food and beverage based on the amount
that the Group charges when each is sold separately in
similar circumstances to similar customers.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair
values, adjusted to exclude any prepaid or accrued operating
lease income. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
value of investment properties are included in profit or loss
for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition
of the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in profit or loss in the period in which the property
is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings held for
use in the supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost or deemed cost upon transfer
from investment properties, less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests
of properties which includes both leasehold land and
building elements, the entire consideration is allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements in
proportion to the relative fair values at initial recognition.
To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can
be made reliably, interest in leasehold land is presented
as “right-of-use assets” in the consolidated statement of
financial position except for those that are classified and
accounted for as investment properties under fair value
model. When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably
between non-lease building element and undivided interest
in the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or
deemed cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their useful lives, using the
straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs which are not directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an asset
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are also allocated to the relevant cash-generating
units when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be established, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
established. The recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units to
which the corporate asset belongs, and is compared with
the carrying amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or
group of cash generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets other than goodwill (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated
on a reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating
unit, the Group compares the carrying amount of a group
of cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair value
less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if
determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is
allocated pro-rata to the other assets of the unit or the group
of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components including contract for acquisition
of ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components, unless
such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of land and buildings and motor
vehicles that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis or another systematic basis
over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

e the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received;

* any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

* an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.

Except for those that are classified as investment properties
and measured under fair value model, right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities other than adjustments to lease liabilities
resulting from the Covid-19-related rent concession in
which the Group applied the practical expedient.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease
term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the
definition of investment properties as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at initial
recognition are considered as additional lease payments
and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

* variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date;

* amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

* payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the initial
discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

Except for the Covid-19-related rent concession in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

* the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an amount
commensurate with the stand-alone price for the
increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments to
that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances of
the particular contract.
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3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting
the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at
the effective date of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

Covid-19-related rent concession

In relation to rent concession that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

* the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

e any reduction in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2021; and

e there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concession
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss
in the period in which the event occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor

Classification and measurement of leases

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee, the contract
is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified
as operating leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset, and such costs are recognised
as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease term
except for investment properties measured under fair value
model.

Rental income which are derived from the Group’ s ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
When a contract includes both leases and non-lease
components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”) to allocate
consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease components.
Non-lease components are separated from lease component
on the basis of their relative stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments from lessees.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessor (continued)

Lease modification

Changes in considerations of lease contracts that were not
part of the original terms and conditions are accounted for
as lease modifications, including lease incentives provided
through forgiveness or reduction of rentals.

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating lease
as a new lease from the effective date of the modification,
considering any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating
to the original lease as part of the lease payments for the
new lease.

Inventories

Inventories represent food and beverage, consumable and
other goods of hotel and are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Costs of inventories are calculated
using the first-in, first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking
into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the
cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its
carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows
(where the effect of the time value of money is material).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially measured
in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

* the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

#E202143H31 H 1L

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and

Sig

nificant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Clas
asse

sification and subsequent measurement of financial
ts (continued)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments
subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and RERGEBR ()

Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FEGFEOR (4F)

Financial instruments (continued) #HHTH (#)

Financial assets (continued) 2 EE ()

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial B RV E W R R B AR EEH R (A

assets (continued)

(i) Debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI (1) AEAEHEAM RGN T

fE(E 2 % T A

Subsequent changes in the carrying amounts for O3 075 8 A 2 T 5 R R A
debt instruments classified as at FVTOCI as a result 18 (B 2 5 0 HL 2 R T R R T
of interest income calculated using the effective B 3k 5 2 FLB A 2 A% B
interest method, and foreign exchange gains or losses 5 DA % 5,50 4 55 1A 4 i T
are recognised in profit or loss. All other changes in %S5 TR R TH (B 2 BT A HoAth 52
the carrying amount of these debt instruments are ) 7 FCAth 2 T W A b AR HLRA R
recognised in OCI and accumulated under the heading il (ol (A RE T BB o (48 A
of investments revaluation reserve. Impairment 18 i 7 AT > S 3 FL A 2 T A i A AR
allowances are recognised in profit or loss with JRE o B i NI A e D % AR AR LA
corresponding adjustment to OCI without reducing 2 MR THT {EL © 5 JBUTH B R0 a% 5 5 T
the carrying amounts of these debt instruments. HLIRE » SRR A A T U 45 AR 2
When these debt instruments are derecognised, the SREEEN B A

cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in OCI
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets B il 7 (L
The Group performs impairment assessment under A B R4 7 i T 5 Sl YA L) 25 09 ik
expected credit loss (“ECL”) on financial assets (including AVEWE AL 2 & Mg E (457
debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade and other receivables, by 2 TR A R A A (B 2 A LA
pledged bank deposits, short-term bank deposits and B Ty B FC Al R UK - S SR AT A7 R
bank balances) and lease receivables which are subject to J 0 BRAT A7 3R S SRAT & R ) LA B AH 65 e
impairment assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of WoEk H 2 TG S 1R (T BB
ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in #H1) ETBAEG - R EREER &
credit risk since initial recognition. TR At H SR DL S A B R B
0k e 5 AAR 2 B 4L o
Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all TG SR R AR TR Z
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant 5 FFY 300 7 i A T RE % AR 22 R A SR T
instrument. In contrast, 12 months ECL (“12m ECL”) Az MG R o A R 1248 A B
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected fFHEEHE (T12M[ A H¥fE EEE]) 5
to result from default events that are possible within 12 B A R 1218 H A AT RE B AR 2
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done AR E A 2 R 2 TS B
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experiences, B o A B REAE IR AL 2 @5 B
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general R R BT AR BB AR A Z
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current R B ACTHIR DL SR i B R 2
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of B IR DL RE AL B A AR DL B 30 T A
future conditions. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %3 V%5 it 3 o S 3
Financial Statements and R EREGRBOR (4)
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued) FEGFEOR (4F)

Financial instruments (continued) #HHTH (#)

Financial assets (continued) 2 EE ()

Impairment of financial assets (continued) 4 il 7 WL (E ()

The Group always recognises a lifetime ECL for trade AR ] — L B R WA e R 2 T

receivables. 5 B -

For other financial instruments, the Group measures AL TR S AEEFE

the loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there TR AR 2 R 1248 A TH IS Bk 1R BR

has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial e A5 B JE B B ) 6 e B3 DA AR B 4

recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime TERCAE UL T - A B e w8 4 10 e A

ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be N 15, o ol JRE 5 e R 4 09 A R e 4R

recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood Rt 2Z RPAN T BT B 0 0 e 58 DA AR B

or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition. ) 2 AT REE BRI A 7 B BT E o

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (1) 5 B b B 1
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased T A A5 B JE B 0 46 R DL Ak 2
significantly since initial recognition, the Group T3 B BNy > AS AR F S R TR
compares the risk of a default occurring on the TR O A A R B B <
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the T H IRV 46 TERR H 8% A 3 40 2 R
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument B AT HE O o AR AT 5% RF Al R - AR
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this L Z RS MAE L €8 LENE
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative s B U ZH AT R JE AR SO
and qualitative information that is reasonable and BE R AT L SRR S AT RS PR

supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken HAE 5 - w AL Sk 2 28
into account when assessing whether credit risk has BN B R R S 450
increased significantly:

* an actual or expected significant deterioration in o R T RANE (WA BN
the financial instrument’ s external (if available) or 5 Bl 2 B WSl U B
internal credit rating; fts

e significant deterioration in external market o ST G 4G BB 4 R B
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase AL - fE B F £ BB G
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices 78 #0146 M R 85 5

for the debtor;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

* existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

e anactual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment
of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in
the debtor’ s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments
are more than 30 days past due, unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3. Ba

#E202143H31 H 1L

sis of Preparation of Consolidated

Financial Statements and

Sig

nificant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(ii)

(iif)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

(¢) thelender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

#E202143H31 H 1L 4EE

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv) Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off
may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted
by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount
that is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. For a
lease receivable, the cash flows used for determining
the ECL is consistent with the cash flows used in
measuring the lease receivable in accordance with
HKFRS 16.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset
is credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on amortised cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v) Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Except for debt instruments at FVTOCI, the Group
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying
amount, with the exception of trade receivables where
the corresponding adjustment is recognised through
a loss allowance account. For investments in debt
instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, the loss
allowance is recognised in OCI and accumulated under
the heading of the investments revaluation reserve
without reducing the carrying amount of these debt
instruments. Such amount represents the changes
in the investments revaluation reserve in relation to
accumulated loss allowance.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company’ s own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
amount due to a fellow subsidiary and amounts due to
non-controlling interests of a subsidiary) are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises a financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from (loss) profit before taxation
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in
the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the
taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to be
recovered entirely through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the presumption is
rebutted, deferred tax for such investment properties are
measured in accordance with the above general principles
set out in HKAS 12 Income Taxes (“HKAS 12”) (i.e. based
on the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered).

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on initial recognition
of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are
not recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B SL 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
OCI or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in OCI or directly in equity
respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary

items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

3. Basis of Preparation of Consolidated 3. %37 B4 %5 #t 3 4 B S 2

Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operation are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation
reserve.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “other income”.

Retirement benetfit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

3.

#E202143H31 H 1L

Basis of Preparation of Consolidated
Financial Statements and
Significant Accounting Policies

(continued)

Significant accounting policies (continued)
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

Aliability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries and annual leave) after deducting any
amount already paid.

Critical Accounting Judgment
and Key Sources of Estimation
Uncertainty

In the application of the Group’ s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

ST A PR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

4. B kA B A R A

4. Critical Accounting Judgment

and Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty (continued)

Critical judgment in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities or
deferred tax assets arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the directors
of the Company have reviewed the Group’s investment
property portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties situated in Macau with carrying
amount of HK$624,500,000 as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$660,500,000) are held within a business model whose
objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. Therefore, the directors of the
Company have determined that the presumption that
the carrying amounts of such investment properties are
recovered through sale is rebutted. As a result, the Group
has recognised deferred tax liabilities of HK$76,658,000 (2020:
HK$82,087,000) on changes in fair value of investment
properties subject to Macau Complementary Tax (“CT”),
on the assumption that these investment properties will be
recovered through use as at 31 March 2021.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the end of the reporting period, which may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

4. B kA B A R A

4. Critical Accounting Judgment

and Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Valuation of investment properties

In estimating the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties, the Group uses market-observable data to the
extent it is available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available,
the Group engages an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers to perform the valuation of
the Group’s investment properties. The Group will first
consider and adopt Level 2 inputs where inputs can be
derived observable quoted prices in the active market.
When Level 2 inputs are not available, the Group will adopt
valuation techniques that include Level 3 inputs. At the
end of each reporting period, the designated team works
closely with the independent firm of qualified professional
property valuers to establish and determine the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for Level 3 fair value
measurements. Where there is a material change in the fair
value of the assets, the causes of the fluctuations will be
reported to the board of directors of the Company.

The fair value of investment properties of HK$624,500,000
as at 31 March 2021 (2020: HK$660,500,000) was estimated
based on a valuation on these properties conducted by
an independent firm of qualified professional property
valuers using property valuation techniques with significant
unobservable inputs and assumptions of market conditions.
The relevant inputs and conditions include comparable
market transactions with adjustments to reflect different
locations or conditions, and changes in market conditions
arising from the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. Changes to
the assumptions would result in changes in the fair value
of the Group’s investment properties and corresponding
adjustments to the amount of gain or loss reported in profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

4. B kA B A R A

4. Critical Accounting Judgment

and Key Sources of Estimation

Uncertainty (continued)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(continued)

Impairment assessment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets related to Inn Hotel
Macau

In view of an impairment indicator of the hotel property of
Inn Hotel Macau and the leasehold land where Inn Hotel
Macau is situated respectively (the “Inn Hotel Properties”)
arising from a change in market conditions arising from
the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic, an impairment assessment
of the Inn Hotel Properties is performed by comparing
the recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties to its
carrying value as at 31 March 2021. The hotel property
and leasehold land are classified as property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets respectively.

The recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties is
estimated at fair value less costs of disposal of the hotel
property and the leasehold land using property valuation
techniques with significant unobservable inputs and
assumptions of market conditions including operating
income and capitalisation rate, based on valuation
conducted by an independent firm of qualified professional
valuers and approved by the directors of the Company.

The Group believes that no impairment loss has to be
recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties for the year ended
31 March 2021. The situation will be closely monitored,
and adjustments will be made in future periods, should
future market activity indicate that such adjustments are
required. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of the
hotel property and leasehold land of Inn Hotel Macau is
HK$252,659,000 and HK$258,982,000, respectively.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
L ERAMBEAGE

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &

° o
N
' 5. Revenue 5. BLA
(a) Contracts with customers Q&FFa#H
J An analysis of the Group’s ASEF Z WA BT R
- revenue is as follows:
e ©
°. N N Recognised over time: TP — B I ] i 20
o Gaming operation: TR 275 -
o - Service income from gaming — PG IR 2T 2 B A
o operation in mass market hall 138,008 623,226
o - Service income from gaming — B E BRI R 2T < B A
o operation in VIP room 55,556 267,961
o - Service income from gaming — A TR S 2
. operation in slot machine hall AR U A 15,511 35,658
o Hotel operation: 5 SE R -
° - Hotel room income — 5 % 5 A 29,472
J - Others — it -
238,547
Recognised at a point in time: T A S TR i
Hotel operation: e
- Food and beverage sales — B 48,620
- Others — Hoft -
®
° 48,620
‘.. N Revenue from contracts with KEHEFGHBA
° ® customers 287,167 1,120,106
C Gaming operation TR 209,075 926,845
C Hotel operation e 78,092 193,261
[ N J
N Revenue from contracts with KEHEFGHBA
PPN customers 287,167 1,120,106
[ I )
o0
LI
[ J
®
®
[ ]
e ©
P )
[ AN J
® o
[ I J
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

5.

#E202143H 31 H I- 4%

Revenue (continued)

(a) Contracts with customers (continued)
Transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with
customers
All sales or services rendered from gaming and hotel
operations are for contracts with an original period of
one year or less. As a practical expedient under HKFRS
15, the transaction price allocated to these remaining
performance obligations is not disclosed.

(b) Leases

Total revenue arising HREEEZBRA:
from leases:

Hotel operation: 0 15 2675 -

- Operating lease payments — [ € A E AT 3K

that are fixed

5. WA (4)

(a) BF &% (A7)
BES G BE R T A EAEZ
%5 %

A 18R B R S B 4R 1 09 BT A
Bl Al 5 249 J I BR 2% — 4 B DA AT Y
B R o AF T 7 U BB i E RIS LS
R AIATREEL DT > O B 2 4 55 B
TEA BT Z o B R T iR

(b) 8
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Ry THs T
23,124

Segment Information

The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive
Directors”) have been identified as the chief operating
decision makers (“CODM”). The CODM review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and
allocate resources.

The segment information reported externally is analysed on
the basis of their types of services provided by the Group’s
operating divisions which is consistent with the internal
information that is regularly reviewed by the CODM for
the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of
performance. This is also the basis of organisation in the
Group, whereby the management has chosen to organise
the Group around different services provided by the Group.

6. 7 & ¥
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F8 P i B A3 2 R A5 T o R A AT 20 AT >
B AR PN S 7 B I A A 0 i
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HRAE DA AR [ 4 43 2 A () Al s AL A A 4R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

6. s HER (A7)

6. Segment Information (continued)
PR S5 7 0 - T A R A 00

For gaming operation, the CODM regularly analyse gaming
revenue in terms of service income from mass market
hall, VIP room and slot machine hall. No further operating
results is presented to the CODM in relation to the above
analysis. Instead, the CODM review the revenues and
operating results of gaming operation as a whole and have
identified the operating and reportable segments under
HKFRS 8 Operating Segments as gaming operation and
hotel operation as follows:

Mass market hall, VIP room and
slot machine hall operations
and provision of gaming-
related marketing and public
relation services in the casino
of Grand Emperor Hotel
(“GEH”) in Macau

Gaming operation -

Hotel operation in GEH and
Inn Hotel Macau including
property investment income
from investment properties
in these hotels in Macau

Hotel operation -

The CODM assess the performance of individual operating
and reportable segments based on a measure of adjusted
loss/earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and
amortisation, gain or loss on disposal of debt instruments
at FVTOCI, exchange loss at corporate level and fair
value changes of investment properties (the “Adjusted
LBITDA”/“Adjusted EBITDA”).

Inter-segment revenue is charged at a price mutually agreed
by both parties.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
Annual Report 2020/2021 43

e [ G O A TR R S ik

ﬁ*ﬁ’[@ A o 7 I e bl o BT 2 %
BELE S EMTEELEERE A
Exﬁﬁﬁz ER -5 PWLE'Y F2i)
LB P ONE -5 ENIR L &
T BT R s e HI 5585 W‘“%%*EJ B Al
K8 Jo AT SR R TR ST R 2
Har

WRER - R R BN
(5% 5L L 48 305 0 | ) i
Gzwi BEBX
a7 E 2 2 U
B AR (1A Bl 2 i
4 B N T I s

04 ik S Bs i B B I R R IR
T I3 i 2 05 0 S5
(45 5% 55 W30 5
P S LYE PLYE i
EIA)

A PR AN R BLIE -
TR A A A R R R R
ANRBEE S TR Wk EE- 1
2 T ) B S s 1R DL A B 2N ol
2 SEE AT 2 S8 s 18, R ([ 58
¥IBITDA | / [#&&# BEBITDA |) %K
A AR A A8 R AT R R HL

0 THT WS A F 8 77 W 78 4R 22 B RS A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

6. AN (A7)

6. Segment Information (continued)

Information regarding the above segments is reported AR B B BT
below:

Segment revenues and results Vg U NE S

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #E20214E3H 31 H 1L &

Segment revenue AEBA
External revenue HAMIA 209,075 92,780 301,855 - 301,855
Inter-segment revenue BB - 1,200 1,200 (1,200) -
Total At 209,075 93,980 303,055 (1,200) 301,855
Segment result based on the JEKCH % LBITDAZ

Adjusted LBITDA NS (180,481) (24,883) (205,364) (205,364)
Bank interest income SRATH A 53,639
Interest income from debt B AL R A

instruments at FVTOCI AREEZEETAZ

FIE A 921

Gain on disposal of debt B E A 2 A

instruments at FVTOCI srEAREEZ

B LR et 8,270

Depreciation of property, EN VG P

plant and equipment (94,372)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets Mgz e (20,122)
Exchange loss at corporate level A3 A 9 O 52 1R (5,064)
Fair value changes of BEmELREEZEE)

investment properties (36,000)
Finance costs B (1,235)
Loss before taxation B % i s L (304,327)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

6. FRMEF (47)
Ve LYNES WE Y

6. Segment Information (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2020 # 202093/ 31 H 1l F /%
Gaming Hotel
operation operation Total  Elimination  Consolidated
VB2 5 275 At H 5 o
HKS’ 000 HKS' 000 HKS$’ 000 HKS’ 000 HKS$’ 000
T#T THE TH#T THE THE
Segment revenue ik LN
External revenue HMA 926,845 216,385 1,143,230 - 1,143,230
Inter-segment revenue SEHBA - 2,101 2,101 (2,101) -
Total At 926,845 218,486 1,145,331 (2,101) 1,143,230
Segment result based on the HER IR EBITDAZ
Adjusted EBITDA HEES 239,459 40,928 280,387 280,387
Bank interest income SRATRLEMA 75,070
Interest income from debt BRI R
instruments at FVTOCI ARBEHEZEHELAZ
FEMA 19,683
Loss on disposal of debt A A 2 T M
instruments at FVTOCI AR A RMEEZ
EH TR R (4,009)
Depreciation of property, EN SV Gl AT
plant and equipment (98,543)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets R E T E (19,486)
Exchange loss at corporate level A3 o T A1) I 56 4 (7,661)
Fair value changes of BEWENAMELEE
investment properties (36,400)
Finance costs g g (2,334)
Profit before taxation

I B i s 206,707

PR SCH R 2 SRR - R #0522021
3 31H K20204F3 A 31 H 14 1A »
AR EE A 0 3 o A SRR

o3 W E R AL

S A S I 405 00 482 5 008 e T 2 4
S MR 7 B ROM BT T AR R
A WO A0 5 A B T -

Other than the segment information disclosed above, there
was no other information reviewed by the CODM for the
years ended 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Segment assets and liabilities

No analysis of the Group’ s assets and liabilities by operating
and reportable segments is disclosed as it is not regularly
provided to the CODM for review.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e A5 H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

6. Segment Information (continued) 6. HEER

Geographical information I K R
The Group’ s revenue was derived principally in Macau. AEBZIMATERGHEM -
The non-current assets, other than a land and building B A R E B A (BRIR20214E3 4 31 H &t
included in right-of-use assets of HK$637,000 (2020: Al RE & 7E 4 % £5637,00095 JG (2020
HK$2,547,000) as at 31 March 2021 and debt instruments at 412,547 ,000%5 76 ) 2+ Hb R AR DL K
FVTOCI as at 31 March 2020, are all located in Macau. 202043 H 31 H % i H Ath 2 T Ui 45 5T
B AEE 2 B LRI B0 e -
Information about major customer ARAEEEFZEHR
During the year, revenue derived from one (2020: one) A AR AR BE S A5 A 4R B AR A10% DA B
customer which contributed over 10% of the Group’s Z— % (20205« —£) B F R IR A &
total revenue amounted to HK$209,075,000 (2020: 209,075,000% T (20204 : 928,218,000
HK$928,218,000). The revenue related to the gaming W IT) o sz A B 2B (20204F : 14
operation (2020: the gaming operation and the hotel R X5 B 5 2605 ) AR -
operation).
7. Other Loss 7. H At &8
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T
Exchange loss BEE 50, 5 18 7,661
8. Finance Costs 8. ME &N
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T AR
Interest on lease liabilities GRS =E gD 1,031
Bank charges AT FHEE 1,303

2,334
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e I s R R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/131 H Ik &

9. (Loss) Profit Before Taxation 9. BRBEHT (518 ) W Al

(Loss) profit before taxation has FRBLHT (R548) i A 2 ks -
been arrived at after charging:
Staff costs, including directors’ B TRAS - 6455 % 4 I

emoluments 308,750 443,505
Retirement benefit schemes AR A B (43l

contributions (net of forfeited FOBR#E 220214 &

contributions of HK$204,000 and 202043 H31H IEFEZ

HK$335,000 for the years ended L ¥ U it 5204, 0009 7T &%

31 March 2021 and 335,000% 7T)

2020 respectively) 4,499 6,290
Total staff costs A TRA 313,249 449,795
Auditor’ s remuneration 1‘2 %I AT <5 3,332 3,332
Commission expenses in gaming I ES FaliES Y|

operation (included in selling and *Aﬁé’%ﬁfﬁfﬁfﬁf

marketing expenses) A 38,200 160,783
Cost of inventories recognised fifE &% 79’5 B S 2 B R

as an expense 16,791 33,783
Depreciation of property, Yy - W ae S 2 AT

plant and equipment 94,372 98,543
Depreciation of right-of-use assets o U HE G 2 T 20,122 19,486
Loss on disposal/write-off of W2 B &

property, plant and equipment A < e E 11 81
Loss on disposal of debt instruments H B 75 A LAt 4 T A 4

at FVTOCI (included in FrEAAREEZER LRZ

administrative expenses) R (FEAITECE ) 4,009
and after crediting: KEFA:

Gross rental income from i</ E A TEA I ON L

investment properties 23,124
Less: Direct operating expenses T DASHRIBORE 8 W A B

incurred for investment properties BB 2 P i A 10

that generated rental income HEREEH 568

22,556
Bank interest income (included in SRATALE A

other income) (FHA A A A 75,070
Gain on disposal of debt H A 95 20 A 4 T i 4

instruments at FVTOCI %E/AJ‘EE H2EHB LA

(included in other income) Wi (FEA AR A A ) -
Government subsidies ORI (FEA AR A

(included in other income) (note) (M) -
Interest income from debt 7 HL A 2 T 2

instruments at FVTOCI ARBEEHZEE TAZ

(included in other income) FLEMCA (FEA A AR) 19,683
Covid-19-related rent concession 1 eL o 2 A B 2 A b 8

(note 16) (MtiE16) -

Note: The government subsidies recognised during the year ended
31 March 2021 represents certain Covid-19-related subsidies
from Hong Kong and Macau governments with no unfulfilled
conditions.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 184475 15 AR /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
G BB AR X

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ® .

10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and  10. =%~ 2 EiTB A B L@
Employees’ Emoluments B 37

(a) Directors’ and chief executives’ (@) EF L EEITBANBH M
emoluments
Directors’ and chief executives’ emoluments for the HH N FEATHN B R AREE 2
year, disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules PO R 4% 728 b i 0 ) % 2 ) Ak 4] 48
and CO, is as follows: W
°
[ J
[ ]
°
°
[ J
[ ]
[ J
[ J
°
°
°
°
°
°
2021 20215 ® .
Fees [k ® .
Other emoluments Fotm °
Salaries and other benefits Fra R AR °
Retirement benefit schemes R RIHBIfR
contributions
Performance related incentive BRI 5
payment (Note) (Hzt)
2020 20
Fees e - 20 250 0 0 2 1,160
Other emoluments Jolms
Salaries and other benefits e RN - - - - - - -
Retirement benefit schemes RIREE RIS
contributions - - - - - - - ®
Performance related incentive BB °
payment (Note) (Hit) - - - - - - - o ®
- 250 250 2 0 0 e e
N [ J
Note: The performance related incentive payment is determined Mpat: RBMHBBEETIZHERMER ©
with reference to the financial performance and Bl R A8 N R B i E .
individual performance. ° .
[ J
The chief executives of the Company are also the Executive AAFZ FEATBANB R AR o ..
Directors and the emoluments disclosed above include THEFH FXWEZHMOREESE o
those services rendered by them as chief executives. Ve J E2ATEON B P4 it 2 iR s - o
The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above DL E B R AT < AR A
were mainly for their services in connection with the S5 AU AN 2N m e A AR SR T
management of the affairs of the Company and the PR 5 2 W - LA b BT R R AT
Group. The emoluments of non-executive director and AL IE AT E R R AR
independent non-executive directors shown above were TS AL AR 1w S R I 2 R
mainly for their services as directors of the Company. 4 S I
[ ]
[ J
[ ]
[ J
°

[

[ ]
L

[
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- - NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R f-“i’ o R

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &

° o
@
g 10. Directors’, Chief Executives’ and 10. 3> FRTHAR L ig
Employees Emoluments BH M (%)
(continued)
(b) Employees’ emoluments (b) & B %i
The five highest paid individuals did not include any R AN RIS T 1PN
director of the Company for both years. The total EAREHEAR AETE S A
L emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for ¢ 1o 36 N~ T A 4 B 22 36 T A
. ® both years were as follows: IR
e O
[ BN J
[ 3N ]
[ BN J
L Salaries and other benefits 4 S A AR R
e Performance related bonuses L% L4 1 fE AT
o0 Retirement benefit schemes B ORARE A 4 3K
® o contributions
o0
° o0
[ J
®
Emoluments of the employees g B 2 A T DA i
were within the following bands:
HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,000 7t 5
. 1,500,000 ¢
J HKS$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7&
° 0 2,000,000% 7T
o HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 & 5
o 2,500,000 7
o HK$3,000,001 - HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 &
3,500,000% 7¢
: : HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 &
4,000,000 7t
o HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 75 %
4,500,000 7t
o0
° 0
° No remuneration was paid by the Group to the directors A TR AF BE A A A [ A A ) 2 S
> and the five highest paid employees as an inducement I 4 F e TN B ST AT -
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation DIAE 2% W 5 45 55 in A 8078 i A A £
for loss of office for both years. None of the directors PR IR 2 4 < B IR < Al o 7 R 8
and the five highest paid individuals has waived any B A o M R T 44 A e T T
emoluments during both years. & B AT Ao 57 P
®
[ ]
e ©
.
[ BN J
[ 2N ]
@
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

10. Directors’ , Chief Executives’ and

Employees’ Emoluments

(continued)
(c) Retirement benefit schemes

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the plans are held separately from those of the
Group in funds under the control of the independent
trustees. The Group and each employee make
mandatory contributions of 5% of relevant payroll costs
with maximum monthly contribution of HK$1,500 to
the scheme.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
retirement scheme for all qualifying employees of a
subsidiary of the Group in Macau since 1 September
2014. The assets of the scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under control of
independent trustees. The retirement scheme cost
recognised in profit or loss represents contributions
payable to funds by the Group at rates specified in the
rules of the scheme. Where there are employees of the
Group who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contributions payable by the Group
are reduced by the amount of forfeited contributions.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in Macau
are members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the Macau government. The
Group is required to contribute a certain percentage of
its payroll to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make
the required contributions under the schemes.

During the year, the retirement benefit schemes
contributions were HK$4,499,000 (2020: HK$6,290,000),
net of forfeited contributions of HK$204,000 (2020:
HEK$335,000).

10. FF > ERITHA R KB
B (A7)

(c) 28 1f 1 Al 5t 2

ASEE TN BT A B R A
B W AR N B w2
B B A5 FEATE I 2 B R A
ol B A 5 [ 2 6 E 3 B o A A ) L
B 4 R B AR B 3B A 1959 1)
w31 A R A R IR A
5 H1,500 7t

AAEH H20144E9 A 1 H B IR B A 48
Mz — MM E AR A G &
¥ 8 B & Bt AL OB IREH 8 - 3%
w2 LA R AR 2
G FRA M B A AL G E 4B
JiNHE A5 A e RR 2 AR KT E AR 4R AR
£ [ 2w SRR B B T L R R ) 4
AR 22 A4t 3 o i A 42 18 48 B A it 3K
B U B AR T B A A AT
AR R B 1 WAk 3k AR AR L

7B [ R 1Y S s F) 2 A B 2 TR
PR A8 B2 18 52 A B AR R AR A
# 2B o AL BIH LR B 2
BEAW T 23 B 1) s B R A A3 o
A AR 8] 3B 5 AR R AR A F ) R S
Z FAL AR 1 Bz w1 2 K e
Frfftae

A AR BE R K AR R FT B AL 3K
4 % 544,499,000 ¢ (20204F :
6,290,000 7C) (F11x B 32 i fit 3k
204,000 7C (20204F : 335,000
Jt) ) e

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e I s R R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/1 31 H i} 4 &

11. Taxation Credit

L B 45 4 72 Bt

Macau Complementary Tax

11. ¢ JA Jo 3¢

- current year —RAEE (1,527)
- reversal of tax provision — 485 )R TR 4F B 2 B T B
in prior years 69,032
- Underprovision in prior years — IR ERH AR (37)
67,468
Hong Kong Profits Tax M A
- Overprovision in prior years — TR A R A -

Deferred taxation (note 25) RAEBLIH (M 7£25)

12,410

Tt 3 [m] 45

Taxation credit

79,878

The CT is calculated at the applicable rate of 12% of the
estimated assessable profits for both years.

Pursuant to the CT law, the statutory right to issue CT
assessment on the estimated assessable profit in a year of
assessment will expire in five consecutive years after that
year of assessment. At the end of the reporting period, the
directors of the Company reassessed the adequacy of the
CT provision and determined to reverse part of the Group’s
relevant CT provision of HK$69,032,000 for the 2015 year
of assessment (2020: HK$91,769,000 for the 2014 year of
assessment) accordingly.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is made in the

consolidated financial statements as the Group has no
assessable profit for both years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 184475 15 AR /A
Annual Report 2020/2021 43

i T T 4 A8 4R BE A T I R i ) 2
B A2 5 -

HRPE M 72 Bl vk - T8 L 5T B4 B2 A B A
wl SR W A 2 A FE Bl R AL 2 1k RE A
A I 5% AT B AR R R B A A AR i
JIREER 8 Li l NE N/NIE I = ok v
2 70 VR A REAL I 48 At P g
] 5B 43 A 4 [ A 201 54F FE B AR BE 22 4H B
75 B 488 569,032,000 7T (20204F : %
20144F S8 4F 91,769,000 7T )

FE P 7 S 7% T {1 P32 10 S8 MR RO i A >
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
G BB AR X

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ® .

11, 0 351 1o 38¢ ()
A AT B L 35 1] f88 ] B 6 8 i B LA 2
AT S e 3 2 B BT (s 1R i R 35 R
T

11. Taxation Credit (continued)
The taxation credit for the year can be reconciled to the (loss)
profit before taxation per consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

FrBLRT (JE548) % ) (304,327)

Taxation credit (charge) at the F Al FEBLBL R 12% 7 2 .. ]
CT rate of 12% i IE [m] 45 (S ) 36,519 (24,805) _ ©
Tax effect of expenses not deductible — #EBLHS I 5 A A 41138 B 52 2 °?
for tax purpose B S g 2 (32,054) (7,691) _ ©
Tax effect of income not taxable HEBLHS I 5 T AR B 2 o®
for tax purpose BiHs 8,542 15254 o
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 7 5 Bl JE i 18 2 BB i 2 (2,126) @
Effect of reversal of tax provision $3% ] 208 1 4 FE B TE B A8 2 N
in respect of prior years P2 69,032 91,769 N
(Under) overprovision in respect of LA B (BN L ) B
prior years (37) 20
Utilisation of tax losses previously ) 13 2P Wiy S e e 2 0 T s 12
not recognised
Others HoAt 160
Taxation credit for the year A A FE Fd JH [m] f%
12. Dividends 12. ik B )
]
° [ ]
- [ J
- [ ]
Dividends recognised as distribution — 4F £ (N #ERRAE 43 IR 2 LS. - ° :
during the year: )
Final dividend paid in respect of EUR20204F AR WIS, o
2020: HK$0.030 per share B 1520.030% 7T (20204 ° ’.
(2020: HK$0.054 per share HE20194F 2 AR 1B B 2y ° .
in respect of 2019) 3 0.054¥5 7T) °
Interim dividend paid in respect of EUR20214F LS. N
2021: HK$0.015 per share £ 1£0.015% 5T (20204F -
(2020: HK$0.030 per share HE20204F 2 Hh 1 1B S 2
in respect of 2020) 45 1%0.0305 0)
104,267
[ ]
]
]
- [ J
[ ]
N [
Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A @ . P
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B eI B AR ek

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/131 H Ik &

12. Dividends (continued) 12. 8 B, (#&)
The board of directors proposed the payment of a final #HAH g # IR 22021483 H31H Ik
dividend of HK$0.015 (2020: HK$0.030) per share for the AF 45 [0.015%5 T (20204F : 4 /1£0.030
year ended 31 March 2021 which is subject to approval by HIT) 2 AR > M 28 7 AR 2 F RO
the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual i R e JBE SRR A K g b St o Ty AT AR o
general meeting.

13. (Loss) Earnings Per Share 13. % i (538 ) & A
The calculation of the basic (loss) earnings per share AN F A N A 5 IR BE A (5 48) &
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the F T R4 DA R Bt L

following data:

(Loss) earnings (WE48) 2R

(Loss) earnings for the year A IEEA (1R BAT S 2
attributable to owners of AN A A N A AF
the Company for the purpose of (18 & A

basic (loss) earnings per share

Number of shares JBe 4y % H
Weighted average number of MEEIEEA (1R BAN S 2
ordinary shares in issue B B AT 5 8 B HE T 14 %

for the purpose of basic (loss)
earnings per share

Diluted (loss) earnings per share is not presented as there H AR 2 7 T A A T R A e 4 o T
was no dilutive potential ordinary share for both years. 0 - WO A 2 0 g R (s 4R
Ao
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR IR

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I- 4 &

14. Investment Properties 14. & Y3

The Group leases out various commercial properties under
operating leases with rentals payable monthly. The leases
typically run for an initial period of 2 to 8 years (2020: 2 to
8 years), with unilateral rights to extend the lease beyond
initial period held by one of lessees only. Majority of the
lease contracts contain market review clauses in the event
the lessee exercises the option to extend.

The Group is not exposed to foreign currency risk as a result
of the lease arrangements, as all leases are denominated in
the respective functional currencies of the relevant group
entities. The lease contracts do not contain residual value
guarantee and/or lessee’ s option to purchase the property
at the end of lease term.

AR AR AR A AR B Hh A2 A P S 2
LB 45 H SN o L& — i) 45 7 1228
4 (20204F  2284F) > T fy H v — £ 7K
LS A 1 B J7 T HE R w5t AL B 8 =
IR LAST o i AR AAT (56 228 SU3 -
KRR R & #4185 3 B ek -

MR A ES M EMERA A2
T RE B W EHE > wloAR 4R 0 4 PR AR B
P 7R 52 51 e Ja B o AR A A0 Sl 28 6D
TRl R A (B PR I SSOR AL AL 0 4%
) S 1 R AR

HK$’ 000
Tt

Fair value 2 e fEAE
At 1 April 2019 JA20194F4H1H 696,900
Decrease in fair value NDIW = KIERT R (36,400)
At 31 March 2020 JA20204E3H31H
Decrease in fair value o8 FAEE WY
At 31 March 2021 JA2021%-3H31H

The investment properties represent completed investment
properties situated in Macau.

The fair values of the Group’ s investment properties as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 have been arrived at on the
basis of a valuation carried out on those dates by Memfus
Wong Surveyors Limited, an independent firm of qualified
professional property valuers not connected to the Group,
in accordance with the HKIS Valuation Standards 2020 (2020:
HKIS Valuation Standards 2017) issued by The Hong Kong
Institute of Surveyors.

BOEY SR RPN E R EY
*®

AL 2 BE W R 20214F3H31H K
202043 H31H 2 A Se(EE Ty AR 8 [
B 3L I SR AT A PR A) ) (B A 4 ]8I
40 TR L B ST A B3R S A (H A
A7) A 5% %5 )42 75 v 0 = il 22 & A A
2 s T A B g Ak e R (20204F
KR (20204 = v 1 5 Fill 52 & £l {5 4 HI)
(20174 W) ) ATl (B 1T 7 7 o
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N OTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e B R b

For the year ended 31 March 2021

14. Investment Properties (continued)
As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, all investment
properties were held for rental under operating leases. The
investment properties are held within a business model
of the Group whose business objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use. There
has been no change to the valuation technique during
the year. The valuation was arrived at with reference to

#E202143H31 H 1L

market evidence of recent transaction prices for similar
properties with adjustments to reflect different locations

and conditions.

The following table gives information about how the fair
values of these investment properties are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique and inputs used), as
well as the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value
measurements are categorised (Level 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements

are observable.

Investment properties
held by the Group in the
consolidated statement of
financial position Fair value
REMRGEMBRAE  Fair value hierarchy
ERRIEY S EE S AR MRS
HKS$’ 000
T
Commercial properties in 624,500 Level 3
Macau (2020: 660,500) 3%
TR R 7 S 3K (20204 : 660,500)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the

year.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited
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LR

3%%) e

Valuation techniques and ~ Significant unobservable
key inputs inputs
MEHH R RARARE  EERTBRER AR

Direct comparison method ~ Market unit rate, mainly taking

with market unit rate as into account the location,
the key input frontage and size, between the
DATTSG AR IR s B S A comparables, which ranged

R A LBk from HK$7,000 to HK$21,000
(2020: HK$8,000 to HK$22,000)
per square foot

#E%Jr&ﬂttﬁ’i%%ﬁﬂﬂ@ﬁﬁ‘
R R AR T A

?75" FFJTIRT 00036 T E
21 000i 7 (20204 : 8,000 7
£20 0005

ST A PR AT

7352021@3)3315&2020@3)%315 iy
AREMENRBLRERERFAERMA
P& o 5% 55 £ W 36 7 A Ry T I A
i 0 TH AR B 3 ARG
A3 B8 A 0 R 3 E AR 2 A AR A
KA - A FH Y 2 A B (E R 3%
W2 e MR R s A ik o
2 A FE Al B 00 3117 40 588 B o A () 22
T AL W 2 2 T 45 2 G (B R G Ak
MR A ] b B8 B2 A A A H o 17 o o

NARAR A % S BE YRR A R
BB (0 HRE P 5% T3 1A Al (6 452 il 2 g A
B E R DL RARE A R EER R
9 i A R Y R B %}:F%/\ﬁ%ﬁ%
BT M A (AR (5

EAEIEN S

Sensitivity/relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

R /A A\ W
S fu U R BA 1R

Assignificant increase in the
market unit rate would result
ina significant increase in the
fair value of the investment
propemes and vice versa

6 A 7 35 S OB K MR D 51 3
?ﬁ%‘%%’/ﬂ\ﬁ (K BRI
RZINE

JAASAE JEE > 565 350 TR ML A e o



For the year ended 31 March 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR e IR R

B FE20214FE3/1 31 H IE4F )&

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

15. P3¢ ~ #e o K wk s

Cost WA
At 1 April 2019 RAO9F4ATE 1,313,506 90,767 406,058 239,447 287,477 11,187 4505 2,352,957
Additions iR - - 38,385 16,563 17,8% 2,098 - 74,88
Disposalsfwrite-off e - - (320) (591) (2,235) (3,146)
At31 March 2020 [SVIEEERIE 1,313,516 255,690 304722 2,424,693
Additions 43R - 12,219 4,568 20,925
Disposals/write-off i /B - (154) (615) (1,493)
At31 March 2021 [SVALEERTE 1,313,516 267,755 308,675 2,444,125
Depreciation it
At1 April 2019 01954 1H 135,055 23,828 221,385 192,346 230,397 8,413 3672 111509
Provided for the year R 35,270 2,269 29,79 14,294 15,200 1,340 374 98543
Eliminated on disposal/ LilYg ¢l

write-off H (320) (459) (22%) (3,014)
At 31 March 2020 IOIERERIGE 370,325 351,181 206,320 245,138 1,210,625
Provided for the year R R 35,270 25,323 15,048 14,832 94,372
Eliminated on disposal/ e /s R

write-off B - - (154) (605) (1,217)
At 31 March 2021 202143310 405,595 28,366 376,504 221,214 259,365 1,303,780
Carrying amounts Wi
At31 March 2021 1202143310 AP 62,401 70,080 46,541 49,310 1,140,345
At31 March 2020 RAEIAIE 943191 64,670 93,262 49,370 59,584 3,53 459 1214068

The above items of property, plant and equipment are 3 - B R K S T LA AR
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates LUF AR T U

per annum:

Hotel properties and

buildings

Leasehold improvements
Furniture, fixtures and

equipment
Machinery
Motor vehicles
Others

Over the estimated useful

WIEYSERAET Al al (7 430

lives of 40 years or the 404 S AH B AH B
unexpired terms of R B AR
the relevant leases, (DA R 5 o )

whichever is shorter

10 - 20%
10 - 20%

10 - 20%
20%
20%

HEWELEE 10 - 20%
MR 8 R 10 - 20%

e 10 - 20%
TRH 20%
HoAh 20%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. 9036 ~ B as B it il (A4

(continued)

The hotel properties and buildings are located in Macau. As
the lease payments for land and building elements, other
than those included in note 16, cannot be allocated reliably,
the entire lease is included in the carrying amount of the
buildings.

As at 31 March 2021, the directors of the Company
considered there was an indication for impairment for
the hotel property of GEH with a carrying amount of
HEK$655,262,000 (2020: HK$681,734,000) together with
the related leasehold land with a carrying amount
of HK$199,431,000 (2020: HK$207,390,000) included
in right-of-use assets (note 16) by considering their
recoverable amounts, having regard to the change in
market conditions in Macau arising from the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic. The directors of the Company
prepared discounted cash flow projections for GEH based
on the financial budget approved by them to conduct
impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating unit to which the hotel property and right-
of-use assets belongs, including the allocation of corporate
assets when reasonable and consistent basis can be
established. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
no impairment loss was recognised during the year ended
31 March 2021 as the recoverable amounts on the hotel
property and right-of-use assets related to GEH are higher
than their carrying amounts.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group assessed the hotel property of
Inn Hotel Macau with a carrying amount of HK$252,659,000
(2020: HK$261,457,000) together with the related leasehold
land with a carrying amount of HK$258,982,000 (2020:
HK$268,574,000) included in right-of-use assets (note 16)
for impairment by considering their recoverable amounts,
having regard to the change in market conditions in
Macau arising from the ongoing Covid-19 pandemic. The
recoverable amount of the Inn Hotel Properties is estimated
based on the fair value less costs of disposal of the Inn Hotel
Properties, which is estimated based on valuation techniques
with significant unobservable inputs and assumptions of
market conditions, and based on the valuation conducted by
an independent firm of qualified professional valuers and
approved by the directors of the Company. The valuation
was arrived at by using income capitalisation method. No
impairment loss was recognised on the Inn Hotel Properties
for both years.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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0 15 ) 3 B AT T A0 TR o phy R 1
Lo MR o 2 R B K IE (R RE 16 9 5=
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik & o
[
[ ]
. N EW L
15. Property, Plant and Equipment 15. W36 ~ W45 Bk il (4)
(continued)
Key assumptions and unobservable inputs adopted by the A PERE T LAAG wE R T 0 T 3 w] i e 4
management to estimate the recoverable amount of the Inn FEIT PR A 2 AR B A AT B i A B
Hotel Properties are as follows: B
o the estimated operating income applied in the income o WA EAAL T E 2 AGE RS
capitalisation method; and WA s I B N
{
e capitalisation rate of 3.65% (2020: 4.35%) is adopted o RN EARIE3.65% (20204 : .. -
based on the analysis performed by an independent 4.35% ) IR L 5 AR BEAL L
firm of qualified professional valuers, which reflects (B FTATHEAT Z 0BT > sZ o AT R ey o ©
current market assessments with regards to the change T RS R R B S R L L
in market conditions arising from the ongoing Covid-19 W) 2 H T R AL RO s
pandemic and the risks specific to the Inn Hotel S HEA R o o’
Properties. o’
L
]
16. Right-of-use Assets 16. i JH i & 2 .’

Cost A
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R201944H1H »
and 31 March 2021 202043 31H M
20214E3 A 31H 493,515 498,879
Depreciation e
At 1 April 2019 20194411 H
Provided for the year A JE N B
At 31 March 2020 #202043H31H 17,551
Provided for the year A N B 17,551
At 31 March 2021 202143 H31H 35,102
Carrying amounts M T
At 31 March 2021 R20214£3H31H 458,413 459,271
At 31 March 2020 J£20204E3 H 31 H 475,964 3,429 479,393 B

o
®
o
o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

16.

LR e

#E202143H31 H 1L

Right-of-use Assets (continued) 16. 55 F HE & € (45)
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
Tl T
Expense relating to short-term leases R ULiEN g 1,128
Total cash outflow for leases B 2 Bl b A% 3,766

The Group leases certain leasehold lands, office, warehouse
and carpark for its operations. Lease contracts are entered
into for fixed term from 1 to 25 years. Certain leases of
leasehold lands in Macau are negotiated for an initial term
of 25 years with extension options exercisable by the Group.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the contract
is enforceable.

In addition, the Group owns certain hotel and commercial
properties classified as property, plant and equipment
and investment properties respectively. The Group is the
registered owner of these property interests, including the
underlying leasehold lands. Lump sum payments were
made upfront to acquire these property interests. The
leasehold land components of these owned properties are
not presented separately as the payments made cannot be
allocated reliably.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group assessed the leasehold
lands of GEH and Inn Hotel Macau together with their
respective hotel properties for impairment by considering
their recoverable amounts, having regard to the change
in market conditions in Macau arising from the ongoing
Covid-19 pandemic. The details of the determination of
the recoverable amounts are disclosed in note 15. No
impairment loss was recognised on the leasehold lands of
GEH and Inn Hotel Macau for both years.

ST A PR AT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R A B AR Tk

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

16. Right-of-use Assets (continued) 16. 15 JH HE & e ()

Rent concession

During the year ended 31 March 2021, a lessor of an
office provided rent concession to the Group through rent
reduction of 30% over 11 months (2020: Nil).

This was rent concession occurred as a direct consequence
of Covid-19 pandemic, which met all of the conditions
in HKFRS 16.46B, and the Group applied the practical
expedient not to assess whether the changes constitute
lease modifications. The effects on changes in lease
payments due to forgiveness or waiver by the lessor for the
relevant leases of HK$545,000 (2020: Nil) were recognised as
negative variable lease payments.

17.Debt Instruments at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive
Income

Debt instruments at FVTOCI comprise
debt instruments:

- listed in Singapore with fixed
interests at the rates ranging

from 5.700% to 6.875% per K E 1 H A F-20204F
annum and maturity dates 47 1H %#20214£3H31H
falling between 1 April 2020 to
31 March 2021

- listed in Cayman Island/ —RBRRES A BT
Hong Kong with fixed interests IE] 7 4F ) %4 74,875 H
at the rates ranging from %6.000E K B H AT
4.875% to 6.000% per annum and 202144 H 1 H %20224

maturity dates falling between 3H31H
1 April 2021 to 31 March 2022

75 8 HoAth A T U 25w
S REEZ EE T A
AN EB LH
— AN b T R E A A

KAF-5.700)H £6.875H

4 EE

HE2021F3A31H IEFE > A=
Z AR [ A 4 B R AR 108 H 32 30%
Z 4 (20204F - 4%) (A S o

A T TR 3 e 1 2 IV T L A 2 R
5 £ 5 A RS At ME I 55 16.46B
ez Bt EASBECERTITZ
BEEL 5 ¥ > AN ATAN a% 45 5 B 02 5 A LA
B it AT Rk A S
T 7 AR 2 FH B ASh R 5 ) 5 88545 000
JC (20204 - ) O MERR & B v B &
53

17. 32 38 . Ath 2 v WA 55 w1 2

AR Z 5 TR

Analysed for reporting purposes RN F Z BT
as follows:
Non-current FE )
Current P ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e ISR Ik

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

17. Debt Instruments at Fair Value
Through Other Comprehensive
Income (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the amounts were carried at fair
values which were the quoted bid prices in active markets
at the end of the reporting period. During the year ended 31
March 2021, all debt instruments at FVTOCI were disposed
of at fair values.

Included in debt instruments at FVTOCI are the following
amount denominated in currency other than functional
currency of the relevant group entities:

United States Dollar (“USD” or “US$”) £c ([%3t])

17.

75 W8 Tt 4 T UK 45 BT R
2 S BB 2 1085 TR
(#5)

202043 31 H » A B 4 58 T 4% B
WIR 2 28 Ao A8 8 (RPIE B8 T 35 g 51
IR o L 220214331 H (L4 ir 5 45
iR At A T U 25 FE RS REE 2 AR T
HEWAREEBE-

73 LAt A T W 45 R B 2 R
TREFE NI ER TR R
W LLAI Y 65 W R (R A R

2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
TF¥L T TT
82,374

18. Goodwill
As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of goodwill
amounting to HK$110,960,000 (2020: HK$110,960,000) had
been allocated to the cash-generating unit relating to the
Group’ s gaming operation.

During the year, the Group performed an impairment
assessment for goodwill relating to the Group’s gaming
operation based on value in use calculation, which is
estimated by a cash flow forecast derived from the most
recent financial budget for the next five years. Cash flows
beyond the five years are extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% (2020: 3%). The key assumptions for
the value in use calculation including the discount rates,
growth rates and expected changes to revenue and direct
costs during the forecast period. The forecast is discounted
using a discount rate of 20% (2020: 20%). The discount rate
was determined with reference to weighted average cost of
capital of similar companies in the industry and adjusted
for specific risks associated with the Group’s gaming
operation. The growth rates do not exceed the long-term
average industry growth forecasts. Expected changes to
revenue and direct costs are based on past practices and
the management’s expectations of future changes in the
market. As the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit is higher than the carrying amount of the cash-
generating unit, the directors of the Company consider
no impairment loss need to be recognised for both years.
The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably
possible change in any of these assumptions would not
cause the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit to
exceed the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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[ J
For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ‘. o
[
 J
L] .
19. Trade and Other Receivables 19. & 5 B H At JiE Wk
Trade receivables & 7y REW K 61,841
Less: Impairment allowance FIBR - (B (20,879) N
40,962 °.
Chips on hand E 203 54,666 .
Other receivables and prepayments HC Al J8 iR % TELAS K 73,643 : °
169,271 156,495 = :
[ J
As at 31 March 2021, trade receivables comprise receivables A20214F3H31H » & 5 EWGR ik g« :
from contracts with customers and lease receivables of P8 Z IEBGR R TENGE 3 e
HK$37,337,000 (2020: HK$22,487,000) and HK$3,625,000 $537,337,000i 7€ (20204 : 22,487,000 © _
(2020: HK$1,112,000) respectively. W) J3,625,000% T (20204«
1,112,000 ) ° °* .
. {
As at 1 April 2019, trade receivables from contracts with R20194E4H1H - 2R B X F A2 E 5 .
customers amounted to HK$94,462,000. JE K £594,462,000% IC °
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade receivables (net of PATF 7 A 45 [ s 2 B R #4325 B H
impairment allowance) based on the date of credit granted WEEE S H 25 2 5y R (HnBR
or the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set BAETBEMR ) Z IRE AT
out below:
[ J
[ ]
° { ]
° ([ J
[ J
0 - 30 days 0%30H 8,915 : .
31-60 days 31%#60H o
61 - 90 days 61790 H ®e
91 - 180 days 91%180H °e
Over 180 days 180H DAk .’ °
([ J
.. ®
[ J
The Group normally allows credit periods of up to 60 AREE e THESEFREOHZ 0.‘
days to its trade customers, except for certain credit fE 8 el T HA R MR R & 18 e R |
worthy customers with long term relationship and stable TR A EBRIFER > HEZFEH
repayment patterns, where the credit periods are extended AEERE — BRI -
to a longer period.
[ J
[ J
° { ]
° [ J

[ ]
[ ]
L
[ ]
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

#E202143H31 H 1L

19. Trade and Other Receivables

20

(continued)

As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$14,098,000 (2020: HK$13,472,000) which are
past due at the end of the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$13,739,000 (2020: HK$12,904,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as in
default as the directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the balances are still recoverable due to long-term/
ongoing relationship or agreed settlement plan with the
customers.

Chips on hand represent chips issued by a gaming
concessionaire in Macau which can be exchanged into their
cash amounts.

Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 32(b).

Pledged Bank Deposits/
Short-Term Bank Deposits/Bank

Balances and Cash

As at 31 March 2021, pledged bank deposits comprise (i)
a deposit of HK$63,000,000 (2020: Nil) (classified as non-
current asset) and (ii) a deposit of HK$353,000 (2020:
HK$348,000) (classified as current asset), details of which
are set out in note 30(b) and (c), respectively. The pledged
bank deposits carry fixed interest rates which ranged from
0.32% to 1.80% (2020: fixed interest rate at 2.40%) per
annum.

As at 31 March 2021, short-term bank deposits with an
original maturity over 3 months carry interest at fixed
interest rates which ranged from 1.00% to 2.00% (2020:
2.05% to 2.80%) per annum.

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group,
and bank deposits with an original maturity of 3 months or
less and carry interests at prevailing market rate at 0.01%
(2020: 0.01%) per annum or at fixed interest rates which
ranged from 0.07% to 2.90% (2020: 1.10% to 2.50%) per
annum.
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AL B 95 TR T8 48 (H 514,098,000 7T
(20204 : 13,472,000 7T ) 2 JE O3k A

S HWIOR B o a5 I A B b

13,739,000%5 7t (20204F : 12,904,000%
Je) €8 90 H 3 DA & HL 3l M 5 4 /5
CORBL LRSS RS RN TR S CP s i
IR 7% i S A0 55 2 T o 0 T > PR R

On TV SRR 2 4 55 SRR 2 T A [e]

B — KPR~ w8 AT > 3l AT

5 5y B H A BE G 2 BB RT il 2 RE A

K EE32(b) ©

SR SRAT 2k 5 Bl
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20

h20214E3 H31H » B K 4R 47 17 5K 2
5 (1) 7 #63,000,000% JC (20204F : 4 )
(43 %1 7% FF a8 & 7 ) B (i1) #7 3K 353,000
#IC (20204F : 348,000 70) (4% B
DB ) o R 2 A 0 B EE30(b)
F(c) o B HEHFERAT A7 3R 4% [ 22 4F 1| A
F-0.32)8 %1.80/% (20204F : # i 72 Fl| %

2.4008) 5T & -

R20214E3 431 H - JEE B £3M8 H L
b2 FE A ERAT A A [ 72 4R A F- A F-1.00
JE %22.00J8 (20204F : 2.05)8 %22.80)%)

Cipst
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1.10J8 £2.50/8) st H Z 17173 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
G BT AR ¥

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ® .

20.Pledged Bank Deposits/Short-Term  20. T #1847 77 5% 0]

Bank Deposits/Bank Balances and BRATAE K BRAT 45 Bk B
Cash (continued) W ()
Included in pledged bank deposits, short-term bank O KR SR AT A7 3K B8R AT A7 3R LA B8R
deposits and bank balances and cash are the following AT 4 B B B 4 LA T ) 4 A R 4 TR
amounts denominated in currencies other than functional Z TR M LA A B R A B
currency of the relevant group entities: °
. l
]
® [ ]
- [ J
[ ]
usb e 3 998,426 | *
Renminbi (“RMB”) ANRIE(TARYE]) 390,966 47,748 ¢
[
[ ]
21.Trade and Other Payables 21. § 5 B HAth FE A 35K *
- [ J
]
(]
Trade payables B o) AR 9,374
Chips in custody and deposits TR F Z AL R AT K
from gaming patrons 19,730
Construction payables and accruals JREAS T H K e 2 1,058
Other payables and accruals Ho A A 3 K% BT 2 66,159
Accrued staff costs EFEE T A 12,936
Short-term advance i G 18,000 °
[ J
127,257 140,214 °
[ ]
]
An ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on IR A B 2R RS HINE © :
the invoice date at the end of the reporting period is set out 5 2 5 5y HEAS 3k 2 Rt 3 AT - .
below: C
- [
- [ J
9. -
[ J
0 - 30 days 0%30H 1,744
31 - 60 days 31260H
61 - 90 days 61290H
91 - 180 days 91%180H
Over 180 days 180H LA |
Other payables and accruals mainly include other accrued SO AT 3K e B w2 ) A 4 A
expenses and other deposits. 2 B H A % 4 o
[ J
]
° [ ]
[ J

[

[ ]
L

[
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

22. Amount Due to a Fellow Subsidiary 22 %* [ [7] 2% FFS J& 2 W) 3K

The amount is due to a subsidiary of Emperor International, A7 B R Ty O 5 I R — ] S
which is unsecured, interest-free, repayable on demand, trade Al 2 ACE > T MHE AR S B K ZE R R
in nature and are aged within 0-30 days based on invoice date R B S EAREE 2 RIEAR
at the end of each reporting period. B H W AREE S0%30H o

23. Amounts Due to Non-Controlling 23. K — [] Bt 8§ 2 W) 2 )k $8
Interests of a Subsidiary % HE 4 9K JE
The amounts represent unsecured and interest-free W2 5% F A8 K Luck Unitedz JF 5 B HE
shareholder’s loans due to non-controlling interests of i ) JEHE 0 B B 5 R K o AR R R
Luck United. In accordance with the contractual terms of 1k 2 & # R %5 ARE N DL B8R
the shareholders’ agreements, the amounts are to be repaid B R o B8R E & T 46 Luck United &
from surplus fund, which represents cash available in SR Ja 2 R ST B A A B S % R AN
Luck United and its subsidiaries, after paying all operating AL AR EAS B 21 48 R 2 SRAT 03K
expenses and payables, including but not limited to bank B o = 05 B[R] BE S FLE) 42 2 Wl B)
loans and third party loans which are due for repayment IR

together with the accrued interest.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the management of Luck 20214 K202043H31H » Luck
United determined that Luck United had adequate United® & 58 /5 Luck United#E A 2
available surplus fund for the repayment of all principal ST B P i e R R LR R IR R R
amounts outstanding to its non-controlling shareholders. A A 4 o AL > BZ K TH TR 20214E3 1
Accordingly, the amounts are shown as current liabilities as 31H K20204F3 H 31 H 317w Jb i B £ A5 -

at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021

24, Lease Liabilities

#E20214F3H 31 H IEF &

24,

Lease liabilities payable: JREA L 85 £

Within one year 14 A

Within a period of more than 14 A FAHAS B @24
one year but not more than
two years

Within a period of more than 242 DL FAE AN I 54
two years but not more than
five years

Within a period of more than 5P E
five years

B AH

1,162

24,587

Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months shown
under current liabilities

B B By A AR R
121 A B = 4555
Z &R

27,344

(1,234)

Amount due for settlement after
12 months shown under
non-current liabilities

FUA I it B £ AN 2R

121 A A R 455 2 8

26,110

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
to lease liabilities is 3.5% (2020: 3.5%) per annum.

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of HK$27,344,000 (2020: HK$29,879,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$25,121,000
(2020: HK$28,622,000) as at 31 March 2021. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the
lessor. Except for the leasehold lands and related assets
recognised in Macau as set out in note 30(a), other related
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing

purposes.

As at 31 March 2021, the amounts are secured by rental
deposits with carrying values of HK$643,000 (2020:

HK$643,000).

JRE FH AL B B A A T 28 B R KA
F 6 /53.5% (20204F : 3.5% ) ©

S A B BR W s A
ix20214F3H31H » B 827,344,000
# T (20204F : 29,879,000 75) 2 &
B {5 BRLAH B 0 F RE & A£25,121,000%5 70
(20204 : 28,622,000 7)) ° FH & h sk B
A AR A 2 B E A 2 BRI S
SNf7 8 B i A AR 32585 o B B 530 () BT SR
VL P e R 0 L R B A >
b AR BAFH 85 2 A5 AR A5 B A 44 -

R20214E3H31H » #% 3 JE LR 18 (4
643,000 JC (20204F : 643,000 7C) 2
T4 e & AR -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/131 H Ik &

25. Deferred Taxation
The following are the major deferred tax (liabilities) assets
recognised and movements thereon during the year:

25. W% JiE i JH
DU J 75 95l 2 M A BLIE (£
18) R S )

At 1 April 2019 1201944 A 1H
(Charge) credit to profit or loss AR (F0FR) 7t A
At 31 March 2020 A202043A31H
(Charge) credit to profit or loss R (B FHA
At 31 March 2021 14202143 A 31 H

Note: The Macau tax authority granted a concessionary deduction
to Grand Emperor Entertainment & Hotel (Macau) Limited
(“Grand Emperor Entertainment”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company incorporated in Macau,
to claim deduction of depreciation allowance for certain
of its property, plant and equipment for tax purpose in an
accelerated pattern over a period which is half of the expected
useful lives of the property, plant and equipment and such a
concession ended on 31 December 2013. Out of the deferred tax
liability of HK$28,415,000 (2020: HK$27,478,000), an amount of
HK$22,198,000 (2020: HK$22,308,000) has been recognised in
respect of the accelerated tax depreciation of those property,
plant and equipment related to the concession.

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of financial position, deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset for the temporary differences
arising from the same group entity and the same tax
authority.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %2347 5 AR /AR
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(87,563) 2,197 (111,254)

10,611

(82,087) (100,643)
5,429 ] 12,410

(88,233)

(76,658)

M PR A 1 A 2y B T RE M A S

T I A A R A ) O R A S (IR
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25.Deferred Taxation (continued) 25. MR REBLIH (45 )

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had unused tax losses of
HK$219,042,000 (2020: HK$150,743,000) available for offset
against future profits. Deferred tax asset is recognised
in respect of HK$140,337,000 (2020: HK$74,350,000) of
such loss. No deferred tax asset is recognised in respect
of the remaining tax losses of HK$78,705,000 (2020:
HK$76,393,000) due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The Group’s unrecognised tax losses might be
carried forward indefinitely, except for an amount of
HK$17,807,000 (2020: HK$15,775,000) which will expire in 3
years from the year of assessment.

R20214E3A31H » A4 M A Kk B H
i TE JE5 $8219,042,000% 7 (20204 -
150,743,000 75 ) AT 4GS R A igi A o
Hop 3% s 2 #140,337,000% ot (2020
4F 1 74,350,000% JC ) T #E 58 £y 18 4L B
S R N N
W > 8 2 BLIH 5 878,705,000 70
(20204F : 76,393,000 7t ) 37 45 e 58 2
R S T o AN R (] 2 A e R B TE s
18R] I PR 4 R B RT B AR R34
A 21 1] 2 3K 617,807,000 7T (20204F :
15,775,000 7T ) B4k

26.Share Capital 26. it A%

Ordinary shares of HK$0.0001 each BRI E0.0001H L
Authorised: ke
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 and JA2019%4H1H »
31 March 2021 202043 H31H K&
20214331 H 2,000,000,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: EEATIAL -
At1 April 2019 120194E4 A 1H 1,258,825,983 126
Share repurchased and cancelled RN E R KT 2
during the year (Note) Jety (Mt 7T (24,585,000) (3)
At 31 March 2020 20204331 H 1,234,240,983
Share repurchased and cancelled 3 NI AT P
during the year (Note) Ity (B ) (24,665,000)
At 31 March 2021 J#20214£3 31 H 1,209,575,983

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company
repurchased its own shares from the market in total
of 24,665,000 (2020: 24,585,000) shares at an aggregate
consideration of HK$27,821,000 (2020: HK$38,638,000)
(including the relevant transaction costs and expenses of
HK$97,000 (2020: HK$125,000)). The average price of the
repurchased shares was HK$1.124 (2020: HK$1.567) per share.
These repurchased shares had been cancelled at the end of the
reporting period.

W 4R F20214E3 A 31 A 1k 4F 1 > A8 2% & ik i
U 0 1] B i 0y 48 9024 665,000 1% ik 173
(20204 : 24,585,000 1% & 44) - 484 F
27,821,000 7T (20204 : 38,638,000
J6) (B 3G AH B 28 B BUAS B BH 297,000
IG (20204F : 125,0003 7)) = E W 9] B 4y
2T A AL 12435 00 (20204F £ 1.567
Wot) o ET R MR 2R T &
FEA -
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27.Share Option Scheme
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The Company adopted a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) on 15 August 2013.

The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarised as follows:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
To enable the Group to attract, retain and motivate
talented participants to strive for future developments
and expansion of the Group.

(b) Eligibility
Eligible participants include employees (whether full
time or part time employee, including non-executive
director) and such other eligible participants.

(c) Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme
(i) As at 8 August 2013 (i.e. the date of passing the
resolution for adoption of the Share Option
Scheme) and 22 June 2021 (i.e. the date of this
report): 129,254,598 shares.

(ii) Percentage of the issued shares that it represents
as at 22 June 2021: 10.80%.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each eligible
participant under the Share Option
Scheme
(i) not to exceed 1% of the shares in issue in

any 12-month period unless approved by the
shareholders; and

(ii) options granted to substantial shareholders or
independent non-executive directors or their
respective associates in any one year exceeding the
higher of 0.1% of the shares in issue and with a
value in excess of HK$5,000,000 must be approved
by the shareholders.

(e) Period within which the shares must be

taken up under an option

At any time from the date of grant of the option to such
a date determined by the board of directors but in any
event not exceeding 10 years from the date of grant.

415 A PR AT

27. Y o B w2

RN R 20134E8 H 15 H B 4k — JE 1 it
HERT# (T BeRERT 1))

W I ME ) 2 S AR A A R

() B /¢ HE ot 21 2 H ity
A I B WS | 0 Oy A
8 2 2 B DUER A I 2 R A Bt
I B AR -

(b) & #%
BEMSEE AR (2K
R B SRR HATES) K
2% HAL S E i 2 B

(c) ML 9% W it BE St 3l Wl T B AT
Z B ¥ H
(i) 201348 H8H (R % i ¥ A
e HE T ) 2 SR H ) &
202146 H22H (B AW & H
) : 129,254,598 °

(i) M20214F6H22 H Ah B 8 17 B
2 E 45 1 10.80% ©

(d) Bt REGH BR T4 5 &
1% 2 B35 ] 2 97 B i R
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27.Share Option Scheme (continued) 27. W I R Gt &) (AF)

(f) Minimum period for which an option

must be held before it can be exercised
No minimum period unless otherwise determined by
the board of directors.

(g) (i) Price payable on application or acceptance of the
option: HK$1.00;

(ii)) The period within which payments or calls must
or may be made: Within 28 days from the date of
grant; and

(iii) Period within which loans for such purposes of the
payments or calls must be repaid: Not applicable.

(h) Basis for determining the exercise price
The exercise price is determined by the Board and will
not be less than the highest of (a) the closing price
of the shares on the date of grant; (b) the average
closing price of the shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (c) the
nominal value of a share.

(i) The remaining life of the Share Option

Scheme
Approximately 2 years (expiring on 14 August 2023).

No option has been granted since the adoption date of the
Share Option Scheme.

28.Legal Reserve

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations in the
Macau Special Administrative Region, certain subsidiaries
of the Company are required to set aside 25% of their profit
for the year to a legal reserve until the legal reserve has
reached 50% of their registered capital. No appropriation
was made in both years as the legal reserve of those
subsidiaries have already reached 50% of their respective
registered capital.

29.Non-controlling Interests

Included in non-controlling interests as at 31 March 2021
was a deemed contribution by non-controlling interests
of HK$56,005,000 (2020: HK$56,005,000) on certain
interest-free loans from the non-controlling interests of a
subsidiary which were contributed in proportion to their
shareholdings.

(F) Wik I HE 45 0 i b ZHFG T 2
fi 7 01 PR
I A 3y 5347 o 7 U 90 R
SR -

() (i) o ol 9 O OO B ZEL 90
B 10 - 1,007 ¢ -

(ii) o 7H = AT REAH Bk B 1 3k 2
JIRR - $2 Hh B FT28 H A
L

(iid) A5 A5 ek s A T ik Y K
R IBR - AN -

(h) € 47 0 7 Bt
708 (00 7% o 3 5 MR A
TSR % ()W i E
2 TR 5 (b) B He 4% hh H 90 i
{18 3 FIR 0 2 P49 W 85 S (o)
e 18 1 -

(i) B B RE T 31 = 8% T B IR
#124F (J220234F8 H14H 1) -

] B PO R ) BR A U0 AR S D RO
ST -

28. % 7€ it Ha
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2501 N EM BEEILEMAEES
HEE M & A 25005 15 o i1k 5% %5 &
ANFRIZEEMECE SRS AEMER
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30. Pledge of Assets
(a) As at 31 March 2021, certain assets of the Group were

(b)

(©)

pledged to banks to secure for banking facilities
granted by the banks to the Group. The carrying values

30. & & k4

(@)

JA20214F3H31H » AN E [H 45 + & &
BRI T ERAT > E B RATIR T A
B 2 SRATRE 2 AT o Y R K

of these assets at the end of the reporting period are as BN IREE T
follows:
2021 2020
HK$’ 000 HK$’ 000
T T#IT
Hotel properties 0 5 ) & 943,191
Investment properties &Y 660,500
Right-of-use assets i M 475,964
Others (Note) HAth (ff7) 48,722
2,128,377
Note: Others represent floating charges over certain other assets Mt - FoAb e A B2 B T O E A (F

of the Group including principally property, plant and
equipment (other than hotel properties), inventories, trade
and other receivables and bank balances.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group pledged a bank
deposit of HK$63,000,000 (2020: Nil) to a bank for
obtaining a bank facility granted to a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The bank facility entails a
bank guarantee amounting to Macau Pataca (“MOP”)
64,523,000 (equivalent to HK$62,644,000) for the
period up to 26 June 2023, which is made in favour
of Sociedade de Jogos de Macau, S.A. (“SJM”) to
secure the Group’s fulfilment of all its obligations of
provision of services in the casino by the Group to SJM,
as stipulated under a service agreement entered into
between the wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
and SJM on 19 February 2010 (as supplemented by an
addendum dated 4 May 2020).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group also pledged a bank
deposit of HK$353,000 (2020: HK$348,000) to a bank to
secure for the use of ferry ticket equipment provided
by a third party to the Group.
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31. ¥ A Jal g 4 B

31. Capital Risk Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the amounts due to non-controlling
interests of a subsidiary and lease liabilities as disclosed
in notes 23 and 24, net of cash and cash equivalents, and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising
issued share capital, retained profits and other reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associates with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

32.Financial Instruments

(a) Categories of financial instruments

A AR 8 PR AR A SR W 2 ]
18 T 400 A A 4 o A A S MR A S [ IR
A AL B e AR A B 3 R
101 e o A 2 ) 2 R O W B o A A

A ] 2 A B B B TR A (AR
Wi 5E23 Je 244 57 2 K — [ Bt Jeg 2~ Wl 22 FF
P A A H R E AR Bl KB
A 2 FRA N AR AL HE
a (BLAE OB AT AR ~ IR B o A1) S A
fitifh) -

A T HE B E R AR SR - A
Mt 2 — W0 T E A WA R &
BUE A 2 A0 B R Bt o AR08 3 o > AR
A5 T 51 25 o S A SR~ A O e e R
SIS o) Lk e B AT S £ IS [ B AT {0 1 A
HORER E AN

32. &k TH
(a) 4 Ml TR 2 %030

Financial assets S
Amortised cost: S AUAS -
Trade and other receivables B Ty Fe oA E S 3K 155,489 147,279
Pledged bank deposits M IRAT A 63,353 348
Short-term bank deposits JiL U SRAT A7 K 1,415,665 980,656
Bank balances and cash SRAT & iR S B 4 1,861,052 2,563,308
3,495,559 3,691,591
Debt instruments at FVTOCI: 753 HoAth A T i 25 R HE
IR =
Listed debt securities i ER S - 82,374
3,495,559 3,773,965
Financial liabilities S
Amortised cost: B A
Trade and other payables 5 5 T H A AT K 94,423 98,376
Amount due to a fellow K — [H][F] 2 Fff 8 2 W)
subsidiary A 3,137 7,377
Amounts due to non-controlling il o) i
interests of a subsidiary IE R HE 7 B IA 39,000 39,000
136,560 144,753
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32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed
in above table. Details of the financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a
timely and effective manner.

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement
in foreign currency exchange rate will affect the
Group’ s financial results and its cash flows. Several
subsidiaries of the Company have foreign currency
sales and purchases, but the management considers
the amount of foreign currency sales and purchases is
insignificant. The management considers the Group
does not expose to significant foreign currency risk
in relation to transactions denominated in MOP and
USD. Exposures on balances which are denominated
in MOP and USD in group entities with HK$ as
functional currency are not considered significant as
MOP is pegged to HK$ which is also effectively pegged
to USD under the pegged exchange system in Hong
Kong.

The Group has certain bank balances which are
denominated in RMB (being currency other than the
functional currency of the relevant group entities)
amounting to HK$390,966,000 (2020: HK$47,748,000).
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.
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32. Financial Instruments (continued)

#E202143H31 H 1L 4EE

R.&mMILE (/)

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

The following details the Group’s sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change of 5% (2020: 5%) in
exchange rate of RMB against HK$, while all other
variables are held constant. 5% (2020: 5%) is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency
risk internally to the key management personnel
and represents the management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign currency rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2020: 5%) change in foreign currency
rate. For a 5% (2020: 5%) strengthening in RMB
against HK$, the Group’s loss for the year would be
decreased by HK$19,548,000 (2020: profit for the year
would be increased by HK$2,387,000). If RMB had been
weakened against HK$ in an opposite magnitude and
all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on the results would be equal and opposite.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of inherent
foreign exchange risk as the year end exposure does
not reflect the exposure during the year.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk
in relation to fixed-rate pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits and bank deposits included in
bank balances, debt instruments at FVTOCI as at 31
March 2020 and lease liabilities. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to its
variable-rate bank balances. The Group currently does
not have policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate
risk. However, the management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.
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32.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 March 2020, the Group’s sensitivity to fair
value interest rate risk had been determined based on
the exposure to interest rate for those fixed-rate debt
instruments at FVTOCI at the end of that reporting
period. During the year ended 31 March 2020, if
interest rates had been 100 basis points lower or higher
and all other variables were held constant, the Group’s
investments revaluation reserve would increase or
decrease by HK$509,000 (2021: Nil), as a result of the
changes in the fair value of fixed-rate debt instruments
at FVTOCI.

The Group’s sensitivity to cash flow interest rate risk
has been determined based on the exposure to interest
rate for those variable-rate bank balances at the end of
the reporting period and management’ s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in the interest rate
assuming that it took place at the beginning of each
year and was held constant throughout the respective
year.

If interest rate for the variable-rate bank balances had
been 10 basis points (2020: 10 basis points) higher and
all other variables were held constant, the potential
effect on loss/profit for the year is as follows:

Decrease in loss for the year

(2020: increase in profit A BE v A3 )
for the year)
- Variable-rate bank balances — VI P SR ERAT 45 B

AR IR IR (20204
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If interest rates had been lower in an opposite
magnitude and all other variables were held constant,
the potential effect on the results would be equal and
opposite.
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32.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

Other price risk

For debt instruments at FVTOCI as at 31 March 2020,
the management monitored market price exposure
and would consider hedging significant market price
exposure should the need arise.

As at 31 March 2020, the sensitivity analysis below
had been determined based on the exposure to other
price risk on debt instruments at FVTOCI at the end of
the reporting period. If the market bid price on such
listed debt securities had been 5% higher or lower, the
potential effect on investments revaluation reserve
would increase or decrease by HK$4,119,000 (2021: Nil)
arising from the debt instruments at FVTOCI.

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
The Group’ s maximum exposure to credit risk which
will cause a financial loss to the Group due to failure
to discharge obligations by the counterparties at the
end of reporting period are arising from the carrying
amount of the respective recognised financial assets
as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on trade
balances individually. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.
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[ B R/ L[ =7 S N
T P AT A A R
A T LR ) b B K T 45 1 A%
JE B o

Jix20204E3 A 31H > T UK E 4>
BT AR5 5 A R 2 3 i oAt 22 T
W gk A Fe B (E 2 B H LA HoA
A% JEL B B 5 - i 5% S LT RS
i B AME LIS #5% > BB
3 At A T A A A A EAE 2
LR E A& 2 BOE HAL R 2 T8 TE
B 14 5 24,119,000 7T
(20214F : %) o

1 I B 1 P e 1 A

A ]y 7 S O A R U R OR e
JEAT S5 T A% B A ] AR B
R2R 10 o e A B AR T 2 A AR B
B3RO BT 91 75 1) FH B e ) < il
7 ) R TR (E

2 i AR S B g > A 4R A
i 22 IR — B I K BB E A R IR
oA M R B M
ik DR B TR A 47 ) i [ 3 A0 K
LA - 77 8 P 7 s B 5 o A 2R 9
SRAR > A SR EAR R T A B TR A
B ) 2 5 5 B A AT (B T A o
LT E > A AR E RS A
2 A7 B B 2 K W A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

#E202143H31 H 1L

32. Financial Instruments (continued)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

During the year ended 31 March 2021, lifetime
ECL of HK$99,000 (2020: HK$385,000) for trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons is reversed
upon settlement from these patrons of which the
management previously considered as credit-impaired.

The management has also assessed all available
forward looking information, including but not limited
to the economic outlook and subsequent settlement
of these receivables. As at 31 March 2021, impairment
allowance with an aggregate balance of HK$20,879,000
(2020: HK$52,741,000) represents individually credit-
impaired trade receivables from individual gaming
patrons with an aggregate gross carrying amount
of HK$33,779,000 (2020: HK$65,641,000) as the
management considered the outstanding balances
from these gaming patrons were uncollectible.

Lifetime ECL for the remaining trade receivables with
an aggregate gross carrying amount of HK$28,062,000
(2020: HK$10,699,000) was insignificant and thus not
provided by the Group due to the low probability of
default of those debtors based on historical credit
loss experience. The management has also assessed
all available forward looking information, including
but not limited to the economic outlook of Macau
and subsequent settlement of these customers, and
concluded that the credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding trade receivables is insignificant.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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32. &R TR (4)
(o) o 755 o e 5 B 5% 5 O

(#47)
157 8L B A A (A7)

AR 20214E3 31 H IL4F 1> % A
AR R & F 2 %5 BlcRz 23
T B 599,000 7T (20204F
385,000% 70) & H % %5 % 5 45 N
SR 7 2R P e 1 A 2 1 WA

G N © R AR BT A AT R H
P R > B 45 1E AR B S BT 5t
F 5 56 ME AUk TE FL A% 110 2 I D
202143 H31H » 4 3£20,879,000
# It (20204F : 52,741,000% 70) 2
T (L 938 4 45 0 T O B 1E R L
ZHEEFME S R MR
T {f £533,779,000% JC (20204 :
65,641,000% J0) » 5 B G 78 5 % 5%
TR 2 5 1) S PR 465 R AS mT i o] o

H A B T 48 £528,062,000% G
(20204 : 10,699,000% 7t ) 1 %l £
B 5y R K 2 A W TS Bl 4R 1
RTE R [ A A A SR o
H A AR B A A A B e PR RSB - 5%
BB N 2 o] REME K - 5 2 g
IRE FFAR BT A A AT IS TR »
A FE AN BR A TR 1) 68 7% i % %
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

32.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)
Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)
The following table shows the movements in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for credit-impaired trade
receivables from individual gaming patrons under the
simplified approach:

.M TH (4
(b) Ea‘?lﬁll‘ﬁ%‘@% B K BUR
(%)
15 BB AP T A A (40)

N RBIAR R 5 07 ik R A A
SRR 7 15 £ B9 (B2 5 R WA
EHTHAE Bl R ) -

As at 1 April 2019 201944 H1H 53,126
Change due to financial instruments A20194F4 A 1 H w8 2
recognised as at 1 April 2019: A b BT A 2 B
- impairment allowance reversed — a1 438 A 438 ()
As at 31 March 2020 202043 31H
Change due to financial instruments 202044 H 1 H s8R 2
recognised as at 1 April 2020: TR E A )
- impairment allowance reversed — 48 ] Y {38 A (99)
- impairment allowance written off — P (L A (31,763)
As at 31 March 2021 R20214£3H31H 20,879

Note:

As at 31 March 2021, lifetime ECL for trade receivables
from individual gaming patrons on gross carrying
amount of HK$33,779,000 (2020: HK$65,641,000) was
HK$20,879,000 (2020: HK$52,741,000) as the management
considered certain individual gaming patrons were credit-
impaired. During the year ended 31 March 2021, lifetime
ECL of HK$99,000 (2020: HK$385,000) was reversed upon
settlement from these individual gaming patrons and an
amount of HK$31,763,000 (2020: Nil) of trade receivables
from credit-impaired individual gaming patrons were
written off as the management considered there was no
realistic prospect of recovery.

Wit R20214E3 A31H » iy jih & B @ 32
By AR FOR % 5 & A A
AR T £533,779,000 I (2020
F 165,641,000 76) 2 2 [ 1 Al 1#
FBHRF 2B YR 2 2 M E G
45 155 18 720,879,000 I (20204F
52,741,000% JC) it B F202143
A31H R4 & WU E SR
99,000 7T (20204F : 385,000 )
A E RS A DR 2 45 50 g [l >
T 7 A L i 0 o e PSR [ T i
KAGEWREZMNEEES 2%
S BEW 31,763,000 I (20204F :
4 ) T LAY -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

R2.&mMILH (/)

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) 4 %5 Il B 4 B 5% B B BUR

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued)

Credit risk management and impairment assessment
(continued)

For the pledged bank deposits, short-term bank
deposits and bank balances, impairment allowance
was insignificant and thus was not provided since
the management considers the probability of default
is negligible as such deposits are placed in reputable
banks with high credit ratings assigned by international
credit-rating agencies, and have low credit risk.

For the other receivables including chips on hand,
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus was
not provided since the management considers the
probability of default is minimal after assessing the
counterparties’ financial background and creditability.

For the debt instruments at FVTOCI as at 31 March
2020, the Group only invested in debt securities with
low credit risk. The Group’s debt instruments at
FVTOCI were all listed bonds that were graded in
the high credit ratings among credit-rating agencies
and therefore were considered to be low credit risk
investments. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
impairment allowance was insignificant and thus was
not provided since the management considers the
probability of default was negligible.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The management
monitors the utilisation of banking facilities and
ensures compliance with loan covenants, if any.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has available
unutilised banking facilities of HK$520,000,000 (2020:
HK$520,000,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities and
lease liabilities that will result in cash outflow. The
table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited # 2 #4485 AR /AF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SR e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

32. & LH (#4)

32.Financial Instruments (continued)
(b) 4 % Ja\ b 48 B 5% B S BUSR

(b) Financial risk management objectives

and policies (continued) (#E)
Liquidity risk (continued) B & £ ()
Liquidity and interest risk tables LB B 2 R g

2021 20214
Trade and other payables B R 94,423 94,423 94,423
Amount due to a fellow K R R 2

subsidiary A 3,187 3,197 3,187
Amounts due to non- X-HIBARZ

controlling interests of FH R

asubsidiary 39,000 39,000 39,000
Sub-total it 136,560 136,560 136,560
Lease liahilities HEAR 23 40,239 27,34

136,783 176,799 163,904

2020 2020
Trade and other payables B R - 9,376 - - - - 98,376 98,376
Amount due to a fellow b GE TG

subsidiary v - 737 - - - - 737 737
Amounts due to non- X—HIBARZ

controlling interests of FERHERHR

a subsidiary : 3,000 : : : : 3,000 3,000
Subtotal et 14753 - - - - 144753 14475
Lease liabilities fEER 35 0 1,29 2010 4290 35,950 43,769 29,879

144,976 1% 200 429 %950 188,522 174632
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e I H R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # E202143/1 31 H I &

32. &R TH (4)
() &k TH 2 U4 3

32. Financial Instruments (continued)
(c) Fair value measurements of financial

instruments

The fair values of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded in active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of all other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period approximate their
corresponding fair values.

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured
at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The
following table gives information about how the fair
values of these financial assets are determined (in
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that were
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2020 on a
recurring basis

FLAT R HE AR R B A A SIE 2 37 i 7
T35 0 4 L Y SR B A Y
275 i 0 H B R o

AAFAEERR REZHRML
B AN AR 2 P AT oAt 4 il
JEE I 4 Pl A 2 R T L B A JE
FARE A A o

A AR A T 4 R T R R R A
KN B ER R N R B
EEZSEMEEARBEZE
R CRE I B PR A (B 45 9l % g A B
%) o

A5 B 12 20204F3 H 31 H 4% #8 & 1
HELAAREEFENEMEEZ
N RMEE

Fair value Valuation technique(s)
Financial assets Fair value hierarchy and key input(s)
4 il 2R fEE A B AE % B G Y ETT PN &
HK$’ 000
T#x
Debt instruments at 82,374 Level 1 Quoted bid prices in
FVTOCI (2021: Nil) 15k an active market

375 38 FUAtD 2 T A 2
AREEZ B TR

(20214F: )

There were no transfers between Level 1 and other
levels in prior year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

33.Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising  33. il & i ) i 5 2k 2 £ %

from Financing Activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated
statement of cash flows from financing activities.

R

N ARFEI A S I I ) B R B AR
S OB S RIFB ) - BB
Bl i 2 AR 1 B AR TS 4 LB R B EUR 2R
B8 W SO R A R ARG BB TR
AU T T ) T AR Y B e U
YA -

At 1 April 2019 *20194F4A1H - 46,200 27,666 73,866
New lease entered EEARIENY - - 3,820 3,820
Interest accrued JRE =1L, - - 1,031 1,031
Dividends declared (note 12) CEIRKE
(WzE12) 104,267 - - 104,267 |
Financing net cash outflow il B 4 L LV A (104,267) (7,200) (2,638) (114,105) |
At 31 March 2020 14202043131 H 29,879 o’
Interest accrued JE = A& 994 *.
Covid-19-related rent e AR 2 C
concession 4B E (545) C
Dividends declared (note 12) ~ EEIREE .
(Hit12) 55,058 - 55,058 I
Financing net cash outflow il G B R (55,058) (2,984) ° .
At 31 March 2021 202143 A31H - 27,344 .. L
[ ]
o ] . .
34.Capital Commitments 34. B AR &I o
Contracted for but not provided Y B SR T T4
in the consolidated financial (BRI G BB R
statements, net of amounts paid, B (R C AT 8) .
in respect of property, plant and ®
equipment 4,658 o ®
(]
- [ ]
- [ ]
[
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- - NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R %*"E?I P bk

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &

° o0
N J
' 35.Operating Lease Commitments 5. 888 ML R i
The Group as lessor A 45 AR 2y AL
o Operating lease rentals received FENRC BRI EWE
. and receivable for the year E i B e 2 A8
° o in respect of completed THEH &
PP investment properties 23,124
® 0
o0 At the end of the reporting period, minimum lease payments A R B T B 2 e AR A R OE
o0 receivable on leases are as follows: mr
[ 2N J
[ N ]
o o0
[ I ]
oo
- Within one year 14 A
° In the second year Hi24F 6,028
In the third year Hi34 6,140
In the fourth year Hi4H 6,480
In the fifth year Hi54F 6,660
After five years 515 18,680
63,291
®
° Certain premises in the Group’s completed investment AEBECEMIBEEYENAL TY
LI properties have committed tenants for the tenancy ranging ¥ RLF KR FLH A Foffl A 284
C from 6 months to 8 years (2020: 2 to 8 years) and the rentals (20204 : 2Z8%4F ) A 45 > T AH 4 )3 T 5E
" '. are pre-determined and fixed. fikt S S b 1] 5 B
[ N J
[ 2N ]
[ 2N ]
[ BN ]
o o0
[ I
oo
[ ]
®
®
[ ]
e ©
(I J
(I ]
® 0
HO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR e IR R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

36.Related Party Transactions

(a) Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related
parties:

Advertising fee to a related
company
Brokerage fee to a related company

#E20214F3H 31 H IEF &

36. B8 5 22 5
(a) FRE% f A T R A 35 6
5 4 A1 » AR R I A 4 B 4 LB
MR R AU K25

1] — [H] B 22 2 ] S A
JE& 1 2
1] — [H] B 22 2 W) S A

432

KAt 91

Commission to Dr. Albert Yeung ) A5 1 1 (LA 42 [

in his capacity as a patron of HEEEFZ50)

the Group’ s VIP room SRR 352
Professional service fee to a related [ — [H] B % 28 7] 3 £

company BB 2 420
Purchase of property, plant and 1) [ 22 ) % 7] % B I

equipment and merchandising 25 ) M W 3 AR

goods from related companies B S B

and fellow subsidiaries 751
Reimbursement of administrative (CERIGEN ) FA

expenses to fellow subsidiaries ST 2 AT BB 3 13,730
Rental income from a related fi] — [H] B 28 2 ] AR

company LEEAL N 4,639
Secretarial fee to a related company  [a]— [l AR A F]— 4

controlled by a director of the ) 2 B A R

Company SCA b 2 S 400

Note:  Save as disclosed above, the above related companies and BiGE - BR L SCHT Bl EE 3 Ah o bl B A

fellow subsidiaries are controlled by the relevant private
discretionary trusts of which Dr. Albert Yeung is the
founder and settlor.

(b) The key management personnel of the Company
are the directors of the Company. The details of the
remunerations paid to them relating to short-term
employee benefits are set out in note 10.
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O A

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &

e
@
' 37.Financial Information of the 3. KAV ZMBE R
Company
The financial information of the Company as at 31 March A%y AR 2021423 A 31 H 202043 31
2021 and 31 March 2020 is as follows: HZ MBS ERT
®
[ ]
e ©
PP Non-current assets I L) &
PR Investment in a subsidiary A — [ B A R 2 A 315,384 190,237
oo Amount due from a subsidiary JREE Wi — [ P JB 2 W) 3T 939,725 405,514
: : 1,255,109 595,751
PR Current assets i)
. Prepayments TEAT 3K 261 257
oo Amount due from a subsidiary JRE g — [ A i 2 ) kT 188,146 184,533
oo Bank balances and cash SRATH B MR & 4,411 7,993
o 192,818 192,783
: Current liability mE A fE
Other payables o Ath B A 3K 609 1,196
Net current assets i B 192,209 191,587
Net assets B WHE 1,447,318 787,338
Capital and reserves B KAt A
» Share capital JEA 121 123
" R Reserves (Note) 5 (M at) 1,447,197 787,215
o0 Total equity HE 2 BE %0 1,447,318 787,338
[ I J
® O
[ I J
[ N )
[ AN )
[ N )
[ I )
o0
° o
[ ]
®
®
[ ]
e ©
P
[ BN J
® o
[ I J
PR @ Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S 184475 15 AR /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
G BT AR ¥

[ ]
For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % '. o
[ J
37.Financial Information of the 37.RKAFZMBE R (4F)
Company (continued)
Note: Vi

o
°
°
®e
At 1 April 2019 A20194E4H1H 436,765 672 269,003 706,440 [ ) -
Profit and total comprehensive 45 & ifi 1 K 4 i i 45 °
income for the year ki) - - 223,677 223,677 N
Ordinary share repurchased W I e G 4 2 % 2 e °*
and cancelled (note 26) (WzE26) - 3 (38,638) (38,635) .
2019 final dividend paid T IR2019%4F A 10 i 5 - - (67,218) (67,218) .
2020 interim dividend paid ELUR20204F 5 11 i B (37,049) (37,049) . °
°
At 31 March 2020 202043 H31H 349,775 787,215 - N
Profit and total comprehensive 4 B it FI| & 2 1 I 4
income for the year AR 742,859 742,859
Ordinary share repurchased I e R 1 2 % 2 e
and cancelled (note 26) (Ktit26) (27,821) (27,819)
2020 final dividend paid ELIR20204 7 1 1t B (36,833) (36,833)
2021 interim dividend paid ELJR2021L4F T LR B (18,225) (18,225)
At 31 March 2021 R20214F3H31H 436,765 1,009,755 1,447,197
o
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
®
°
°
o
°
°
°
°
®
°
°
°
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- NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
O A

© o  Fortheyear ended 31 March 2021  # E2021463/1 31 H I-4E &
°
°
38. Particulars of Subsidiaries 38. it /& 2 Wl wf 1
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) Fi & 2 ¥ — i & B
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the A 2% ] 202143 A 31 H K 202043
Company as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are as HA31H 2 EEEMWJE A mFERE T -
follows:
°
°
o0
()
o0
o0
o0
o0
o0
)
PR, Acute Rise Limited British Virgin US$1 80 Investment holding
B BEA R Islands/Macau IES BE
- SRR R /A
Affluent Travel Services Limited Hong Kong HK$500,000 80  Provision of travel
R AR R } 500,000 7T agency services
TR AR A
Asian Glory Limited Macau MOP25,000 80  Property holding
TMAREA R AR 1 25,0001 7C R
Assets Pro Holdings Limited British Virgin Uss$1 - Hotel entertainment
Islands/Macau IEST I B4
L KL/ B
L Emperor Entertainment British Virgin US$50 100  Investment holding
LI Hotel Investment Limited Islands/Macau 50% 7T BE
o0 F IR R E) e VR L
o0
. Emperor Entertainment Hotel Macau MOP25,000 80  Provision of project
Management Limited 1 25,0001 ¢ financing services
o i B A R ] RAUE R RGN
o0
Y Grand Emperor Entertainment Macau MOP500,000 80  Provision of hotel and
® e BB PR E IR 1 500,000% P18 catering services
N SRR R BB
N Inn Hotel Macau Limited Macau MOP100,000 100 Provision of hotel and
TP AR A 5 A PR ) r 10,0001 117 catering services
TR R B
Keen Million Limited British Virgin Uss$1 80 Hotel entertainment
Islands/Macau %7 T B
SR IE LR R /A
Luck United British Virgin US§$10,000 80  Investment holding
- Islands/Macau 10,000% 1t Bgk
° SR LR
)
()
o0
()
PPN Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited %2347 5 AR /AR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS . E
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries 38. Bt 8§ 2 Wl vk 4 (42 )
(continued) B
(a) General information of subsidiaries (a) W& 2~ vl — &R (A7)

(continued)

°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
°
Oceanic Leader Investments Limited ~ British Virgin Us§1 100 Investment holding °
Islands/Macau IEST RETE °
SRR/
Precision Faith Limited Macau MOP100,000 100 VIP room and provision
LA PR ] Hr 100,000 1/ 7 of gaming-related
marketing and
promotion services
BERE 2T R
T AR B 5 O
B AR
Quick Gain Investments Limited British Virgin Us§1 - Investment holding
Islands/Macau IEST AT
SRR/
Right Achieve Limited British Virgin USs$1 80 Investment holding N
EHARAT Islands/Macau £ Erdeidl C
B LS/ RN °.
°
Tin Hou Limited Macau MOP25,000 100 Provision of agency ° b
REHRAT i 25,0008 M7 services for gaming °
operation ®
REWEEEERL b
i IR °
Treasure Dragon Investments Limited ~ British Virgin US$1 - Investment holding
BRREARAR Islands/Macau IES frdeeidie
FRELTE /RN
Vital Spring Holdings Limited British Virgin Us§1 - Investment holding
Islands/Macau IESH AT
SRR

[
[ J
[ ]
[
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For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/131 H Ik &

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries

(continued)
(a) General information of subsidiaries

(continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors of the Company,
principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the
opinion of the directors of the Company, result in
particulars of excessive length.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has
other subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. The
principal activities and the principal places of business of
these subsidiaries are summarised as follows:

Investment holding and others Macau

B PN S Ho A mr

Others Hong Kong
HoAt i

38. Fit J&§ 2> Wl w4 (A7)

(a) P& 2> vl — &R (A7)

WAAFERZER ERYEE
AL W A TR
P /N7 B/NNEI R NN I o A
S50 HAR K A W 2 RE A0
e 208 77 =

RIS AR R A AL
T 7 AN B K H b B 2 7] © % 55
Wi i 2 ) 2 B S M R A
A AL

None of the subsidiaries of the Company issued any
debt securities as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries

that have material non-controlling

interests

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned
subsidiaries of the Company that have material non-
controlling interests:

Luck United* British Virgin Islands

J#£202143 431 H K%202043H 31
FI o A i) ff R 2 ) HE 48 5 AT AT A

(b) B A7 ¥ K I 2 ik HE 25 74 I
2 W& 2 F Z e A

AR A R I P R AR A A
NEIESE S 4] AT P

KRELTES

*  Representing Luck United and its subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R A B AR Tk

For the year ended 31 March 2021  # £202143/31 H Ik &

38. Particulars of Subsidiaries 38. P J& 2> vl ek A (4E)

(continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries (b) B A B K I ¥ 5 e 4 i I
that have material non-controlling ZEWE A Bl Z 5N ()
interests (continued)

Luck United* Luck United*

Current assets TE G E 3,430,257 3,597,985
Non-current assets FE L E 1,708,243 1,847,714
Current liabilities L R=R (195,555) (255,495)
Non-current liabilities IE i B A (125,144) (138,953)
Equity attributable to owners AN IR N A 2
of the Company 3,854,240 4,041,000
Non-controlling interests TP 2 963,561 1,010,251
Revenue WA 221,327 815,396
Expenses, other gains and losses BH 3¢ > HoAtb i as M s 18 (455,694) (722,746)
(Loss) profit for the year R (48 i A (234,367) 92,650
Other comprehensive income A FAb A T AR (B S0
(expense) for the year 917 (712)
Total comprehensive (expense) ARRE 2T (B S Wioat AR
income for the year (233,450) 91,938
(Loss) profit for the year JEALAFE B (48 T ) -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE7 2SN (187,494) 74,120
Non-controlling interests IR 2 (46,873) 18,530
(234,367) 92,650
Other comprehensive income JAE At B JFC Al 2 T W i
(expense) for the year (B3 -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZN/NSIE: HE N (570)
Non-controlling interests FEPE R 2 (142)
(712)
Total comprehensive (expense) JE AL 4 B 42 T (B 32)
income for the year Wi i A -
attributable to:
Owners of the Company EN/NEIE: SN (186,760) 73,550
Non-controlling interests FEFE R 25 (46,690) 18,388
(233,450) 91,938
Net cash (used in) from operating #8758 (T H) Fifs 2
activities B4 VB (237,998) 134,760
Net cash used in investing activities & & i ) Jir i 2 Bl 4 75 %1 (393,913) (225,774)
Net cash used in financing il T ) T T 2 B 4
activities (2,707) (9,629)
Net cash outflow B4 U s A (634,618) (100,643)

Emperor Entertainment Hotel Limited 5% S #8447 55 R /A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B e WA F R

For the year ended 31 March 2021

#E202143H31 H 1L

39. Events after Reporting Period

(@)

(b)

On 25 May 2021, the board of directors resolved to
declare the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.050
per share, totaling HK$59,865,000, to the shareholders
of the Company which shall be made on 25 June 2021.
Details of the special dividend were disclosed in the
Company's announcement dated 25 May 2021.

On 28 May 2021, the Group completed the acquisition
of the entire interest in Poly Keen International
Limited (“Poly Keen”) and the loan due from
Poly Keen to a directly wholly-owned subsidiary
of Emperor International, at a consideration of
HK$2,048,832,000. Poly Keen and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in hospitality business and
property investment in Hong Kong. Details of the
acquisition were disclosed in the joint announcement
of Emperor International and the Company dated
16 March 2021 and the Company’s circular dated
30 April 2021. Since the initial accounting for the
business combination is incomplete up to the date
of this report, no further disclosure in relation to the
acquisition could be made.
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39. ¥t ¥ W1 1% T IH

(@)

R20214E5H25H » # FH & Pk i A
7 ) I RCE R R RIS B 120,050
T > A 3£59,865,000% 7T - 3 6 i
20214E6 H 25 H IR AT o 45 Al 1Bt 8. 2 5
1% B A2 7 H ) £20214E5 H 25
EIP/NNEF

202145 H 28 H » 4% 4 [ 58 i
A B Poly Keen International
Limited ([Poly Keen ) % #B it
BE K Poly KeenK 7} 3 £ [ B B 4%
IR B 2 R R 2 O ARAE 2
2,048,832,000%: JG ° Poly Keen ¢
A R ) A A U AR S G 2
B B ) S8 - A BRI 2 R
i B 5 [ R BLAS 23 m) H O 5 20214F
3A16H Z W&~ AL A H
F520214F4 30 H 2 2 bk P 4 ik o .
AW B RS U2
B 4 B it g B R 52 A TR I R
RE S AT A 5 g TR A T R AP DR
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY o®
[
[
hAEIA B2 .*
[ ]
For the year ended 31 March 2021  # #20214£3/131 H 1l 46 % ’. °
[ ]
Results E 3
Revenue WA o 1143230 1,381,335 1,498,351 1,613,180 R
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBELAT (518 i A (304,327) 206,707 367,474 468,868 409,854 .. °
Taxation credit ol I [ 43¢ 79,878 75,738 70,823 38,862 1879 . ©
[ ]
(Loss) profit for the year FHE (EHE ) & (224,449) 282,445 438,297 507,730 428,650 © _
[ ]
(Loss) profit for the year JREA54F B (518 °*
attributable to: i 1 - o®
Owners of the Company Z/NCIE 2 DN (177,576) 263,915 367,492 393,574 346,490 . ©
Non-controlling interests  FEFEMAES (46,873) 18,530 70,805 114,156 82,160 . °
(224,449) IPEYRTS 438,297 507,730 428,650
Assets and Liabilities & KA
Total assets WG S 6278258 6,241,192 6,869,560 6,827,331 .
Total liabilities A (471,612 (571,259) (673,021) (992,756)  (1,348,756) °
(]
el 5706999 5,568,171 5,876,804 5478575 , °
[ ]
Total equity attributable to: B 51 BE {5 A HE 45 - ®e
Owners of the Company 4/ RIHEA A ULLN 4696748 4,576,308 3,989,968 3,705,339 o
Non-controlling interests ¥ b 4 963,561 1,010,251 991,863 1,886,836 1,773,236 : °
[ ]

Jelpbii 5706999 5,568,171 5,876,804 5478575 .

[
[ J
[ ]
[
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- - SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
RREEY S

© o  At31 March 2021 #202143/431H

° 0
N
° Particulars of the Group’s investment properties as at 31 March A4 [ 2202143 H 31 H Z £ & ¥ £ 5F 15 n
2021 are as follows: I
Completed Investment Properties LRz R&EWE
®
[ ]
e ©
[ I J
(I ]
.. .. 1. Shops of Ground Floor of the Grand Commercial 5,520 80
. Emperor Hotel, Macau [LES
o TR B 5 00 i T O
: : 2. 8th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Commercial 22,266 80
o Macau [HGES
° o TR e B2 0 A7 T 8k
[ ]
J 3. 10th Floor of the Grand Emperor Hotel, Commercial 22,266 80
Macau (HES
TR o B 05 44 T 10
4. Portion of Ground Floor and the whole of Commercial 24,200 100
1st Floor of the Inn Hotel Macau, Macau [HES
TR PG 0 T B 00 M 1 R
®
[ ]
e ©
[ I
(I ]
[ BN ]
[ 2N ]
X
[ 2N ]
[ BN ]
o o0
® e
° 0
[ ]
®
®
[ ]
e ©
I J
(I ]
e o
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